
Planning and Transportation Regulatory Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Planning and Transportation Regulatory 

Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Thursday, 7 April 2022 

 
TIME:  9.30 am 
 

VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 
 

It is intended that this meeting will be live-streamed, however, occasionally 
there may be technical limitations to doing this. 
The live broadcast can be viewed via the link below: 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/watch-live-council-meetings/ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

 
Members attending this meeting with a personal interest in an item on the 
agenda must disclose the existence and nature of that interest and, if it is a 

prejudicial interest, withdraw from the meeting during the discussion and voting 
on the item. 

 
The items for consideration may not be heard in the order listed below. 

 

AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC REGARDING 

ATTENDANCE AT FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS  

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

 IT IS INTENDED THAT THIS MEETING WILL BE LIVE-
STREAMED, HOWEVER, OCCASIONALLY THERE MAY BE 

TECHNICAL LIMITATIONS TO DOING THIS. 
The live broadcast can be viewed via the link below: 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/watch-live-council-meetings/ 

 

 

1   Apologies for absence.  

 

 

2   The Panel is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion 
of the items listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.  

 

 

3   Declarations of interest.  

 

 

4   To approve as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 3 March 2022.  

(Pages 3 - 8) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/watch-live-council-meetings/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/watch-live-council-meetings/


 

 
5   Planning applications and related development control issues.  

 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

5a 21/78597/PRI - Park Lea Court, Upper Park Road, Salford.  
 

(Pages 15 - 30) 

5b 20/76377/FUL - Botany Bay Wood, Grange Road, Eccles.  
 

(Pages 31 - 48) 

5c 21/78637/FUL - Towngate Business Centre, Worsley Trading Estate, 
Lester Road, Little Hulton M38 0PT  
 

(Pages 49 - 66) 

5d 22/79155/REM - Plot G1 _ G2, Logistics North, Bolton BL5 1DB  
 

(Pages 67 - 80) 

6   Planning applications determined under delegated authority.  

 
(Pages 81 - 138) 

7   Planning appeals.  

 

(Pages 139 - 152) 

8   Urgent Business - Part 1.  

 

 

9   Exclusion of the Public.  

 

 

10   Part 2 - Closed to the Public.  

 

 

11   Urgent Business - Part 2.  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel 
No: 

0161 793 2602 

Claire Edwards, Democratic Services E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 



Face to face council meetings held at Embankment 
 
Following the expiration of the temporary regulations enabling remote meetings on 7 

May 2021, the Government requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, 
committees, panels and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so 
members of the public can attend in person. 

 
All national COVID-19 restrictions and measures have now been lifted, however, it is 

important to continue to stay safe.  Your safety is our utmost priority, whilst also 
supporting transparency, accountability and effective decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 

Meetings of the Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel are currently taking place 
at 100 Embankment, Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ. 

 
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 

controlled access to the building and meeting space. 

 
2. The meeting will be run using the principle of ‘hands, face and space’. You are 

asked to regularly wash and sanitise your hands and to maintain a two-metre 
distance from others whilst in the building.  Wearing a face covering is now not a 
requirement, however, if you do feel more comfortable wearing a face covering, 

then please feel free to wear one. 
 

3. Movement around the meeting space will be kept to an absolute minimum with pre-
defined entrances and exits. 
 

4. Despite the COVID-secure measures that will be in place, there remains a residual 
risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some people the risk is 

higher, particularly if… 

 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk 

 you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face-to-

face meeting.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

 By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

 By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 

from 100 Embankment. 

 By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 

located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 

 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 
 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel 
 
 
Thursday 3rd March 2022, held at 100 Embankment, Cathedral Approach, Salford. 

 
Meeting commenced:  9:50 am  
Adjourned:  11:30 am 
Reconvened:  11:52 am 
Ended:     1:05 pm 

 
 
Present:  Councillor Mashiter - in the Chair 

 
Councillors Clarke, Cusack, Dawson, Hamilton, McCusker, N. Reynolds, Taylor, 
Tresadern and Warmisham 
 

 
A list of registered speakers and attendees present at the meeting in respect of the applications 
considered under Minute 5 is included at Appendix A. 

 
 
1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence 
 

The Chair welcomed those present and outlined the procedure for the meeting. 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Burch, Dickman, K. Garrido, Linden 
and Morris.   
 

2. The Panel is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion of the items listed in Parts 
1 and 2 of the agenda 

 
RESOLVED: THAT it be noted that the Panel agreed to the inclusion of the items as listed on the 
agenda. 
 

3. Declarations of Interest  

 
Councillor Cusack made reference to Item 6 on the agenda - ‘Planning applications determined 
under delegated authority’ – which included four applications relating to the University of Salford, in 
respect of which he indicated that he is a member of The Council of the University of Salford. 
 

4. To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2022 

 
The minutes of the above meeting were approved as a correct record. 

 
5.  Planning applications and related development control issues 
 

Applications for Planning Permission  

  
Full details of the matters referred to in this Minute are contained in the report of the Strategic 
Director for Place (Main Report), as amended in the case of applications marked * in the 
Amendment Report. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT, following consideration by the Panel, the under-mentioned applications for 
planning permission were determined, subject to the conditions listed in the above-mentioned 
report(s), as indicated below – 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

Application Number/ 
Applicant 

 

Site Development Decision 

* 5a - 21/76773/FUL 
 
Mr Anthony Sackfield 

Land between 
Crosby Avenue and 
Crompton Street 
Worsley 
M28 3HP 

Proposed development of 
5no. affordable terraced 
houses, and 12no. supported 
living apartments, with 
associated landscaping, 
private gardens and access 
road from Crosby Avenue. 
 

Please refer to Minute 6 
below. 

5b - 21/78946/COU 
 
Mr Harry Pettener 
 

6 Vestris Drive 
Salford 
M6 8EL 
 

Application for change of use 
from single dwelling (Use 
Class C3) to HMO for 5 
occupants (Use Class C4). 
 

Granted, subject to a 
request being made to 
the Highways Team for 
the objector’s concerns 
regarding the safety of 
the junction at Vestris 
Drive and Voltaire 
Avenue, to be relayed to 
the appropriate 
Highways Task Group 
for consideration. 
 

* 5c - 21/78983/COU 
 
Mr Paul Harris 

265 Bolton Road 
Salford 
M6 7HP 
 

Proposed change of use from 
single dwelling (Use Class 
C3) to 5-bedroom HMO (Use 
Class C4) including the 
erection of part single, part 
two storey rear extension. 
 

Granted. 

* 5d - 21/78211/REM 
 
Fairbriar Developments 
(Salford) Ltd 

Middlewood Locks  
Land North of 
Middlewood Street 
And East of Oldfield 
Road 
Salford 
M5 4GU 

Details of Reserved Matters 
for the appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale 
of development following 
outline planning permission 
16/67987/OUTEIA  for the 
erection of a mixed-use 
residential development (Use 
Class C3) comprising two 
blocks (E1 & E2) totalling 659 
units and 1,712qm of ground 
and first floor commercial 
uses, together with 
associated ancillary facilities, 
servicing, landscaping and 
public realm. 
 

Granted, subject to the 
authority to discharge 
condition 3 (Parking 
Management Strategy) 
of the Reserved Matters 
planning permission, 
together with conditions 
21 (Materials), 23 and 24 
(Landscaping) of the 
Outline planning 
permission, being 
delegated to the 
Assistant Director of 
Technical Services in 
consultation with the 
Chair of the Panel. 
 
The Chair asked that the 
Lead Member for 
Planning & Sustainable 
Development and 
himself be briefed by 
officers on the position 
regarding viability at 
each phase of the 
development. 
 

Page 4



3 

 

* 5e - 21/78214/REM 
 
Fairbriar Developments 
(Salford) Ltd 

Middlewood Locks  
Land North of 
Middlewood Street 
And East of Oldfield 
Road 
Salford 
M5 4GU 

Details of Reserved Matters 
for the appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale 
of development following 
outline planning permission 
14/65793/OUT for the 
erection of a new mixed-use 
residential building (Use 
Class C3) comprising 250 
units and 413sqm of ground 
floor commercial floorspace, 
together with associated 
ancillary facilities, servicing, 
landscaping and public 
realm. 
 

Granted, subject to the 
authority to discharge 
conditions 2 (Materials) 
and 6 (Parking 
Management Strategy) 
of the Reserved Matters 
planning permission 
being delegated to the 
Assistant Director of 
Technical Services in 
consultation with the 
Chair of the Panel. 
 

5f - 20/76384/FUL 
 
Forshaw Land and 
Property Group Ltd 

Derwent Street 
Salford 
M5 4SW 
 

Erection of a 17-storey 
building comprising 160 
residential units, ancillary 
gym and communal space 
together with improvements 
to the public realm, 
landscaping, car parking and 
associated works. 
 

Please refer to Minute 7 
below. 

 
6.  21/76773/FUL – Land between Crosby Avenue and Crompton Street, Worsley M28 3HP – 

Proposed development of 5no. affordable terraced houses, and 12no. supported living 
apartments, with associated landscaping, private gardens and access road from Crosby 
Avenue 

 

RESOLVED:  (1) THAT planning permission be granted, subject to (a) the planning conditions 
stated in the report, and (b) the addition of an informative to the Highways Team requesting that 
consideration be given to junction protection measures in the form of double yellow lines being 
implemented at the junction between Crosby Avenue and Spring Clough Avenue, and that: 
 
(i) The City Solicitor be authorised to enter into a legal obligation under Section 111 and 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, to secure the following heads of 
terms: 
 
(a) A financial contribution of £52,728 towards: 

 Outwood Recreation Ground, Walkden; and/or  
 How Clough Woods (SBI), Walkden; and/or  
 For biodiversity enhancements, access works to/from either site and works to 

improve linkages between the two sites. 
 

(b) Affordable Housing 
 

(ii) The applicant be informed that the Council is minded to grant planning permission, subject to 
the conditions stated in the reports, on completion of such legal obligation; 
 

(iii) The authority be given for the decision notice relating to the application to be issued, (subject 
to the conditions and reasons stated in the reports) on completion of the above-mentioned 
legal obligation. 
 

(2) THAT, with regard to residents walking to alternative greenspaces located in 
 

Page 5



4 

 

the wider area, the Highways Team be asked to arrange for consideration to be given to resources 
available locally being directed towards ensuring that the safety of pedestrians is prioritised. 

 
7. 20/76384/FUL - Derwent Street, Salford M5 4SW – Erection of a 17-storey building comprising 

160 residential units, ancillary gym and communal space together with improvements to the 
public realm, landscaping, car parking and associated works 

 

RESOLVED: THAT planning permission be granted, subject to (a) the planning conditions stated in 
the report, and (b) the authority to discharge conditions 22 (Materials), 23 (Landscaping) and 24 
(Landscape Management) being delegated to the Assistant Director of Technical Services in 
consultation with the Chair of the Panel, and that: 
 
(i) The City Solicitor be authorised to enter into a legal obligation under Section 106 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following heads of terms: 
 
(a) A financial contribution of £475,000 towards the following projects: 

 

 Open Space – Potential projects include Ordsall Park, Irwell River Park and/or 
Grounds of Ordsall Hall. 

 Bus service contribution. 
 Sustainable Travel Contribution. 
 Monitoring fee. 

 
(b) Delivery of the public realm along the riverside link and securing permissive routes along 

the public realm. 
 

(c) Clawback should the viability position change. 
 

(ii) The applicant be informed that the Council is minded to grant planning permission, subject to 
the conditions stated in the report, on completion of such legal obligation; 

 

(iii) The authority be given for the decision notice relating to the application to be issued, (subject 
to the conditions and reasons stated in the report) on completion of the above-mentioned 
legal obligation. 

 

8. Planning Applications determined under Delegated Authority 

 
The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report containing details of planning applications that 
he had determined under delegated authority during January and February 2022 and were not, 
therefore, for consideration by the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report be noted. 

 
9. Planning Appeals 
 

The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report setting out details of appeals that had recently 
been determined and received. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the appeal decision in respect of application  21/77885/COU - 48 
Cecil Road, Eccles, Manchester, M30 OFZ (allowed) which included reference to various issues 
relating to HMOs (Housing in Multiple Occupation). 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



5 

 

 
Appendix A 

 
Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel – 3rd March 2022 

Registered speakers/attendees regarding Applications for Planning Permission (Minute 5) 
 
Application Reference & 

Address 
 

Objecting Applicant/Agent/ 
Supporting 

Ward Councillors 

5a - 21/76773/FUL 
Land between Crosby 
Avenue And 
Crompton Street 
Worsley 
M28 3HP 
 

Laura Bowker* 
Craig Thompson* 
Colin Doherty* 

Peter Lynas* Councillor Syed* 

5b - 21/78946/COU 
6 Vestris Drive 
Salford  
M6 8EL 
 

Susan Vaughan* Harry Pettener* Councillor Pevitt* 

5c - 21/78983/COU 
265 Bolton Road 
Salford 
M6 7HP 
 

  Councillor Pevitt* 

5d - 21/78211/REM 
Middlewood Locks 
Land North of Middlewood 
Street and East of Oldfield 
Road 
Salford 
M5 4GU 
 

 Mike Ralph* 
Peter Gleave 
Paul Kelley 
Jake Hall 

 

5e - 21/78214/REM 
Middlewood Locks 
Land North of Middlewood 
Street and East of Oldfield 
Road 
Salford 
M5 4GU 
 

 Mike Ralph 
Peter Gleave 
Joanne O’Malley 

 

5f - 20/76384/FUL 
Derwent Street 
Salford 
M5 4SW 
 

 Simon Pemberton* 
Lindon Forshaw 
David Savage 
Steve Rowe 

 

 
* Indicates those who made representations to the Panel. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public 

 

REPORT OF The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO The Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel 

ON 7th April 2022 

 

TITLE: Planning Applications and related Development Control Issues 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: As indicated in respect of each application. 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report sets out details of the planning applications for 

determination at this meeting. 
  
Ward Members may make representations to the Panel on the items listed in this report. 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 
PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972-SECTIONS 100A-100K 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
The “Background Papers” relating to all reports on planning applications appearing in this  

report are: - 
 

1. The appropriate ‘case file’ for each planning application on the agenda which is 
available on the council’s website. 

 

The contents of the file include the following documents: 
 

(a) The submitted planning application (forms, plans and supporting documents and 
Information) 

(b) Correspondence with statutory and other consultees; 

(c) Letters and other documents from interested parties (available on request). 
 

2. Any previous planning applications and subsequent decision notices (if issued referred 
to in each planning application report on this agenda). 

 

3. Any tree preservation order referred to in each planning application report on the 
agenda. 

 
4. Any conservation area plan referred to in each planning application report on the 

agenda. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

http://publicaccess.salford.gov.uk/publicaccess/


 2 

 
5. Papers specifically listed under a heading “Other Background Papers” in any planning 

report on the agenda. 
 

Although background papers are normally available for inspection at the Civic Centre, 
Chorley Road, Swinton, due to restrictions and Government guidance relating to the 
Coronavirus, they are only available online at this time.  If you wish to inspect letters 

submitted by interested parties please email planning.contact@salford.gov.uk.   
 

Publications 
 

In considering planning applications or legal action, the City Council has regard to a wide 

range of published documents, although not ‘Background Papers’ for the purposes of the  
Local Government Act 1972 – Sections 100A-100K, are nevertheless important to the 

consideration of these matters. 
 
The Government in particular has published a large amount of guidance and Statutory 

Instruments in addition to the primary legislation and these are available online. 
 

The following Local Authority publications are available on the Council’s web site – 
 

– SPD 

– SPD 
– SPD 

gy – SPD 
– SPD 

– SPD 

– SPD 
- SPD 

- SPD 
- SPD 

 

 
 

The following Planning Guidance documents have been adopted by the City Council: 
 

 

 
 

 
- UDP Policy E5: Development in Established Employment 

    Areas 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Amendments/Additional Information received after the completion of this series of 

reports 

Page 10

mailto:planning.contact@salford.gov.uk
http://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-policy.htm


 3 

 
Any amendment/additional information, such as amendments to planning applications, 

additional information from applicants or consultees, representations from interested 
parties, etc., received AFTER the preparation of this series of reports will be reported at the 

Panel meeting together with any changes to my recommendation. 
 

 
KEY DECISION: NO 

 

 
DETAILS:  See attached application reports. 

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: See background papers above.  

 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS:   TEL NO: 

Anthony Stephenson  0161 604 7778 

James Ketley    0161 779 4832 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: As detailed within each application report. 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 11



 4 

Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel 
 

Set out below are details of all of the items which will be considered by the Planning and 
Transportation Regulatory Panel at their meeting.  Some of these applications may be 

subject to a s.106 legal agreement (planning obligation).  Where this is the case it will be 
stated next to the recommendation using the code ‘S106’ as detailed in the list of codes 
below. 

 
Ward Members may make representations to the Panel on all items below including those 

with an associated s.106 legal agreement. 
 

Index Report 

 
DATE: 07.04.2022 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
PER   =  Approve 

AUTH  =  Consent 
REF  =  Refuse 

FUL   =        Full application 
ADV  =       Advert Application 
OUT  =        Outline Application 

HH  =        Householder Application 
REM  =        Reserved Matters 

COU  =       Change of use 
LBC  =        Listed Building Consent 
CON   =        Conservation Area Consent 

S106    =      Subject to a S106 Obligation 
 

 
 
Kersal And Broughton Park 

 
21/78597/PRI RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE  

 
TIME OF MEETING: 09:30am 

 

PROPOSAL: Prior Approval for proposed two storey upward extension to detached block to 
create additional 8 apartments under Class A, Part 20, Schedule 2 of The Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended 
 
LOCATION: Park Lea Court 

Upper Park Road 
Salford 

 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Morris Moore 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 12



 5 

Boothstown And Ellenbrook 

 

20/76377/FUL RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE   
 
TIME OF MEETING: 09:30am 

 
PROPOSAL: Retrospective planning application for the development of an outdoor 

activities centre in Botany Bay Woods. Activities include archery, crossbow shooting range, 
axe throwing, air rifle shooting range, quad biking, orienteering and bushcraft. 

 
LOCATION: Botany Bay Wood 
Grange Road 

Eccles 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Senior 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Little Hulton 

 

21/78637/FUL RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE   
 
TIME OF MEETING: 09:30am 

 
PROPOSAL: Planning application for 6no. industrial units (Use Classes E(g) (iii) and B8), 

erection of electricity sub-station and associated demolition, car parking and landscaping. 
 
LOCATION: Towngate Business Centre Worsley Trading Estate 

Lester Road 
Little Hulton M38 0PT 

 
APPLICANT: Towngate PLC 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Not Within Salford 

 
22/79155/REM RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE  
 
TIME OF MEETING: 09:30am 

 

PROPOSAL: Cross Boundary Reserved Matters Planning Application between Salford City 
Council and Bolton Council for approval of access, appearance, landscaping and scale for 
the erection of a Regional Distribution Centre (Use Class B8 with ancillary offices) with 

access, car parking, servicing, landscaping and other associated works. 
 

LOCATION: Plot G1 _ G2 
Logistics North 
Bolton BL5 1DB 

 
APPLICANT: Mr Daniel Andrews 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL 
PART I 

SECTION 1: APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION  

$bzkaifi1.docx 

 

 
 

APPLICATION No: 21/78597/PRI 

APPLICANT: Mr Morris Moore 

LOCATION: Park Lea Court, Upper Park Road, Salford, ,  

PROPOSAL: Prior Approval for proposed two storey upward extension to 

detached block to create additional 8 apartments under Class A, 

Part 20, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended 

WARD: Kersal And Broughton Park 

 

REASON FOR PANEL DECISION: 6 or more neighbour objections 

 

 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5a



$bzkaifi1.docx  

Description of Site and Surrounding Area  

 
This application relates to a three-storey, flat roofed, apartment building located on the northern side of Upper 
Park Road in Salford 7. The building currently houses twelve apartments.  

 
Vehicular access to the site is from Upper Park Road. In respect of car parking there is a run of 8 garages located 
on the site’s northern boundary (which were in a poor state of repair at the time of a site visit, appearing to be 

used for storage) with residents parking informally on the hard-surfaced areas located in front of the garages and 
the building itself.  
 

The application site is located within a predominantly residential area being bounded to the north, south and east 
by residential properties including a 4-storey apartment building and two storey detached and terraced properties.  
The Yeshivas Shaarei Torah occupies the land to the west, with the garden area of 149 Bury Old Road also 

wrapping round the western boundary of the site.  
 
The Proposal  

 
Permitted development rights are a national grant of planning permission which allow certain building works and 
changes of use to be carried out without having to make a planning application. Permitted development rights are 

subject to national conditions and limitations. Where a relevant permitted development right is in place, there is 
no need to apply to the local planning authority for permission to carry out that work. In a number of cases, 
however, it may be necessary to obtain prior approval from a local planning authority before carrying out the 

development. Prior approval means that a developer must seek approval from the local planning authority  in order 
to receive confirmation that specified elements of the development are acceptable before work can proceed. The 
matters for prior approval vary depending on the type of development and these are set out in full in the relevant  

Parts in Schedule 2 to the General Permitted Development Order. A local planning authority cannot consider any 
other matters when determining a prior approval application. 
 
The statutory requirements relating to prior approval applications are much less prescriptive than those relating 
to planning applications. National Planning Policy Guidance advises that this is deliberate, as prior approval is a 

light-touch process that applies where the principle of the development has already been established. It is 
important that a local planning authority does not impose unnecessarily onerous requirements on developers and 
does not seek to replicate the planning application system.  

 
The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, Schedule 2, Part 20, 
Class A permits the construction of up to two additional storeys of new dwellinghouses immediately above the 

existing topmost residential storey on a building which is a purpose-built, detached block of flats, together with 
any or all of the following — 
(a) engineering operations reasonably necessary to construct the additional storeys and new dwellinghouses;  

(b) works for the replacement of existing plant or installat ion of additional plant on the roof of the extended building 
reasonably necessary to service the new dwellinghouses; 
(c) works for the construction of appropriate and safe access to and egress from the new and existing 

dwellinghouses, including means of escape from fire, via additional external doors or external staircases;  
(d) works for the construction of storage, waste or other ancillary facilities reasonably necessary to support the 
new dwellinghouses. 

 
A condition of this right is that the developer applies to the Local Planning Authority for a determination as to 
whether the prior approval of the authority will be required as to the — 

a) The transport and highways impacts of the development 
b) Air traffic and defence asset impacts of the development 
c) Contamination risks in relation to the building 

d) Flooding risks in relation to the building 
e) The external appearance of the building 
f) The provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the new dwellinghouses  

g) The impact on the amenity of the existing building and neighbouring premises including overlooking, privacy 
and the loss of light 

h) Whether because of the siting of the building the development will impact on a protected view identified in the 

Directions Relating to Protected Vistas dated 15 March 2021 issued by the secretary of state 
i) Where the existing building is 18metres or more in height the fire safety of the external wall construction of 

the existing building 

Page 16



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 

j) Where the development meets the fire risk condition, the fire safety impact on the intended occupants of the 
building  

 

It is proposed to erect a two-storey extension above the existing 3 storey apartment building. The introduction of 
the extension would allow for an additional 8 apartments to be introduced at the site, all of which would have 2 
bedrooms, measuring 66sqm.   

 
The images below show the existing and proposed elevations – 

Figure 1 – Existing elevations 

 

 
Figure 2 – Proposed elevations 

 

Page 17



$bzkaifi1.docx  

Vehicular access to the site would be retained as existing with 7 car parking spaces being provided in the northern 

most portion of the site, with two garages being converted to provide cycle parking for 6 bikes.  
 
A bin store for eight Eurobins would be provided at the rear the site, together with a bin collection point at the site 

entrance.  
 
The images below show the existing and proposed site layout – 

 

 
Figure 3 – Existing site plan 

 

 
Figure 4 – Proposed site plan 

 

This application has been submitted to obtain a determination from the LPA on whether prior approval is required 
for the development.  

Page 18



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 

Relevant Site History 
 
21/77955/PRI - Prior Approval for proposed two storey upward extension to detached block to create additional 

8 apartments - Refused - 24 August 2021 for the following reason - 
 
The proposed development is not permitted development under Class A, Part 20, Schedule 2 of The Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, as amended, because at 2800mm 
the floor to ceiling height of the new storeys exceeds the floor to ceiling height of the ground floor units which is 
2710mm and consequently the proposal fails to comply with criteria A1(e) which states that the floor to ceiling 

height of any additional storey, measured internally, would exceed the lower of (i) 3 metres or (ii) the floor to 
ceiling height measured internally of any storey of the principal part of the existing building. Planning permission 
is required for the development detailed in this application 
 

Publicity 
 

Site Notice: Site Notice PD Commercial Date Displayed: 12 October 2021 
Reason: Wider Publicity 
 

Press Advert:  N/A 
 
Neighbour Notification  

 
41 neighbouring occupiers have been notified of the application by letter.  
 

Representations 
 
8 letters of objection have been received in response to the application publicity. The following issues have been 

raised – 

 The scale of the development is unacceptable 

 The proposal will result in neighbouring residents experiencing a loss of amenity  

 The proposal will result in neighbouring residents being exposed to increase noise 

 The proposal will result in neighbouring residents experiencing a loss of light, with some neighbours already 
receiving limited light due to the protected trees – people will have to keep their lights on continuously 

 The proposal will result in neighbouring residents being overlooked and result in them experiencing a loss of 
privacy 

 There have been a number of burglaries attempts at nearby properties, all of which have been from Park Lea 
Court – people in the new flats will overlook neighbouring properties and be able to tell if people are at home 
or not 

 The construction works will cause inconvenience to existing tenants  – it will be impossible for anyone already 
living in the building to continue living there if construction works were taking place 

 The proposal will increase traffic in an already busy area with several schools in the vicinity  

 There is already a shortage of on-site parking spaces. The proposal would reduce the existing on-site parking 

capacity and cause traffic congestion, with this having a negative impact upon the safety of pedestrians in the 
area including senior citizens and children - further cars could block the access road and the turning area and 
result in drivers having to reverse into the main road. It could also impede access for emergency vehicles.  

 Occupants within the building have legal rights to stop the development proceeding  

 The existing premises are not being cared for or maintained properly with any further additions decreasing 
the value of the existing flats – the foyers are waterlogged and walls sopping wet 

 The proposal appears to be a greedy, money grabbing attempt by the applicant  

 The proposal would increase energy demand and affect the environment 
 
Consultations 

 
Senior Drainage Engineer –  
Confirm that they have no objections to the application in respect of surface water or fluvial flood risk, advising 

that the applicant should contact United Utilities to discuss the increase in foul flows from the development and 
ensure that there is sufficient capacity within the sewer network to accommodate the increase in foul flows.  
 

Page 19



$bzkaifi1.docx  

Air Quality, Noise, Contaminated Land –  

State that there are no objections to the application on the grounds of air quality or land contamination.  
 
In respect of noise, they advise that there are no significant noise issues with respect to the development, however 

as the area is predominantly residential, they recommend a condition is attached that requires the submission, 
approval and subsequent adherence to a construction environmental management plan.  
 

Highways –  
Advise that they have no objections to the proposal subject to the attachment of conditions that require (a) full 
details of the cycle parking to be submitted and approved in writing by the LPA and subsequently implemented 

prior to the first occupation of the proposed apartments (b) the production, approval and subsequent adherence 
to a waste management plan and (c) the production, approval and subsequent adherence to a construction 
environmental management plan.  

 
Planning Policy 
 

Development Plan Policy 
 
Not relevant 

 
National Planning Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Appraisal  

 
Before considering whether prior approval is required for the proposed development, and if it is whether it should 
be granted, an assessment must first be undertaken to determine whether the proposal constitutes permitted 

development under the terms of Class A of Part 20.  To do this the development is considered against criteria A 
to O of Paragraph A1 of Part 20 below. 
 

Paragraph A1 of Part 2 states that development is not permitted by Class A if - 
 
(a) The permission to use any building as a dwellinghouse has been granted only by virtue of Class M, N, O, P, 

PA or Q of Part 3 of this Schedule; 
 

The use of the existing building as dwellinghouses was not granted under Class M, N, O, P, PA or Q of Part 3 of 

Schedule 2 of the GPDO. 
 

(b) Above ground level, the building is less than 3 storeys in height;  

 
The existing building is three storeys in height.  

 

(c) The building was constructed before 1st July 1948, or after 5th March 2018;  
 

The submission states that the building was constructed between 1st July 1948 and 5th March 2018.  

 
(d) The additional storeys are constructed other than on the principal part of the building; 

 

The additional storeys will be constructed on the principal part of the building.  
 
(e) The floor to ceiling height of any additional storey, measured internally, would exceed the lower of (i ) 3 metres 

or (ii) the floor to ceiling height measured internally of any storey of the principal part of the existing building  
 
As per the extract below the floor to ceiling height of each new storey would not exceed the floor to ceiling height  

measured internally of any storey of the principal part of the existing building  

Page 20



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 
 

(f) The new dwellinghouses are not flats; 
 

The new dwellinghouses are flats.  

 
(g) The height of the highest part of the roof of the extended building would exceed the height of the highest part  

of the roof of the existing building by more than 7 metres (not including plant, in each case);  

 
The height of the highest part of the roof of the extended building does not exceed the height of the highest part 
of the roof of the existing building by more than 7 metres - the existing building measures 8.7-8.95m in height and 

the proposed building would measure 14.6-14.85m in height i.e. an increase in height of 5.9m. 
 

(h) The height of the highest part of the roof of the extended building (not including plant) would be greater than 

30 metres; 
 
The proposed building would measure a maximum of 14.85m in height.  

 
(i) The development would include the provision of visible support structures on or attached to the exterior of 

the building upon completion of the development; 

 
The proposal does not introduce visible support structures on or attached to the exterior of the building.  
 

(j) The development would consist of engineering operations other than works within the existing curtilage of 
the building to— 

(i) Strengthen existing walls; 

(ii) Strengthen existing foundations; or 
(iii) Install or replace water, drainage, electricity, gas or other services;  

 

The submission states that the proposal does not include additional engineering operations to those listed above  
 
(k) In the case of Class A.(b) development (works for the replacement of existing plant or installation of additional 

plant on the roof of the extended building reasonably necessary to service the new dwellinghouses) there is 
no existing plant on the building; 

 

There is no existing plant on the building and the proposal does not include any rooftop plant.  
 

(l) In the case of Class A.(b) development the height of any replaced or additional plant as measured from the 

lowest surface of the new roof on the principal part of the extended building would exceed the height of any 
existing plant as measured from the lowest surface of the existing roof on the principal part of the existing 
building; 

 

Page 21



$bzkaifi1.docx  

Not applicable to this application.  

 
(m) Development under Class A.(c) (works for the construction of appropriate and safe access to and egress 

from the new and existing dwellinghouses including means of escape from fire, via additional doors or 

external staircases) would extend beyond the curtilage of the existing building; 
 

The proposal does not extend beyond the curtilage of the existing building.  

 
(n) Development under Class A.(d) (works for the construction of storage, waste or other ancillary facilities 

reasonably necessary to support the new dwellinghouses) would— 

(i) Extend beyond the curtilage of the existing building; 
(ii) Be situated on land forward of a wall forming the principal elevation of the existing building; or 
(iii) Be situated on land forward of a wall fronting a highway and forming a side elevation of the existing 

building; 
 

The proposal does not extend beyond the curtilage of the existing building.  

 
The proposal is not situated on land forward of a wall forming the principal elevation of the existing building.  
 

The proposal is not situated on land forward of a wall fronting a highway and forming a side elevation of the 
existing building.  

 

(o) The land or site on which the building is located, is or forms part of— 
 
(i) article 2(3) land; 

 
The site does not form part of article 2(3) land. 

 

(ii) A site of special scientific interest; 
 
The site is not of special scientific interest.  

 
(iii) A listed building or land within its curtilage; 

 

The building is not listed nor located within the curtilage of a listed building.  
 

(iv) A scheduled monument or land within its curtilage; 

 
The site is not a scheduled monument nor located on land within its curtilage.  

 

(v) A safety hazard area; 
 
The site is not located within a safety hazard area.  

 
(vi) A military explosives storage area; or 

 

The site is not located within a military explosive storage area. 
 

(vii) Land within 3 kilometres of the perimeter of an aerodrome. 

 
The site is not located within 3km of the perimeter of an aerodrome 
 

It is therefore considered that the proposal constitutes permitted development under the terms of Class A, Part 
20, Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.  
 

Consideration of the relevant matters 
 

a) Transport and Highways Impacts 

 

Page 22



$bzkaifi1.docx  

Vehicular access into the site is taken from Upper Park Road. There are eight garages on site, however these are 

in a dilapidated state and do not appear to be used for parking, with the highways officer having noted that existing 
residents currently park informally along the eastern side of the circa 5.5m wide accessway and within the 
forecourt area to the garages. They estimate that up to 13 vehicles can currently park within the curtilage of the 

site – 7 along the accessway and 6 in the forecourt area.  The garages cannot be counted when calculating 
available on-site parking as their use for parking cannot be guaranteed.  
 

Under the proposal the vehicular access into the site would be retained as existing, with two garages being 
converted in order to allow for the provision of cycle storage. Seven parking spaces would also be formally marked 
out on the forecourt area. Post completion of the development, the highways officer has therefore advised that it 

will be possible for 17 cars to park on site - 7 in the proposed formal spaces, 7 informally along the access road 
and 3 informally on the forecourt area (2 on the western side of the forecourt and 1 in front of the garages). They 
confirm that this would equate to 85% car parking provision with this level of parking being to be deemed 

acceptable.   
 
In respect of the cycle parking, they advise that no security or racking details have been provided with the 

application and therefore a condition re cycle parking will be required to ensure that it is fit for purpose. Moving 
forward they recommend that the cycle parking should be fully covered within a lockable shelter with facility fob 
or key code access, with Sheffield stands being used which are spaced so there is a 1m gap between centre of 

each rack and 0.55m gap between centre of rack and the internal wall of the shelter. Alternatively, they have 
advised that cycle parking could be provided in the form of cycle storage boxes with these providing added 
security.  

 
In respect of dealing with waste, a new bin storage area capable of accommodating eight 1100litre eurobins  would 
be constructed on site, with the submission indicating that on collection day bins would be moved to the front of 

the site and left at a designated bin collection point. The highways officer has advised that they are satisfied that 
adequate on-site bin storage would be provided, with them stating that a waste management plan is required to 
set out how bin collection will be managed.  

 
Having regards to the comments of the highway officer it is not considered that the proposal will have any 
unacceptable adverse impact upon highway safety subject to the attachment of conditions to secure appropriate 

cycle parking and a suitable waste management plan. Further conditions are also required to (a) ensure that the 
proposed car parking spaces are laid out and made available for use prior to the first occupation of the apartments  
and (b) require full details of the bin store to be submitted, approved and installed prior to the first use of the 

apartments.    
 
It is not necessary to attach the condition that the highways officer recommends re the provision, approval and 

subsequent adherence to a construction environmental management plan because any development under Class 
A is permitted subject to the condition that before beginning the development, the developer must provide the 
LPA with a report for the management of the construction of the development, which sets out the proposed 

development hours of operation and how any adverse impact of noise, dust, vibration and traffic on occupiers of 
the building and adjoining owners or occupiers will be mitigated.  
 

b) Air Traffic and Defence Asset Impacts 
 
As extended the new building would measure a maximum of 14.85m and consequently the proposal would not 

have any unacceptable impact on air traffic or defence assets.  
 

c) Contamination Risks 

 
The Council’s environmental officer has been consulted on the application and raised no objections on the 
grounds of land contamination. As such, it is not considered that the proposal raises any issues in respect of 

contaminated land. 
 

d) Flood Risks 

 
The application site lies in Flood Zone 1 where there is a low probability of flooding, with the Council’s drainage 
engineer having reviewed the submission and confirmed that they have no objections to the proposal. As such it 

is not considered that the proposal raises any issues from a flood risk perspective.  As recommended by the 
drainage engineer an informative will be attached to advise the applicant to contact United Utilities to discuss the 

Page 23



$bzkaifi1.docx  

increase in foul flows from the development and ensure that there is sufficient capacity within the sewer network  

to accommodate the increase. 
 

e) External Appearance of the building 

 
The principle of increasing the height of the building has already been established by the introduction of permitted 
development rights to add a further two stories to purpose-built blocks of flats and consequently the proposed 

increase in height is accepted. 
 
The proposed extension would be constructed from standing seam cladding in dark brown and sand yellow in 

order to reflect and respect the dark brown and buff bricks used in the existing building. The proportions of the 
new storeys and their fenestration detailing would be consistent with that of the host building, with the use of grey 
windows being deemed appropriate.  

 
As such, it is not considered that the proposed extension would form an incongruous addition to the existing 
building with the external appearance of the resultant building being deemed appropriate subject to the 

development being carried out and constructed using the materials details in the application.  
 

f) The provision of adequate natural light in all habitable rooms of the new dwellinghouses;  

 
Under Part 3, the GPDO defines “habitable rooms” as “any rooms used or intended to be used for sleeping or 
living which are not solely used for cooking purposes, but does not include bath or toilet facilities, service rooms, 

corridors, laundry rooms, hallways or utility rooms”.  
 
The submitted floor plans and elevations show that all habitable rooms in the proposed apartments would be 

served by full windows, the size of which is deemed sufficient to provide adequate light in the rooms they serve.  
It is therefore considered that adequate natural light would be provided to all habitable rooms.   
 

g) Impact on the amenity of the existing building and neighbouring premises including overlooking, privacy 
and the loss of light; 

 

In respect of overlooking and privacy the building is offset from the flats within Norfolk House and the property at 
149 Bury Old Road.  
 

With regards to the residential units which sit directly facing the application property, the proposed extension 
would not be located any closer to the neighbouring residential properties than the existing building, with 
approximately 30m being provided between the extension and the property on the opposite side of Upper Park 

Road and approximately 32m being provided between the extension and the common boundary with the 
properties at 145 and 147 Bury Old Road. 21m separation would be provided between the extension and the main 
rear elevations of the properties at 1-6 Cadogan Place, with the extension being set in 0.95m from the existing 

main rear wall of the building and a series of protected trees running along the rear boundary of the application 
site providing screening. 
 

For these reasons it is not considered that the proposal would result in neighbouring residents experiencing any 
unacceptable increase in overlooking or loss of privacy.  
 

Similarly in respect of the objection raised on the basis that people in the new flats will overlook neighbouring 
properties and be able to tell if people are at home or not making them more susceptible to being burgled it is 
considered that the separation provided would be sufficient to ensure that  this does not occur.  

 
In order to consider the impact that the proposal will have in respect of light received in neighbouring properties  
and their associated amenity spaces the applicant has commissioned two technical reports - one which considers 

overshadowing to the garden areas of the neighbouring properties on Cadogan Place and another which 
considers the developments impact on light received within the buildings themselves.  
 

The shadowing study uses a 3D computer model to analyse the path of the sun at various times of year/day and 
determine what impact the development will have on the shadow cast onto the neighbouring properties  amenity 
space at different points in the year/day. Consideration is given to both permanent and transient overshadowi ng,  

with the report setting out how the Building Research Establishment (BRE) report 'Site Layout Planning for 
Daylight and Sunlight - A Guide to Good Practice' will be complied with.  It states that “It is recommended that, for 

Page 24



$bzkaifi1.docx  

it to appear adequately sunlit throughout the year, at least half of a garden or amenity area should receive at least 

two hours of sunlight on 21 March. If, as a result of new development, an existing garden or amenity area does 
not meet these guidelines, and the area which can receive some sun on 21 March is less than 0.8 times its former 
value, then the loss of sunlight is likely to be noticeable.”  

 
The information presented demonstrates that the proposed development will result in some additional 
overshadowing to the garden areas of the properties at 4-6 Cadogan Place from 4pm onwards in March, as well 

as a very slight increase in shadowing to the rear portion of the garden areas of 2-6 Cadogan Place from 4pm in 
June. The increase in overshadowing is shown in pink on the images below -  
 

        
4pm 21st March      4pm 21st June 

 
However, the development passes the test of acceptable overshadowing set out in the BRE Guidance with all 

properties on Cadogan Place still receiving good amounts of sunlight and meeting the BRE Guideline. As such it 
is not considered that the development would result in the properties on Cadogan Place experiencing any 
unacceptable overshadowing to their garden areas.  

 
The Daylight Sunlight report examines the impact of the proposed development on the daylight and sunlight 
enjoyed in rooms with windows in the rear elevations of the neighbouring residential properties at 1-6 Cadogan 

Place and those in the front elevation of 7 Cadogan Place.  
 
In respect of daylight the report does this by considering the Vertical Sky Component which is a measure of the 

light reaching a point at the centre of a window (VSC) and the No-Sky Line which is a measure of the distribution 
of daylight within a room (NSL). In respect of sunlight the report considers this by looking at the Annual Probable 
Sunlight Hours received at a window (APSH).   

 
The guidelines set out in the Building Research Establishment (BRE) report 'Site layout planning for daylight and 
sunlight - A guide to good practice' have been used to assess whether the development would result in an 

unacceptable impact in respect of the daylight/sunlight received in neighbouring properties.  
 
In terms of daylight the information presented demonstrates that the greatest impact of the development would 

be on one bedroom window in four of the properties on Cadogan Place - numbers 3, 4, 5 and 6, with these rooms 
seeing a reduction in the distribution of daylight within the room and the proportion of the room that will be lit 
(NSL). The windows would however still benefit from good levels of daylight, with the light reaching the windows 

only being negligibly affected by the development and the levels of light being received at the centre point of the 
windows being compliant with the BRE guidelines.  Having regard to this and given that the BRE guidelines note 
that “In housing, the main requirement for sunlight is in living rooms, where it is valued at any time of day, but 

especially in the afternoon” with bedrooms therefore being treated as less important  (likely due to the nature of 
such rooms and the time spent within them), it is considered that the properties at 1-7 Cadogan Place would still 
receive adequate daylight in the rooms facing the application site.  

 

Page 25



$bzkaifi1.docx  

In respect of sunlight the BRE Guidelines advise that only windows which face within 90degrees of due south 

should be considered. All windows considered met the BRE guidelines in respect of the Annual Probable sunlight 
Hours in both the summer and winter months.  
 

For these reasons it is considered that the development will have no material impact on either daylight or sunlight 
levels in the neighbouring properties on Cadogan Place.  

 
It is not considered that the introduction of 8 new units at the site would result in neighbouring residents 

experiencing an unacceptable increase in the levels of noise and disturbance they are exposed to with the 
Council’s Environmental Consultant not raising any concerns in this regard.  
 

With regards to the impact of the construction phase on neighbouring residents the Council’s Environment 
Consultant advised that this could be adequality dealt with via the attachment of a condition for the provision,  
approval and subsequent adherence to a construction environmental management plan. As set out above any 

development under Class A is permitted subject to the condition that before beginning the development, the 
developer must provide the LPA with a report for the management of the construction of the development, which 
sets out the proposed development hours of operation and how any adverse impact of noise, dust, vibration and 

traffic on occupiers of the building and adjoining owners or occupiers will be mitigated and as such it is not deemed 
necessary to attach such a condition to make the impact of the construction phase acceptable. 
 

h) Impact on protected views 

The application will not impact on a protected view identified in the Directions Relating to Protected Vistas dated 
15 March 2021 issued by the secretary of state 

 
i) Where the existing building is 18metres or more in height the fire safety of the external wall construction 

of the existing building 
 

The existing building is less than 18metres in height and therefore this condition does not apply  
 

j) Where the development meets the fire risk condition, the fire safety impact on the intended occupants of 

the building  
 
As extended the building would be less than 18m in height and comprises less than 7 stories and as such the 

building would not meet the fire risk condition. This condition does not therefore apply.   
 
Other Issues 

In respect of the issues objectors have raised with regard to the condition of the existing property  and devaluat ion 
of property, the fact that occupants have a legal right to stop the development proceeding and the motivations of 
the applicant these are not material planning considerations. 

  
Similarly in respect of the objection made on the basis that the proposal would increase energy demand and affect  
the environment this is not something that can be considered under the limited remit of this prior approval 

application, with the only matters the LPA can consider being set out in the proposal section above.  
 
Recommendation 

 
Prior approval required and given subject to the following conditions  
 

1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans –  
Site location plan – DA21021.001 
Existing and proposed site plan – DA21021.1 006 Rev 1  

Proposed floorplans – DA21021.1.004  
Proposed elevations – DA21021.1.005 
Site section existing and proposed – DA21021.1.202 

Proposed section – DA21021.1 007 Rev 1 
Proposed materials detail – DA21021.1.201 Rev 1 
Section Façade – DA21021.1 203 Rev 1 

Page 26



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.  
 
2. Prior to the first occupation of the apartments hereby approved full details of the cycle parking provision 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved cycle parking 
shall be implemented and made available for its intended use prior to the first occupation of the apartments  
hereby approved and shall be retained thereafter. 

 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to reduce traffic flow by encouraging more sustainable modes 
of travel 

 
3. Prior to the first occupation of the apartments hereby approved, details of the materials  and design of the 

bin store shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved bin 

store shall be installed prior to first occupation of the development and maintained as such thereafter. 
 

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity and to ensure that adequate bin storage facilities 

are provided clear of the highway 
 
4. Prior to first occupation of the apartments hereby permitted, a Waste Management Plan shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved waste management plan shall be 
adhered to throughout the life of the development, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: In the interests of the safe and efficient operation of the highway network  and to minimise potential 
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and other road users  

 
5. The vehicle parking spaces shown on the approved plans shall be made available for use prior to the first 

occupation of the apartments hereby approved and shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose.  

 
Reason: To ensure adequate on-site park ing is provided in the interest of highway safety and the free flow 
of traffic 

 
 
Notes to Applicant 

 
The developer must comply with other conditions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015 (as amended), Schedule 2, Part 20, Class A. For the avoidance of doubt, some of 

these conditions have been detailed within this decision notice. However, it is the developer's responsibility to 
check the legislation. 
 

Any development under Class A is permitted subject to the condition that it must be completed within a period of 
3 years starting with the date prior approval is granted 
 

Any development under Class A is permitted subject to the condition that before beginning the development, the 
developer must provide the local planning authority with a report for the management of the construction of the 
development, which sets out the proposed development hours of operation and how any adverse impact of noise, 

dust, vibration and traffic on occupiers of the building and adjoining owners or occupiers will be mitigated.  
 
The developer must notify the local planning authority of the completion of the development as soon as reasonably  

practicable after completion. This notification must be in writing and must include— 
(a) the name of the developer; 
(b) the address or location of the development; and 

(c) the date of completion. 
 
Any new dwellinghouse created under Class A is to remain in use as a dwellinghouse within the meaning of Class 

C3 of the Schedule to the Use Classes Order and for no other purpose, except to the extent that the other purpose 
is ancillary to the primary use as a dwellinghouse.  
 

When preparing the waste management plan required by condition 4 the developer should be aware that highways 
have advised that the following elements should be included -  

Page 27



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 The Address of application site; 

 Details of the type of development and its scale. 

 Where the service / refuse vehicles will park to unload / collect bins from the identified holding areas and 
including routing, including swept paths where relevant; 

 Details of how bins will be moved from the identified bin stores to the collection point;  

 Confirmation on who will be responsible for moving bins to holding areas, if necessary; 

 Where the bins will be temporarily located on the highway (a ‘holding area’) immediately prior to and post 
refuse collection; 

 The proposed hours of collection and frequency of collection;  

 A collection schedule to demonstrate that the bin stores are of sufficient size;  

 The maximum size of the vehicles that scheme is designed for;  

 Property Management Agent / Contractor contact details 
Please note that the SCC Local Highway Authority would request that no waste and waste bins to be left out on 

the adopted highway or collected anywhere outside the curtilage of the development. Emptied waste bins must 
be put back in allocated bin storage area soon after collection have been undertaken and must not left out at the 
collection point. 

 
When preparing the report for the management of the construction of the development the developer should be 
aware that highways consider that the following elements should be covered -  

 The times of construction activities on site which, unless agreed otherwise as part of the approved Statement, 
shall be limited to between 8am-6pm Monday to Friday and 9am-2pm Saturday only (no working on Sundays 
or Bank Holidays). Quieter activities which are carried out inside buildings  such as electrical works, plumbing 

and plastering may take place outside of agreed working times so long as they do not result in significant  
disturbance to neighbouring occupiers; 

 The spaces for and management of the parking of site operatives and visitors – Provide a plan showing 
parking arrangement; 

 The storage and management of plant and materials (including loading and unloading activities) - Provide a 
plan showing the storage location; 

 The erection and maintenance of security hoardings including decorative displays and facilities    for public 

viewing, where appropriate - Provide a plan showing appropriate details and location of the security hoarding;  

 Measures to prevent the deposition of dirt on the public highway; 

 Maintenance of Road Cleanliness: 
a) ‘Site entrance ahead’ signs shall be displayed on all approaches during working hours;  

b) Every effort to clean mud/debris BEFORE a vehicle leaves your site i.e. Industrial ‘bath type’ wheel wash, 
pressure washing. 
c) If you have vehicle manoeuvres on and off site, that could potentially deposit mud and debris, you need 

to ensure that you deploy a street cleansing vehicle/vehicles during the activity and not just at the end of the 
morning or afternoon shift; 
d) You shall have signs available (on site) and deploy at the first signs mud being deposited on the adopted 

highway i.e. slippery road sign with ‘Mud on Road’ sub plates.  

 Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during demolition/construction;  

 A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition/construction works; 

 Measures to minimise disturbance to any neighbouring occupiers from noise and vibration, including from any 

construction vehicles and construction work; 

 Measures to prevent the pollution of watercourses; 

 A community engagement strategy which explains how local neighbours will be kept updated on the 
construction process, key milestones, and how they can report to the site manager or other appropriate 

representative of the developer, instances of un-neighbourly behaviour from construction operatives.  The 
statement shall also detail the steps that will be taken when un-neighbourly behaviour has been reported. A 
log of all reported instances shall be kept on record and made available for inspection by the local a planning 

authority upon request; and 

 A commitment that prior to ANY works commencing on site the developer shall contact the LHA to arrange a 
full dilapidation/Condition Survey of all adopted highways surrounding the site. For the full duration of the 

construction, the developer will be responsible for ‘Wear & Tear’ /accelerated deterioration’ of all existing 
highways, either adjacent to the site or highways used as access and egress to the site. Any necessary 
remedial works will be carried out under licence and at the developer’s expense. 

 
The highways officer has stated that – 

Page 28



$bzkaifi1.docx  

 Prior to ANY works commencing on site the developer shall contact John Horrocks/Pam Docksey to arrange 

a full dilapidation/Condition Survey of all adopted highways surrounding the site. Tel: 0161 603 4046/4006 

 Applications for all forms of highway permits/licenses shall be made in advance of any works being undertaken 
on the adopted highway Note: NO boundary fencing shall be erected or positioned on any part of the adopted 
highway prior to first seeking the relevant permits/licenses from the Local Highway Authority Tel: 0161 603 

4046/4006 
 

 The applicant should contact United Utilities to discuss the increase in foul flows from the development and 

ensure that there is sufficient capacity within the sewer network to accommodate the increase in foul flows  
 

 The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related 

hazards.  If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported 
immediately to the Coal Authority on 0345 762 6848. 

 

Further information is also available on the Coal Authority website at:  
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority  
 

Standing Advice valid from 1st January 2021 until 31st December 2022 
 

 The applicant is advised that they have a duty to adhere to the regulations of Part 2A of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990, the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the current Building Control 

Regulations with regards to contaminated land. The responsibility to ensure the safe development of land 
affected by contamination rests primarily with the developer.  

 

 
 
 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL 
PART I 

SECTION 1: APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION  

 

APPLICATION No: 20/76377/FUL 

APPLICANT: Adventure Now 

LOCATION: Botany Bay Wood, Grange Road, Eccles  

PROPOSAL: Retrospective planning application for the development of an 

outdoor activities centre in Botany Bay Woods. Activities 

include archery, crossbow shooting range, axe throwing, air rifle 

shooting range, quad biking, orienteering and bushcraft 

WARD: 

 

REASON FOR 
PANEL DECISION: 

 

Boothstown and Ellenbrook 

 

Site area greater than 2 hectares (6.77h) 

 
Figure 1 – Site Location Plan 

 
Description of Site and Surrounding Area 

 
The application relates to a parcel of land within Botany Bay Wood, extending to circa 6.7ha, and is comprised of 
a dense area of woodland. The site is bounded by an un-named track to the east, a watercourse/surface water 

drain to the south (‘Blue Box Ditch’), Shaw Brook to the west and to the north the boundary is marked by a notable 
change in tree species. The site is located within the Green Belt (UDP Policy EN1) and within the Mosslands 
(UDP Policy EN11), being part of Worsley Moss.  

 
The site is accessed via a track which runs roughly north-south from The Avenue, an east-west route across 
Worsley Moss, which in turn is accessed via an un-named track which connects to Grange Road to the east, on 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5b



  

the opposite side of the M60 motorway. Due to access restrictions on other surrounding tracks, this is the only 

vehicular access to the site. 
 
Botany Bay is the largest single block of woodland in Greater Manchester and is designated as a Site of Biological 

Importance (Grade A). Botany Bay Wood is also recognised as a potential Site of Special Scientific Interest (a 
‘pSSSI’) by Natural England, in the main due to the presence of one of the country’s largest heronries at the 
western end of the wood – the heronry has, however, contracted in recent years and a SSSI designation has not 

been confirmed. 
 
There are number of other outdoor sports and recreational facilities within the immediate surrounding area 

including the Manchester Clay Shooting Club to the south and the ‘Delta Force’ paintball facility to the south-east. 
 
The site predominantly sits within Flood Zone 1, however the western edge of the site, adjacent to Shaw Brook, 

sits within both Flood Zones 2 and 3. 
 

 
Figure 2 – Aerial photo of application site 

 
Description of Proposal 

 
The application seeks retrospective (work on the development commenced in August 2018) planning permission 
for development of an outdoor activities centre. 

 
Instructor-led outdoor recreational activities provided on site consist of:  

 Archery; 

 Crossbows; 

 Axe throwing; 

 Air rifle shooting; 

 Quad biking (around an established track); 

 Bushcraft; 

 Orienteering; and 

 Team-building exercises and education provision. 
 
A number of shelters, structures and storage areas have been erected on site including:  

 Reception ‘building’ – a wooden structure with corrugated bitumen sheet dual-pitch roof supported above 
two 21ft X 9ft shipping containers (‘A’ and ‘B’) – approx. 9.7m by 10m and 4.2m high; 

Page 32



  

 A wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the rifle range (‘Shelter B’) – 10m by 3.2m and 3m high; 

 A wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the archery range (‘Shelter C’) – 10m by 4.8m and 2.8m 
high; 

 Two standard shipping containers (21 and 24 ft) used for storage (‘C’ and ‘D’) which are clad in wooden 
panels; and 

 One ‘portaloo’. 
The shelters are focussed within the south-eastern corner of the site, near to the access track. 
 

The application includes for an additional proposed wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the crossbow range 
(‘Shelter D’) – 10m by 3.2m and 3m high; 
 

Staffing levels, as set out in the submission, are five FTE persons, which the applicant proposes may increase to 
seven FTE persons as business/bookings increase. The hours of operation are 1100-1700 Monday to Sunday. 
 

 
Figure 3 – Site Layout 

 

Page 33



  

 
Figure 4 – Core Site Layout 

  

Page 34



  

Site Planning History 

 
04/48900/HYBEIA (‘Salford Forest Park’) 
A Forest Park comprising a Forest Centre including Eco Village, Timber Initiative and Woodland Wildlife Centres,  

timber workshop, children's woodland adventure play area and treetop walkway; equestrian centre; all weather 
and turf track racecourse and equestrian eventing area; cross country eventing course; grandstand and 
associated buildings; refurbishment of Malkins Wood farmhouse to residential accommodation for equestrian 

centre manager; refurbishment of Moss House Farmhouse and conversion and extension of two barns to form a 
hotel (80 guests); golf course and clubhouse and change of use of agricultural building for golf course 
maintenance; footpath and riding trails and cyclepaths; roads and connection to J13 M60, replacement canal 

bridge, new canal bridge and bridge over Shaw Brook; car parking; landscaping including ground remodelling 
creation of water bodies and woodland planting; site infrastructure including fencing, lighting, services and sub 
stations; and site accommodation works including culverts and watercourse diversions – Refused | Appeal 

Dismissed 
 
 

Relevant Adjacent Planning History 
 
‘Delta Force’ Paintball 

21/79011/FUL 
Continued use of land for recreational paintball games and retention of ancillary basecamp and game zone 
structures – Decision Pending 

 
Manchester Clay Shooting Club 
E/23693 

Use of land for clay pigeon shooting – Approved 
 
95/34250/COU 

Change of permitted clay pigeon shooting from a maximum of 4 hours on any day between 10am and 9pm and 
10am and 6pm at weekends, and no more than 156 days in any year to unlimited shooting Wednesdays to 
Sundays from 10am to 4pm - Refused 

 
Neighbour Notification 
 

8 registered properties in the vicinity of the site and access were notified of the application. Site notices were 
placed on the access track to the site (from The Avenue) and at Grange Road, Eccles. 
 

Publicity 
 
Site Notice: Non HH Article 15  

Reason: Wider Publicity 
 
Press Advert: Manchester Weekly News Salford Edition Date Published: 4 March 2021 

Reason: Article 15 Standard Press Notice 
 
Representations 

 
Three letters of objection have been received, summarised as follows: 
 

 C – Comment Received         R – Officer Response 

C The area is already used for clay pigeon shooting, which can be heard from Boothstown.  

The quad bikes will increase the noise, in addition to recent increased noise from the smart 
motorway and aircraft from Barton Aerodrome, and should not be given permission. 

R The application site is located approximately 1.2km from the nearest occupied residential 
properties, and approximately 1.35km from the cluster of dwellings centred around 

Grange Road. The Council’s Environmental Consultant has reviewed the proposals and 
considers that the activities undertaken on site are unlikely to create any noise impacts 
over and above those arising from existing adjacent uses within the vicinity. In particular, it 

Page 35



  

should be noted that the background noise profile in areas surrounding the site is 
dominated by traffic from the M60 and M62 motorways.  

C The Council should consider the wildlife in Botany Bay and their welfare. 

R The ecological impacts of the development are considered in detail in the relevant 

analysis section below. Consultation has been undertaken with the Greater Manchester 
Ecology Unit, who have concluded that the development is acceptable subject to 
appropriate mitigation and enhancement measures. 

C All traffic to the site has to use Grange Road, in addition to the heavy traffic to the farm, 

traffic accessing the gun club and paint balling facilities, and the traffic from residents 
themselves. Grange Road is part of the Port Salford Greenway – pedestrians already 
have to use the road to walk, due to the inadequate state of the pavements, and there are 

problems with speeding traffic. If planning permission is granted Grange Road will receive 
the same amount of traffic and pollution as a main road. 

R The highway arrangement along Grange Road is unconventional, given that the footways 
are not adopted and generally comprise a combination of surfaces including sections of 

tarmac, concrete pavers and loose-laid gravel. The majority of the length of the road does, 
however, benefit from footway provision on both sides of the carriageway.  The potential 
for conflict between pedestrians and vehicles is therefore generally  minimised. There is no 

available evidence of excessive vehicle speeds along Grange Road or of existing road 
safety deficiencies (taking into account publicly accessible accident data, including the 
TfGM database). 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Local Highway Authority, which has raised no 
objection. Given the scale and nature of the development, it is not considered that the 

resulting traffic movements give rise to any unacceptable impact on the capacity, function 
or safety of the surrounding highway network. 

 
Consultations 

 
Air Quality, Noise and Contaminated Land 
Air Quality 

The site is not within the GM Air Quality Management Area. The scale and nature of the development is not likely 
to have a significant impact on traffic.  As such I have no objections to the development on Air Quality Grounds. 
 

Noise 
The application site is located in an area of the woodland adjacent to existing outdoor leisure uses (Manchester 
Clay Shooting Club, Paintball Club and an Air Gun club). The plot (identified as Plot C within the Planning 

Statement) is located between 1.2km and 1.5km from any residential properties which may be impacted by noise, 
in most cases these residential areas are beyond the motorway. The planned activities are, in my view, unlikely 
to create any noise over and above existing adjacent uses. As such, I have no objections to this application on 

the grounds of noise. 
 
Land Contamination 

There are no land contamination issues associated with this development.  
 
City Airport (Manchester Barton) 

No objection. 
 
Drainage and Flood Risk 

No objection. 
 
Design for Security 

Recommend that the applicant complies with the security specifications set out in sections 3.3 & 4 of the Crime 
Impact Statement. 
 

Environment Agency 
No objection. Note that requisite ecological enhancements proposed will necessitate a management and 
monitoring plan to be in place (landscape and ecological management plan); relevant conditions are required.  

Page 36



  

The development may require a permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations for any proposed works 

within 8m of Shaw Brook and Blue Box Ditch. 
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit 

No objection subject to mitigation and enhancement measures [N.B. Further detail is set out in the relevant  
Analysis below]. 
 

Highways 
No objection to the application in principle, but recommend that the car parking capacity is increased. 
 

Natural England 
Confirm that Natural England has no comments to make on this application. Refer the LPA to Standing Advice 
and recommend consulting local ecological advice services. 

 
Planning Policy 
 

Development Plan Policy 
 
NPPF Paragraph 219 establishes that existing policies (such as Salford’s UDP) are not out -of-date simply 

because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of NPPF.  Due weight should be given to them, 
according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, and the closer the policies in the UDP to the policies in 
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given. In terms of this application it is considered that the relevant  

policies of the UDP can be afforded due weight for the purposes of decision making as the relevant criteria within 
the UDP policies applicable to the proposed development are consistent with the policies contained in the NPPF.  
 

City of Salford Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
 
Policy ST13  -  Natural Environments Assets 

Policy DES1  -  Respecting Context 
Policy DES2  -  Circulation and Movement 
Policy DES7  -  Amenity of Users and Neighbours 

Policy DES9  -  Landscaping 
Policy DES10  -  Design and Crime 
Policy A2  -  Cyclists, Pedestrians and the Disabled 

Policy A8  -  Impact of Development on Highway Network 
Policy A10  -  Provision of Car, Cycle and Motorcycle Parking in New Developments 
Policy A14  -  Barton Aerodrome 

Policy EN1  -  Development Affecting the Green Belt 
Policy EN7  -  Nature Conservation Sites of National Importance 
Policy EN8  -  Nature Conservation Sites of Local Importance 

Policy EN11  -  Mosslands 
Policy EN12  -  Important Landscape Features 
Policy EN17  -  Pollution Control 

Policy EN18  -  Protection of Water Courses 
Policy EN19  -  Flood Risk and Surface Water 
Policy R2  -  Provision of Recreation Land and Facilities 

Policy DEV5  -  Planning Conditions and Obligations 
 
Emerging Plans 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Paragraph 48 establishes that local planning authorities may 
give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:  

(a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the 
weight that may be given); 

(b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the 

unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
(c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the closer the 

policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).  

 
There are currently two emerging plans to consider. 

Page 37



  

Places for Everyone (PfE) 

Places for Everyone Publication Plan, the joint Development Plan Document for nine districts in Greater 
Manchester, which was published for consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 on 9 August 2021. Representations were invited until 3 October 2021; the 

plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 14 February 2022 and examination hearings are 
due to commence in Summer 2022. The emerging policies which are relevant to this application are discussed 
where applicable in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF Paragraph 48. 

 
Local Plan (SLP:DMP) 
The Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies and Designations (SLP:DMP) was 

published on 27 January 2020 and comments were invited until 20 March 2020.  An Addendum was published 
on 5 February 2021 and comments were invited on this until 19 March 2021. The Publication SMP:DMP and the 
Addendum were submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 30 June 2021 and the examination 

hearings took place over 7 days in December 2021. The plan has been subject to a significant amount of public 
consultation in previous stages of its production and the city council has considered the comments made to 
determine the extent to which there are unresolved objections to its policies. Those policies (i.e. the Publication 

SLP:DMP policies as modified through the Addendum) which are relevant to this application are discussed where 
appropriate in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF Paragraph 48.  It is 
expected that the SLP:DMP will be adopted in Summer 2022. 

 
Other Material Planning Considerations 
 

National 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
Local Planning Policy 

 
Supplementary Planning Document  -  Sustainable Design and Construction 
Supplementary Planning Document  -  Design 

Supplementary Planning Document  -  Nature Conservation and Biodiversity 
Supplementary Planning Document  -  Design and Crime 
Supplementary Planning Document  -  Trees and Development 

Supplementary Planning Guidance  -  Flood Risk and Development 
 
Local Finance Considerations 

 
It is not considered that there are any local finance considerations that are material to the application.  
 

Appraisal  
 
Principle of Development and Visual Impact 

 
The application site is located within the Green Belt, as defined on the Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map. 
Policy EN1 of the UDP is relevant, which sets out that other than in very special circumstances inappropriate 

development will not be permitted within the Green Belt.  
 
The policy continues to set out that a material change in the use of land is inappropriate development unless it 

maintains openness and does not conflict with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. It also sets out 
that the construction of new buildings within the Green Belt is to be considered inappropriate unless for specified 
purposes; one such specified exception is essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation.  

 
The National Planning Policy Framework sets out that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent  
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness 

and their permanence (Paragraph 137). Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt 
and should not be approved except in very special circumstances (Paragraph 147).  Substantial weight should be 
given to any harm to the Green Belt and very special circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the 

Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed 
by other considerations (Paragraph 148). 

Page 38



  

 

Paragraph 149 of the NPPF sets out that the construction of new buildings should be considered inappropriate in 
the Green Belt except for in specified circumstances, one of which is the provision of appropriate facilities (in 
connection with the existing use of land or a change of use) for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, as long as 

the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within 
it. 
 

Paragraph 150 of the NPPF sets out that certain other forms of development are also not inappropriate in the 
Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the ‘Green Belt purposes’, including 
material changes in the use of land, such as changes of use for outdoor sport or recreation.  

 
The drafting of UDP Policy EN1 differs slightly from the NPPF in that it refers to “essential facilities” for outdoor 
sport and recreation (the term used in the now revoked Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts) rather than 

“appropriate facilities”, the term adopted in the NPPF. According to Paragraph 219 of the NPPF, due weight should 
be given to policies within the Development Plan according to their degree of consistency with the Framework  – 
weight can therefore be afforded to UDP Policy EN1, however, the relevant test following adoption of the NPPF 

is with respect to ‘appropriate’ rather than ‘essential’ facilities.  
 
Use of the Land 

The application seeks planning permission for the use of land for the provision of various activities: Archery; 
Crossbow firing; Axe throwing; Air rifle shooting; Quad biking (around an established track); Bushcraft; and 
Orienteering. All of these activities may be considered to comprise outdoor recreational activities. It is not 

considered that the undertaking of the activities themselves conflicts with the preservation of the openness of the 
Green Belt. Neither does the use of the land for the activities result in any conflict with the five purposes of 
including land within it (as set out at NPPF Paragraph 138):   

(a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; 
(b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; 
(c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;  

(d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 
(e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban land. 

 

It is therefore considered that the material change of use in land for which permission is sought does not comprise 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, given that it complies with the exception set out at Paragraph 150(e) 
of the NPPF and the relevant exception set out under Policy EN1 of the UDP.  

 
Built Development 
In addition to the change of use of the land, the application also seeks retrospective planning permission for the 

installation/construction of facilities which have been provided in order to support provision of the recreational 
activities on site. These facilities comprise a number of shelters, structures and storage areas including:  

 Reception ‘building’ – a wooden structure with corrugated bitumen sheet dual-pitch roof supported above 

two 21ft X 9ft shipping containers; 

 A wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the rifle range; 

 A wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the archery range; 

 Two standard shipping containers (21 and 24 ft) used for storage which are clad in wooden panels; and 

 One ‘portaloo’. 
The application also proposes the installation of an additional wooden shelter with bitumen sheet roof at the 
crossbow range. The shelters and structures are focussed within the south-eastern corner of the site, near to the 
access track. 

 
All of the facilities provided are of lightweight construction or could be easily transported away from the site, 
comprising combinations of moveable shipping containers  and lightweight wooden-framed structures. The 

shelters do, ultimately, have a degree of permanency and can be reasonably considered to comprise ‘buildings’ 
for planning purposes. 
 

It is apparent that the facilities provided on site have been kept to the minimum necessary to provide an adequate 
degree of shelter and standard of welfare for visitors and staff.  The structures are appreciably related to the 
activities undertaken on site and are therefore considered to comprise appropriate (and also essential) facilities 

for provision of outdoor recreational activities. The remaining tests are therefore whether the facilities fail to 
preserve the openness of the Green Belt and whether they conflict with the purposes of including land within it.  

Page 39



  

The shelters are each modestly sized and, particularly by virtue of the natural materials used in construction or 

their cladding, are generally well screened. The overriding characteristic of the site is that it comprises mature,  
dense woodland and therefore views into and out of the site are extremely limited. The shelters are therefore only 
visible at very close range.  

 
The term ‘openness’ is ultimately a broad policy concept and is open-textured, with a number of factors capable 
of being relevant to applying the concept to any particular case. Although there is clearly a small-scale, technical 

‘volumetric’ or ‘spatial’ impact on openness which arises from the presence of the shelters, this is only one element  
of the consideration of whether the shelters fail to preserve the openness of this area of Green Belt. In taking into 
account the particular locational factors (and therefore the existing sense of ‘openness’ in this location given it 

comprises dense woodland) the limited size, light-weight construction, materials and detailed appearance of the 
shelters, and noting in particular their extremely limited visibility, and the resultant visual impact of the shelters on 
openness, or rather the lack thereof, it is not considered that the shelters, and therefore the development as a 

whole, fail to preserve the openness of the Green Belt in this particular location.   
 

 
Figure 5 – Reception Shelter 

 

 
Figure 6 – Rifle and Archery Range Shelters 

Page 40



  

The built aspects of the development, due to their scale, location and setting, do not conflict with any of the five 

purposes of Green Belt as set out at Paragraph 138 of the NPPF.  
 
It is therefore considered that the built development for which permission is sought does not comprise 

inappropriate development in the Green Belt, given that it complies with the exception set out at Paragraph 149(b) 
of the NPPF and the relevant exception set out under Policy EN1(ii) of the UDP.  
 

Visual Impact – Impact on Character and Appearance 
The character of the site is that of mature and dense woodland. The applicant has sought to mitigate the potentially 
incongruous appearance of the shipping containers used on site by largely cladding the external elevations of the 

buildings with wooden panels. The lighter-weight shelters used at the firing ranges have been constructed using 
largely natural materials, primarily wood, and are colour treated in order to better blend with the surroundings.  
The scheme is generally considered to be sensitive to the appearance and character of the site and no conflict is 

identified with the relevant provisions of Policies DES1 and DES9 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 
and the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 

Summary 
The development comprises an appropriate facility for outdoor recreation, preserves openness and does not 
conflict with the purposes of Green Belt. It is therefore concluded that the development does not constitute 

inappropriate development in the Green Belt and no conflict arises with the relevant provisions of the NPPF, nor 
the provisions of Policy EN1 of the UDP, both of which seek to protect the Green Belt from inappropriate 
development, and preserve its openness and permanence. 

 
Arboricultural and Ecological Impacts 
 

The site is located within the Botany Bay Grade A Site of Biological Importance (SBI), a plantation lowland 
broadleaf mixed woodland and coniferous woodland which is the largest single block of woodland in Greater 
Manchester. The application site represents approximately 5% of Botany Bay Woods. The wider SBI also supports 

a nationally important heronry, in the western end of the wood, which has historically been recognised by Natural 
England as a potential Site of Special Scientific Interest (pSSSI).  The site is a Priority Habitat as identified within 
Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006.  

 
Operational development works have already been carried out on site, with the quad bike tracks now well -
established and the shelters/shooting ranges etc. in place. It is understood that no existing trees were removed 

in order to carry out these works, with natural clearings used as the locations for the infrastructure; this includes 
the car park area to the frontage. No conflict has therefore been identified with Policy EN12 of the UDP with 
respect to arboricultural impacts.  

 
Assessment of Condition 
The application is accompanied by an Ecological Appraisal, which includes a breeding bird survey undertaken on 

three separate occasions. The Appraisal has been subject of assessment by the Greater Manchester Ecology 
Unit, who consider the survey and assessment efforts to be appropriate.  
 

The majority of the site is lowland mixed deciduous woodland comprised of oak, birch, occasional beech and 
sycamore trees with an understory of holly, rhododendron and very rarely bramble. The ground layer is 
characterised by bramble, with patches of creeping soft-grass and wavy hair grass. Broad buckler fern is frequent .  

The woodland shows diversity in age range due to the variation in composition. Dead wood is frequent.  Himalayan 
balsam is frequent around the watercourse to the southern boundary of the site.  
 

The coniferous woodland covering the western portion of the site is dominated by planted Scots pine wi th larch. 
The understory is sparse with occasional young oak, holly, birch, rhododendron, broad buckler fern and light 
bramble. The western boundary adjacent to the Shaw Brook supports broadleaf woodland, including beech and 

alder. There is occasional Himalayan balsam along this edge of the site. 
 

Page 41



  

 
Figure 7 – Map of Broad Habitat Types (Extract from Ecological Appraisal) 

 
The breeding bird assessment was largely undertaken when outdoor activities at the site were suspended due to 
restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic and can therefore be considered a baseline for the site. 20 breeding 

species are recorded, which is within the criteria for selection as an SBI and includes 2 Section 41 Species of 
Principal Importance (Dunnock (4 estimated territories) and Song Thrush (3 estimated territories)) along with 
Mistle Thrush and Willow Warbler, which are considered declining species nationally (RSPB ‘Red’ and ‘Amber’ 

respectively).  
 
The condition of the ground flora is typical of woodlands on this substrate in Greater Manchester and GMEU 

concur with the assessment of condition as identified within the Appraisal  (the broadleaf woodland has potential 
to be improved, whilst the coniferous woodland is currently in ‘good’ condition).  
 

Invasive Plant Species 
Himalayan balsam is present along the western boundary and is abundant on adjacent land. This species is 
problematic because it colonises large areas of ground, particularly near streams and in wet areas of woodland.  

Rhododendron is abundant throughout the site and within adjacent woodland. This species is problematic due to 
the fact it outcompetes most native species and, because it is not native, does not provide suitable habitat for 
native wildlife. 

 
Proposals for invasive plant species management are set out within the Biodiversity Enhancement Management 
Plan, discussed in further detail below. 

 
Impact on Heronry (pSSSI) 
The application site is a significant distance from the heronry, which supports up to 30 breeding pairs of the bird 

(according to data which informed the SBI description dating from 2013). It was this feature that in the past 
warranted the wider site’s consideration as a pSSSI, although this possible designation has not been confirmed 
by Natural England in recent years. GMEU have concluded that the development does not have any impact on 
the heronry.  

 
Impacts arising from Activities (excluding Quad Biking) 
In accordance with the findings of the submitted Appraisal, GMEU are satisfied that the non-quad bike activities 

– archery, axe-throwing, air rifles, family/group orienteering and bush crafts - may continue with no greater 
adverse impact on the selection features of the SBI. These activities are considered to have no greater impact 
than is experienced in other SBIs, which are more accessible to the general public; in this location activities are 

in fact more controlled given the presence of instructors and the use of designated/defined activity areas (‘cages’).  
 
Impacts arising from Quad Biking 

The impact assessment within the Ecological Appraisal concludes that the noise & visual disturbance from the 
quad bike operations could, without mitigation, detrimentally impact the breeding bird assemblage. The quad bike 
track has the most significant potential impact on ground flora, without mitigation, given the potential 

erosion/disturbance arising from the tracking activities. 

Page 42



  

 

The applicant has set out that the quad bike track is designed for ‘technical’ driving courses  (30-50 minutes in 
duration), with small groups of riders (maximum 6) led by 1 or 2 instructors, navigating a track which contains 
obstacles and challenges, rather than being a ‘racetrack’-style course. 

 
Riders are not permitted to leave the track, drive fast or do anything which is not strictl y monitored by the 
instructor(s). The track comprises a dirt track, in places built-up using locally-sourced logs and woodchip, which 

has been created by following the ‘line of least resistance’ around the woodland – the applicant has confirmed 
that no trees were felled in order to create the track, although some rhododendron was cut back in order to allow 
tracks to be joined to one another. Along the majority of the length of the tracks, logs and substantial branches 

have been used to mark the perimeter of the track. It is therefore considered that appropriate measures have and 
are being taken to, in the first instance, minimise the potential impacts of the quad-biking activities 
 

In the interests of mitigating the residual impacts, a Biodiversity Enhancement and Management Plan (BEMP) 
has been submitted which sets out the aims, objectives and measures to be implemented to ensure the retention 
of the ecological functionality, and enhancement of woodland within the site. The proposals are summarised as 

follows: 

 Implementation of a 5-year management plan including control of rhododendron (gradual removal to allow 
growth of ground flora, and establishment of sapling trees and bramble) and woodland management,  

essentially on a non-intervention basis. Control of rhododendron is focused to allow existing stands to act 
as a visual and sound buffer between the quad bike track and the larger areas of less disturbed woodland.  

 Treatment and control of Himalayan balsam around the site boundaries. 

 Introduction of 25 bird boxes (15 within the broadleaf woodland and 10 within the coniferous woodland)  

in order to enhance the carrying capacity for nesting birds elsewhere in the woodland. The specification 
within the BEMP includes for use of ‘hole entrance’ bird nest boxes – GMEU have recommended that 
these are removed from the plan and replaced with willow tit nesting opportunities.  

 Introduction of 25 Kent bat boxes (15 on mature trees within the broadleaf woodland and 10 on mature 
trees within the coniferous woodland). Although the activities on site are considered unlikely to affect the 
bat resource, these measures are considered enhancement.  

 5-year monitoring programme in years 1, 3 and 5 of breeding birds, distribution of invasive plant species 
(rhododendron and Himalayan balsam) and incidental recording of other species. GMEU have also 
recommended that the applicant is required to provide usage/visitor numbers at each monitoring event .  
The results of the monitoring should be supplied in writing to the LPA in order to demonstrate 

implementation and agree adjustments if necessary. 

 Prevention of potential damage to the woodland in respect of maintenance of the quad bike track.  
 

GMEU have reviewed the submitted Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan and, subject to minor 
alterations and additional measures set out above to be secured by condition, they consider that the content is 
acceptable. 

 
GMEU have also suggested a number of additional measures in order to mitigate the potential impacts of the 
scheme, as follows: 

 Secure the route of the quad bike track, in order that consent of the LPA would need to be sought for any 
variations/extensions; 

 Restrict which materials may be used in order to carry out ongoing repairs to the quad bike track in order 
to ensure the integrity of the chemical composition of the woodland substrate and to mitigate the risk of 

potential importation of invasive plant species 

 Secure operating times in order to prevent disturbance to crepuscular animals (those which appear or are 
active in twilight) such as bat, hedgehog and badger. 

These measures are secured by way of the recommended conditions below.  
 
GMEU have raised no objection to the application, subject to the above measures being appropriately secured 

and implemented; accordingly, it is considered that the development can be accommodated on the site without  
adversely affecting the nature conservation value of the woodland, with appropriate mitigation, enhancement and 
management measures (including monitoring) to be secured as part of this permission. Accordingly, the 

development does not conflict with the relevant provisions of Policies EN8 and EN12 of the City of Salford Unitary  
Development Plan, Policy NCB1 of the Nature Conservation and Biodiversity SPD and the relevant considerations 
of the NPPF (in particular, Paragraphs 174 and 180).  

 

Page 43



  

Mosslands 

The site is located within the Mosslands, as designated on the UDP Proposals Map. Policy EN11 of the UDP is 
therefore relevant. The site is not located within the Heartland and is not located on land which has the potential 
to be restored to lowland raised bog habitat. The development does not prevent the restoration of other land to 

that habitat, and it is considered that relevant ecological management and enhancement measures are to be 
secured such as to ensure that the overall nature conservation interest of the mosslands will be maintained.  
Accordingly, the scheme complies with the provisions of UDP Policy EN11. 

 
Access, Highways Impact and Parking Provision 
 

The site is in an isolated location and is effectively accessible only by use of private or hire vehicle, given the 
distance from the bus stops on Worsley Road (B5211) and other public transport infrastructure. The site operator 
requires all visitors to access the site via Grange Road, proceeding over the motorway bridge and onto The 

Avenue. It is understood that other vehicular access routes to The Avenue (Moss House Lane and Vicars Hall 
Lane) are secured and cannot be used by staff or visitors. This established access route is considered acceptable,  
given the anticipated volume of traffic accessing the facility (noting that there is a total theoretical capacity at the 

site of 29 guests at any one time and that the applicant’s data suggests on average that less than two vehicles  
access the site per hour). 
 

A car park is provided on the site frontage, running parallel to the access track, which has been created within an 
existing clearing in the woodland; the applicant states that no trees were felled in order to create the provision.  
The surface comprises MOT/gravel set on top of a permeable membrane, and there are no formal markings. The 

car park has an approximate capacity of 8 cars. 
 
There is no comparable standard within the Council’s UDP Car Parking Standards which appropriately relates to 

the specific nature of this development. The applicant has included within their Planning Statement details as to 
the number of visitors as a proportion by day for both July/August 2019 and for November – January 2019, as 
well as an average vehicle count for Saturdays in July/August. Based on these figures the number of cars on the 

site at any one time is within the total capacity of the car park. 
 
The Local Highway Authority has reviewed the proposals and, noting the potential maximum visitor numbers at 

any one time, have recommended that the car park may be increased in size to accommodate 15 vehicles – this 
is to allow for any future increase in visitor numbers per session and account for times when sessions overlap. It 
is noted, however, that the theoretical maximum capacity of the facility of 29 guests is based on the site being 

fully booked and customers all undertaking only one activity. In reality, the applicant notes that one-third of visitors  
book to undertake multiple activities and therefore visitors generally take up a greater proportion of the on-site 
capacity in a single visit. It is understood that the majority of guests car-share in order to reach the site, given that 

all activities on offer are based on group participation, which further reduces the number of vehicles used to reach 
the site. 
 

The site operator is able to remove the wooden bollards separating the car park from the reception area in order 
to park staff vehicles adjacent to the reception building in the event that there are pressures on car park capacity. 
Vehicles may also be ‘double-parked’ in order to make more efficient use of the car park space available when 

guests attend the site in co-ordinated groups. Given the isolated location, and the low traffic flows along the access 
track (which otherwise only serves ‘Delta Force’ paintball and the clay shooting centre), it is recognised that any 
overspill from the car park onto the access track would not have a severe impact on the capacity of the highway 

or road safety. 
 
Any increase to the footprint of the car park would likely require removal of existing tree stock which may also 

have additional ecological implications. Taking the above factors into account it is considered, on balance, that 
the existing car parking provision is acceptable and expansion at this time would not be warranted.   
 

It is understood that there is little waste generated on site, as no food is sold, and any waste materials are taken 
away from site for disposal by staff in their own vehicles, rather than there being any need for access by service 
vehicles such as refuse collection trucks. 

 
In taking the above analysis into account, it is not considered that the development results in conflict with the 
provisions of Policies A2, A8 and A10 of the Unitary Development Plan, nor with the relevant considerations of 

the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 

Page 44



  

Relationship with Surrounding Land Uses 

 
The site itself is well separated from surrounding residential land uses, with the nearest occupied dwelling circa 
1.2km to the east. The development is entirely contained within dense woodland, which provides a s ignificant  

screen. Immediately surrounding the site are a number of other existing recreational land uses; the ‘Delta Force’ 
paintball facility and the Manchester Clay Shooting Club. Otherwise, surrounding land uses are agricultural.  
 

In respect of the nearest residential sensitive receptors; the Council’s Environmental Consultant has reviewed the 
proposals and considers that the activities undertaken on site are unlikely to create any noise impacts over and 
above those arising from existing adjacent uses within the vicinity. In particular, it should be noted that the 

background noise profile in areas surrounding the site is dominated by traffic from the M60 and M62 motorways.  
 
As a result, it is not considered that the development gives rise to any adverse impacts and no conflict is identified 

with Policies DES7 and EN17 of the Unitary Development Plan, nor with the relevant considerations of the 
National Planning Policy Framework.   
 

Flood Risk 
 
The site predominantly sits within Flood Zone 1, however parts of the site on the western edge and at the 

confluence of Blue Box Ditch and Shaw Brook, sit within both Flood Zones 2 and 3 (see Figure 8). Shaw Brook 
and Blue Box Ditch are both designated as ‘Main Rivers’ at this point.  The areas of Flood Zone 3 within the site 
are designated as Zone 3b (functional floodplain) within the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.  The only 

element of the development within Flood Zones 2 and 3 is a small section of the quad biking track.  
 
In accordance with the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classifications set out within the National Planning Practice 

Guidance, outdoor sports and recreation, including associated essential facilities,  is considered to comprise 
‘water-compatible development’ which is appropriate within both Flood Zones 2 and 3, including 3b – there is no 
requirement to apply the Sequential or Exception Tests. The NPPG notes that in Flood Zone 3b, water-compatible 

uses should be designed and constructed to remain safe for users in times of flood, result in no net less of 
floodplain storage and not impede water flows or increase flood risk elsewhere; the development is considered to 
comply with these requirements, noting in particular that diversion routes within the quad bike track layout are 

available to allow for users to avoid or escape the area during a flood event. 
 

 
Figure 8 – Extract from Environment Agency Flood Map for Planning 

 

Page 45



  

No objections have been raised by the Council’s Drainage and Flood Risk Officer nor by the Environment Agency. 

It is noted that the EA has made reference to the potential need for Environmental Permits given the proximity to 
the designated Main Rivers – this is a matter separate from consideration of the planning application and a 
relevant informative is recommended. 

 
No conflict is identified with Policies EN18 and EN19 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan, the Council’s 
Flood Risk and Development SPD, nor with the relevant provisions of the NPPF with respect to flood risk.  

 
Design and Crime 
 

The application is accompanied by a Crime Impact Statement (CIS) prepared by Design for Security. The CIS 
contains an assessment of the scheme against the principles of ‘Crime Prevention Through Environmental 
Design’ (CPTED). The CIS notes that the site is situated in a somewhat remote/isolated location that experiences 

few crime and disorder incidents; the secluded nature of the site and the desirable equipment stored there mean 
that it could be vulnerable to a targeted attack at night/when not in use.  
 

There are a number of security measures in place at the site including secure gates on the access road, timber 
posts to prevent unauthorised vehicle access from the car park into the site, use of high-security shipping 
containers with additional modifications, and CCTV provision. The CIS contains several additional 

recommendations for further security measures; an informative is recommended to draw the applicant’s attention 
to the recommended measures as these are not considered relevant to the planning applicat ion itself. 
 

The CIS concludes that the existing security measures and protocols are appropriate. No objections have been 
raised in the consultation with Design for Security. Accordingly, no conflict is identified with the provisions of UDP 
Policy DES10. 

 
Summary and Conclusion 
 

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for the development of an outdoor activities  centre. The 
site is located within the Green Belt; the material change of use in land for which permission is sought does not 
comprise inappropriate development in the Green Belt, given that it complies with the exception set out at 

Paragraph 150(e) of the NPPF and Policy EN1 of the UDP. It is considered that the operational development for 
which permission is sought (the shelters erected on site) does not fail to preserve the openness of the Green Belt 
in this particular location and does not conflict with any of the five purposes of Green Belt; accordingly the 

operational development does not comprise inappropriate development in the Green Belt, given that it complies 
with the exception set out at Paragraph 149(b) of the NPPF and the relevant exception set out under Policy EN1(ii) 
of the UDP. The scheme is generally considered to be sensitive to the prevailing appearance and character of 

the surroundings, and no conflict is identified with Policies DES1 and DES9 of the UDP and the NPPF.  
 
The site is located within the Botany Bay Grade A Site of Biological Importance (SBI), a plantation lowland 

broadleaf mixed woodland and coniferous woodland which is the largest single block of woodland in Greater 
Manchester. The non-quad bike activities are not considered to adversely impact on the features of importance 
of the SBI. The quad biking activities do have the potential to adversely impact on breeding bird assemblage and 

on the ground flora; in accordance with the mitigation hierarchy, steps have been taken to minimise the potential 
impact of these activities and mitigation for the residual impacts is proposed within a Biodiversity Enhancemen t 
and Management Plan. Subject to relevant conditions, as recommended below, it is considered that the 

development can be accommodated on the site without adversely affecting the nature conservation value of the 
woodland. Accordingly, the development does not conflict with the relevant provisions of Policies EN8 and EN12 
of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan, Policy NCB1 of the Nature Conservation and Biodiversity SPD 

and the relevant considerations of the NPPF (in particular, Paragraphs 174 and 180). 
 
Appropriate access to the development is provided, taking into account the nature and scale of activities on site, 

and, on balance, the extent of parking provision is considered acceptable. The development shares an acceptable 
relationship with surrounding land uses. The activities undertaken on site are compatible with the level of flood 
risk, and existing security measures on site are considered sufficient to adequately mitigate potential risk of crime.  

 
In light of the above, the application is recommended for approval in accordance with the details set out below.  
 

  

Page 46



  

Recommendation 

 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following planning conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: 
- Site Location Plan ‘Adventure Now, Plot C, Botany Bay Wood, Salford’ dated 02.12.20 
- Site Layout Plan ‘Adventure Now’ (Scale 1:2000)  

- Site Layout Plan (Scale 1:100) dated December 2020 
- Reception Building (Scale 1:100) 
- Reception Building Isometric (Scale 1:100) 

- Rifle Shelter (Scale 1:100) dated November 2020 
- Archery Shelter (Scale 1:100) dated November 2020 
- Crossbow Shelter (Scale 1:100) dated November 2020 

- Shipping Containers (24 x 9 ft) with high-security gates added (Scale 1:100) 
- Shipping Containers (21 x 8 ft) with high-security gates added (Scale 1:100) 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.  
 

2. Quad biking shall only be undertaken on the established tracks as set out on the Site Layout Plan 

‘Adventure Now’ (Scale 1:2000). Notwithstanding Section 2.1.4 of the submitted Biodiversity  
Enhancement and Management Plan (Verity Webster, August 2020), repair and maintenance of the quad 
bike tracks shall be undertaken using only wood brash/logs and chip – there shall be no importation of 

aggregate, builders’ rubble or bricks.  
 
Reason: In the interests of protecting the ground flora conditions within the site, ensuring there are no 

adverse alterations to the chemical composition of the substrate which may promote growth of non-
woodland species and in order to mitigate the risk of inadvertent importation of Invasive Non-Nat ive 
Species, in accordance with Policy NCB1 of the Nature Conservation and Biodiversity SPD, Policies EN8, 

EN11 and EN12 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan, and the provisions of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 

3. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with the submitted Biodiversity  
Enhancement and Management Plan (Verity Webster, August 2020). The date of this permission shall be 
taken as the commencement date for the enhancement, improvement and monitoring measures 

contained therein.  
 
The measures set out within the BEMP shall be implemented in full, save for the provisions of condition 

2 of this permission and that the proposed ‘hole entrance’ bird nest boxes, specified at Section 2.1.6 of 
the BEMP, shall be replaced with willow tit nesting opportunities in accordance with a specification to be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of the date of this permission for agreement in 

writing. 
 
The 1, 3 and 5-year monitoring results, as required by Section 2.1.7 of the BEMP, shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing within 1 month of the completion of each monitoring 
event in order to allow for review of the findings and the agreement of any subsequent relevant  
adjustments to the BEMP. The monitoring results shall also include a report of the number of visitors to 

the site within the preceding 12-month period. The development shall thereafter be undertaken in 
accordance with any such adjustments. 

 

Reason: In the interests of mitigating the residual adverse impacts of activities on the site in order to 
protect and enhance the biodiversity of the woodland in accordance with Policy NCB1 of the Nature 
Conservation and Biodiversity SPD, Policies EN8, EN11 and EN12 of the City of Salford Unitary  

Development Plan, and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 

4. The site shall only be open for trade or business and the outdoor activities hereby approved shall only be 

undertaken between the hours of 0900 and 1700 on any day. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the biodiversity interests of the site, particularly in order to prevent disturbance 

to crepuscular animals such as bat, hedgehog and badger, in accordance with Policy NCB1 of the Nature 

Page 47



  

Conservation and Biodiversity SPD, Policies EN8 and EN11 of the City of Salford Unitary Development 

Plan, and the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
Notes to Applicant 

 
Environment Agency – Environmental Permitting 
This development may require a permit under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 

2016 from the Environment Agency for any proposed works or structures, in, under, over or within 8m of the banks 
of Shaw Brook and Blue Box Ditch which, are designated as ‘main river’. Some activities are also now excluded 
or exempt. A permit is separate to and in addition to any planning permission granted. Further details and 

guidance are available on the GOV.UK website: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental -
permits.  
 

Crime Impact Statement – Additional Security Measures 
The applicant’s attention is drawn to the recommendations for additional security measures/protocols contained 
within the submitted Crime Impact Statement (ref. 2021/0014/CIS/01).  

 

 
 

Page 48

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-environmental-permits


PLANNING & TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL 
PART I 

SECTION 1: APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION 

APPLICATION No: 21/78637/FUL 

APPLICANT: Towngate PLC 

LOCATION: Towngate Business Centre Worsley Trading Estate, Lester Road, Little 

Hulton, M38 0PT,  

PROPOSAL: Planning application for 6no. industrial units (Use Classes E(g) (iii) and B8), 

erection of electricity sub-station and associated demolition, car parking 

and landscaping. 

WARD: Little Hulton 

 
REASON FOR PANEL:       The measurement of the site area is 2 hectares and the amount of  

       development proposed exceeds 2,500sqm. 
 
Description of Site and Surrounding Area  

 
The application site is within an established employment area to the south of Manchester Road West. The 
application site is bounded by other industrial units to the south, and to the west, with Lester Road located beyond 

that, and residential Hazel Avenue to the east. 
 

  
Figure 1: Location of the site  

 
Description of Proposal  

 
The applicant proposes to erect six industrial units with associated car parking and a yard area. The gross internal 
floorspace proposed is 4152.8m2. 

 
The land was previously occupied by a warehouse. However, in 2018 a fire damaged the buildings on site. Some 
of the buildings have since been refurbished, but other areas were completely destroyed and are now being used 

as yard areas. 
 
It is proposed that the new industrial units would fall under Use Class E(g)(iii) and B8 of the Town and Country  

Planning Use Classes Order (as amended).  
 
Class E(g)(iii) is the use for any industrial process which can be carried out in any residential area without  

detriment to the amenity of that area by reason of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, soot, ash, dust or grit.  

Page 49

Agenda Item 5c



  

 
Class B8 is the use for storage or as a distribution centre. 

 

 
Figure 2: Oblique aerial image showing previous warehouses on site  

 

 
Figure 3: Photograph showing refurbished building, looking east from Lester Road, to the north of the 

existing entrance 
 

Relevant Site History 
 
13/63299/FUL - Demolition of existing call centre and part office area, erection of a canopy between Units 1 and 

2, alterations to elevations, erection of a screening wall on top of existing retaining wall, together with additional 
parking spaces – Approved – 05 August 2013 
 

13/63082/DEMCON - Prior notification for the demolition of Units 1 and 3 Towngate Business Centre, Little Hulton 
– Approved – 22 April 2013 
 

98/38471/ADV – Display of illuminated lettering to front of building – Approved – 22 October 1998 
 
97/57503/FUL – Erection of 3.6m high palisade fencing and gates to form compound – Approved – 19 February  

1998 

Page 50



  

 
97/37471/FUL – Re-cladding and re-roofing to Unit 4 – Approved – 05 February 1998 

 
97/37077/FUL – Installation of two roller shutter doors in Unit 1 and creation of new tarmac hard standing with 
200 car parking spaces – Approved – 19 November 1997 

 
97/36897/FUL – Re-cladding of Unit 5 and installation of five new roller shutter doors – Approved – 02 October 
1997 

 
97/36814/FUL – Erection of gatehouse widening of vehicular access and installation of barriers and gates – 20 
August 1997 

 
97/36487/FUL – Re-cladding existing elevations – Approved – 18 June 1997 
 

96/35412/FUL – Use of premises for light industrial (B1), general industrial (B2) and warehouse (B8) – Approved 
– 18 September 1996 
 

Publicity 
Earliest Decision Date: 8 January 2022 
Revised Expiry Date:  No extension agreed   

 
Site Notice: Non HH Article 15  
Reason: Wider Publicity 

 
Press Advert: Manchester Weekly News Salford Edition Date Published: 4 November 2021 
Reason: Article 15 Standard Press Notice 

 
Neighbour Notification  
 

82 neighbouring occupiers have been notified of the application. 
 
Representations  

 
Four letters of representation have been received in response to the application publicity  including one general 
observation and three objections. 

 

 C – comment received         R – officer response 

C Proximity of the buildings to the houses on Hazel Avenue. 

C Loss of light: height of the buildings 

C Appearance: eyesore, overbearing 

C Noise:  
- If the roadway between the building and Hazel Avenue would be used for HGVs 

24 hours a day, the noise would  be amplified in such a small alleyway.  

- The noise level would not be low. The level of noise impact was assessed during 

lockdowns, so does not provide a true reflection of the impact once fully 

operational at full capacity. 
- Operations during daytime hours will impact the ability to work from home and 

quality of life of residents. 

C Landscaping: The proposed landscaping is insufficient to soften the nature of the building.  

R Please see officer appraisal below. 

C Loss of property values 

R The Council considers all representations but must make its decision on planning grounds 
only. Issues such as property values are not a material consideration and ownership matters 
should be pursued separately either under other legislation or as a private matter. It  is 

possible for planning permission to be granted for a development which is subject to other 
constraints that prevent the permission from being implemented.  

Page 51



  

Consultations 
 

Air Quality, Noise, Contaminated Land -   
Air Quality – No objections 
Noise – No objections, subject to conditions to limit free-field noise rating levels, submission of a noise 

management plan and a requirement to close rear doors at all times except for access/egress (or emergency 
use). 
Land contamination – No objection, subject to a condition for a watching brief. 

 
The Coal Authority -   
No objection. The application site falls within the defined Development High Risk Area.  The Geotechnical and 

Geoenvironmental Interpretive Report submitted with the application confirms that a zone of weakness/void was 
encountered as a result of a borehole investigation. Following feedback from the Coal Authority, the applicant  
submitted a letter concluding that the features encountered are not attributable to shallow mining and that there 

remains sufficient coal seams to afford ground stability. 
 
Design For Security -   

No objections subject to implementation of the security measures contained with the submitted Crime Impact 
Statement.   
 

Drainage -   
No Objections –the applicant has proposed a 50% reduction of surface water runoff, this is acceptable. Conditions 
recommended. 

 
Greater Manchester Ecological Unit -   
No objections to the proposal subject to conditions related to ecological enhancements and informatives  to 

make the developer aware of their responsibilities with regards to bats and breeding birds . 
 
Environment Agency -   

Unable to provide a site-specific review at this time, but provided guidance on assessment particularly related to 
land contamination. 
 

Highways -   
No objections, subject to conditions related to electric vehicle charging points and provision of a construction 
environment management plan    

 
United Utilities Water Ltd -   
United Utilities have raised no objections but have advised that additional information related to proposed levels  

should be provided prior to determination of the application to avoid changes that might affect the design of the 
scheme. However, SCC’s Drainage officer is satisfied that a suitable drainage strategy could be achieved on the 
site and can therefore be provided post-determination, as part of a planning condition, and prior to commencement 

of the development. Informatives are also required to make the developer aware of their responsibilities. 
 
Planning Policy 

 
Development Plan Policy 
 

Emerging policies of the Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies and Designations  
 F1 Inclusive development process 
 F3 Inclusive places 

 A1 Supporting sustainable transport 
 A2 Transport hierarchy and sustainable streets 
 A5 Sustainable movement of freight 

 WA4 Development and flood risk 
 D1 Design principles 
 D2 Local character and distinctiveness 

 D3 Layout and access 
 D4 Spaces 

Page 52



  

 D5 Amenity 
 D6 Design and crime 

 GI6 Trees, woodland and hedgerows 
  
Saved policies of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 

 ST1 Employment supply 
 ST5 Transport networks 
 DES1 Respecting context 

 DES2 Circulation and movement 
 DES7 Amenity of users and neighbours 
 DES9 Landscaping 

 DES10 Design and crime 
 A2 Cyclists, pedestrians and the disabled 
 A8 Impact of development on the highway network 

 A10 Provision of car, cycle and motorcycle parking in new developments  
 EN5 Development within established employment areas 
 EN12 Important landscape features 

 EN17 Pollution control 
 EN18 Protection of water resources 
 EN19 Flood risk and surface water 

 
Other Material Planning Considerations 
 

National Planning Policy 
National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Practice Guidance 

National Design Guide 
 
Local Planning Policy 

Supplementary Planning Documents and Guidance 
 Contaminated land 

 Design 

 Established employment areas 

 House extensions 

 Nature conservation and biodiversity 

 Planning obligations 

 
Emerging Planning Policy 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 48 establishes that local planning authorities may 

give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:  

a. The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the 

weight that may be given); 
b. The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the 

unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 

c. The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).  

There are currently two emerging plans to consider. 

First, Places for Everyone Publication Plan, the joint Development Plan Document for nine dist ricts in Greater 

Manchester, which was published for consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 on 9 August 2021. Representations were invited until 3 October 
2021; the plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 14 February 2022 and examination 

hearings are due to commence in Summer 2022. The emerging policies which are relevant to this application 

Page 53



  

are discussed where applicable in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF 
paragraph 48. 

 
Second, the Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies and Designations (SLP:DMP), 
which was published on 27 January 2020 and comments were invited until 20 March 2020. An Addendum was  

published on 5 February 2021 and comments were invited on this until 19 March 2021. The Publication SMP:DMP 
and the Addendum were submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 30 June 2021 and the examination 
hearings took place over 7 days in December 2021. The plan has been subject to a significant amount of public 

consultation in previous stages of its production and the city council has considered the comments made to 
determine the extent to which there are unresolved objections to its policies. Those policies (i.e. the Publication 
SLP:DMP policies as modified through the Addendum) which are relevant to this application are discussed where 

appropriate in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF paragraph 48. It  is 
expected that the SLP:DMP will be adopted in Summer 2022.  

In addition, NPPF paragraph 219 establishes that existing policies (such as Salford’s UDP) are not out -of-date 

simply because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of NPPF. Due weight should be given to them, 
according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, and the closer the policies in the UDP to the policies in 
the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given. In terms of this application it is considered that the releva nt  

policies of the UDP can be afforded due weight for the purposes of decision making as the relevant criteria within 
the UDP policies applicable to the proposed development are consistent with the policies contained in the NPPF.  

Appraisal  

 
Principle of development 
 

The application site falls to be classed as existing employment land within an established employment area.  
 
The planning system has an economic objective to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy , 

including by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places at the right time to support  
growth, innovation and improved productivity (NPPF, para 8). Planning decisions should help create the 
conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to 

support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities  
for development (NPPF, para 81). 
 

Saved policy ST3 of the UDP states that a good range of local employment opportunities will be secured by 
maintaining an adequate supply and variety of land and buildings for employment purposes and protecting and 
increasing the attractiveness of existing employment areas. 

 
Saved policy E5 of the UDP states that planning permission will be granted for: 

 the redevelopment or land and buildings for employment purposes;  

 improvements to access, circulation, parking and servicing, particularly where this would foster 

sustainable transport choices;  

 the environmental improvement of the area including, where appropriate, the landscaping of vacant 

sites; and 

 improvements to property and personal security, where this is cons istent with the need to maintain 

high standards of design. 

On the basis of the above, the proposal is acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with other policies of 

the development plan. 
 
However, a condition is recommended to restrict future activities. The proposed use under Class E(g)(iii) and B8 

of the Town and Country Planning Use Class Order (as amended) is acceptable and encouraged within this 
established employment area. However, without restriction, activities which would be inappropriate within this 
established employment area could take place under Use Class E (such as retail, restaurants, sport and other 

leisure activities targeted at visiting members of the public) that would result in a loss of vital employment land 
and threaten the successful unimpeded function of surrounding industrial activities . 
 

Page 54



  

Living environment 
 

While the application site is within an industrial estate, it is also immediately adjacent to residential development.  
As can be observed in the image below, the previously-existing warehouses were also adjacent to the dwellings 
on Hazel Avenue. The distance between the properties was greater than in the proposed development , however 

the current proposal is lower in height than the previous building. , This relationship is carefully considered in more 
detail below. 
 

 
Figure 4: Oblique aerial image showing previous relationship between  

former warehouses and dwellings on Hazel Avenue 
 

 
Figure 5: View of former warehouse from the rear garden of No. 24 Hazel Avenue. Source: Zoopla  

 

Page 55



  

Salford’s House Extensions SPD provides guidance on appropriate separation distances between buildings to 
protect the amenities of residents. Policy HE3 states that planning permission will not normally be granted for two-

storey development that does not maintain a minimum distance of 13m between a blank wall and facing ground 
floor principal windows of habitable rooms of neighbouring dwellings. In situations where the relationship is three 
or more storeys or where there are significant distances in levels, then the minimum distances will be increased 

by the amount equal to the additional height. This is reiterated in draft Policy D5 of the emerging SLP:DMP. 
 
The proposed building is at a lower land level than the houses on Hazel Avenue, and has been designed with a 

mono-pitched roof to ensure that the eastern side is at a lower height, growing away from the adjacent dwellings.  
 

 
Figure 6: Excerpt from Proposed Section 2-2 

 
On the eastern side, the proposed height to the eaves would be 6m, with the proposed height to top of the roof 
approximately 6.9m. As measured from the section plan submitted with the application, the eaves height from the 

ground level at Hazel Avenue would be approximately 5.3m (eaves) and 6.2m (roof). The eastern side of the 
building would be roughly the height of a two-storey dwelling. 
 

A distance of at least 13m will be maintained between the proposed building and the ground floor sole habitable 
room windows of the dwellings to the east. At closest proximity is No.28 Hazel Avenue at approximately 13m, with 
the majority over this distance 

 
The separation distance at the nearest point complies with Policy HE3 of Salford’s supplementary planning 
document for house extensions, which can be used as a guide for acceptable separation distance between 

habitable windows and blank elevations in this instance. As with the former building, residents on Hazel Avenue 
will experience a sense of enclosure and there may be some loss of light in the evening. Nevertheless, it is 
considered that the impact is acceptable. While the proposed building is around 2m closer than the previous 

building, it is also around 2m lower in height. The separation distance complies with the aforementioned SPD.  
 
Additionally, it is noted that the vehicular passageway between the warehouse and the dwellings will not be 

reinstated as part of the current application. There will therefore be a reduction in vehicle and loading noise in 
comparison to the previous situation. Rather, the Council’s environmental consultant has  advised that the 
warehouse units themselves will provide a physical barrier between the vehicle manoeuvring area and the 

properties on Hazel Avenue, with vehicles arriving and leaving via Lester Road. Impacts of noise and disturbance 
on sensitive neighbours are discussed in more detail below. 
 

Pollution 
 
Policy EN17 of the UDP states that development proposals that would be likely to cause or contribute towards a 

significant increase in pollution to the air (including dust pollution), water or soil, or by reason of noise, odour,  
artificial light or vibration, will not be permitted unless they include mitigation measures commensurate with the 
scale and impact of the development.  

 
Disturbance 

 

A noise impact assessment has been submitted in support of the application. This includes potential noise sources 
from mechanical plant/equipment, loading/unloading and breakout throughout the building envelope. The 
Council’s environmental consultant has reviewed the scheme and raised no objection on the grounds of noise, 

subject to conditions restricting noise from externally mounted plant and equipment and submission of a noise 

Page 56



  

management plan. A condition is recommended to ensure that the doors of the rear (south-eastern) elevation are 
kept closed at all times except for access/egress (or emergency use) to reduce noise overspill.  

 
A neighbour has raised concerns that measurements for the noise impact assessment were taken during 
lockdown and therefore provide an inaccurate view. The Council’s environmental consultant has clarified that the 

noise assessment was undertaken in accordance with BS4142:2014+A1:2019 (Methods for rating and assessing 
industrial and commercial sound) which involves comparing the source noise (specific noise) and the background 
noise. In this instance, the background noise levels were measured between 13/09/2019 and 19/09/2019 which 

was before the national lockdown began (March 2020). The specific noise levels were measured on site by 
Spectrum Acoustics before the fire which destroyed buildings on the site (i.e. before November 2018). Therefore,  
the pandemic has not impacted the noise assessment and the findings of the report are considered to be sound.  

 
Land Contamination 

 

The site has had a number of historic uses including colliery railways, industry and reservoirs. Such uses have 
the potential to leave legacy pollutants within soils or underlying groundwater. Where a pathway exists between 
a pollutant and a receptor (human health or the wider environment) a pollutant linkage may be created. 

 
Following consideration of the proposal and reports submitted with the application, the Council’s environmental 
consultant has raised no objection to the application and does not consider specific remediation to be necessary. 

However, a condition is recommended to ensure appropriate action in the event that unforeseen contamination is 
encountered during the construction period. 
 

The site is also in the Coal Authority’s defined Development High Risk Area. There are coal mining features and 
hazards within the application site and surrounding area. Records indicate that the site has been subject to 
recorded underground coal mining at shallow depth and is also likely to have been subject to unrecorded  

underground coal mining at shallow depth. The Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Interpretive Report  
submitted with the application confirms that a zone of weakness/void was encountered as a result of a borehole 
investigation. Following feedback from the Coal Authority, the applicant submitted a letter concluding that the 

features encountered are not attributable to shallow mining and that there remains sufficient coal seams to afford 
ground stability. 
 

Design 
 
The proposed layout would respect the overall pattern of development within the industrial estate. The form of 

the building is long, broadly rectangular and subdivided into units. This is consistent with the general shape and 
massing of other warehouses in the area and would not appear incongruous within the context of an industrial 
estate. The form of the building is appropriate given the uses and activities it is intended to accommodate and 

also given the context of the wider business park where it is sited. 

 
 

Figure 7: Excerpt from proposed site layout plan 

Page 57



  

The proposal site is at a lower land level than the surrounding residential development on Manchester Road East 
and Hazel Avenue. The building has been designed with a mono-pitched roof. Its massing transitions between 

the lower-lying two-storey houses to the east and the larger, more imposing warehouses to the west. Within the 
structure of the building itself, the proposed openings and overall proportions (aided by the proposed materials 
and detailing), would appear balanced. 

 
The overall appearance would respect the character of the area – while the proposed detailing and materials are 
more contemporary than surrounding development, the general colours and textures are consistent with those of 

the surrounding industrial development and the proposal will not appear incongruous within this context.  
 
The proposed design is acceptable and would contribute positively to the character of the industrial estate.  

 

 
 

Figure 8: Excerpt from proposed 3D drawing 

Landscaping 
 
Saved policy DES 9 of the UDP states that development will be required to incorporate appropriate hard and soft 

landscaping provision where appropriate. High quality landscaping can enhance the design of the development 
when designed to complement or form an integral part of the development. Appropriate landscaping can also 
protect the amenities of the site, the area in which it is situated and the natural environment. In this instance the 

proposed landscaping is particularly important to ease the transition from the industrial nature of the estate and 
the adjacent residential development. 
 

The Council’s landscape officers have reviewed the scheme and recommended amendments including different  
types of planting and taller trees along site boundaries. In response, the applicant has stated that there is an 
approximately 6m distance between the boundary fence and the rear of the proposed development. In order to 

maintain the perimeter of the building and gain access to roof/gutters , a 2m pathway capable of carrying the load 
of a scissor lift/cherry picker is required along the rear/eastern boundary adjacent to the building. The remaining 
4m will be landscaped with appropriate trees along the boundary , which will act as a screen. The proposed 

scheme would require minimal annual maintenance, although a contractor is already employed across the site for 
ongoing maintenance.  
 

Following review, it is considered that while the amendments suggested would improve the scheme, overall  the 
landscaping as submitted would sufficiently contribute to the softening of the edges of the site and would ease 
the transition away from the industrial zones. A condition is recommended to agree the details and to secure 

ongoing maintenance.  
 
A condition is recommended to ensure that a tree protection plan is submitted prior to commencement of 

development. This is required to protect existing trees along the site boundaries with Manchester Road West and 
Cloudstock Grove during the construction process. 
 

 

Page 58



  

Ecology 
 

The applicant has submitted a site assessment and bat survey in support of the application. The Greater 
Manchester Ecology Unit has reviewed the scheme and raised no objections subject to a condition relating to 
ecological enhancements and informatives to make the developer aware of their responsibilities with regards to 

bats and breeding birds. 
 
Flood risk and drainage 

 
The proposal site lies in Flood Zone 1. Land and property in flood zone 1 have a low probability of flooding.  
Nevertheless, the proposal site is greater than 1 hectare in size and in accordance with paragraph 167 and 

footnote 55 of the NPPF, a flood risk assessment has been submitted.  
 
The applicant proposes a “less vulnerable” use as defined by Annex 3 to the NPPF. This is acceptable within 

Flood Zone 1. Nevertheless, the development must be appropriately flood resilient without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere. The applicant has submitted a drainage strategy with the proposal which proposes a 50% reduction 
in surface water drainage. This is considered to be acceptable and the Council’s drainage officer has raised no 

objections subject to conditions. 
 
United Utilities have raised no objections but have advised that additional informat ion related to proposed levels  

should be provided prior to determination of the application to avoid changes that might affect the design of the 
scheme. However, SCC’s drainage officer is satisfied that a suitable drainage strategy could be achieved on the  
site and can therefore be provided post-determination, as part of a planning condition, and prior to commencement 

of the development. 
 
Transport, highways and access 

 
The site will be accessed from the existing entrance off Lester Road. Vehicle parking is to the west of the building,  
adjacent to the existing yard. It is split into four sections with each section including provision for electric vehicles  

and disabled access. Six cycle spaces are proposed per unit, fixed internally within the building. The Council’s 
highways officers have advised that the proposed car parking provision is in line with the Council’s car parking 
standards for the proposed usage of the site and is acceptable based on the proposed footprint of the 

development.  
 

 
Figure 9: Excerpt from site plan showing parking provision 

 
The larger units at either end will have two goods access doors, with the other four having one goods access 
door, all facing onto the yard. The applicant has worked with the local highway authority to improve the scheme 

and following submission of an updated site plan no objections were raised subject to conditions regarding electric 
vehicle charging points, a travel plan, and a construction management plan.  

Page 59



  

 
Planning Obligations 

 
While it is over three years since the site was in use, the proposed development (totalling 4152.8sqm gross 
floorspace) would be a significant reduction in floorspace compared to the previous built form. As such,  the 

Council’s s106 team have concluded that for this particular site, it will not be necessary to charge any planning 
obligations for the development.  
Conclusions  

 
The proposal seeks to provide industrial units on existing employment land within an established employment 
area in an industrial park. The proposal is acceptable in principle. The site is adjacent to residential properties,  

nevertheless, the proposal is considered to be acceptable with regards to residential amenity  and disturbance,  
subject to conditions. 
 

Recommendation 
 
Approve, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.  

 

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended). 

 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
- Outline Site Landscape Plan & Specification PWP 585 001 validated with the application;  

- Site Location Plan (Rev C) received by the Local Planning Authority on 27th October 2021; 
- Plans & Elevations (Rev E) and Proposed Site Plan (Rev J) received by the Local Planning Authority on 
18th November 2021; and 

- Proposed Site Sections (Rev C) received by the Local Planning Authority on 14 February 2022 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.  

 
3. The external materials used shall be in strict accordance with those in the application, as detailed on 

drawing 2204-KPP-XX-DR-A-GA-2002 Rev E dated 06/28/21. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with 
Policies DES1 and DES8 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the requirements of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
4. The land and premises shall be used for purposes with Use Class B8 and E(g)(iii) of The Town and 

Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and for no other purpose (including any other 
purpose in The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or any provis ion 
equivalent to those Classes in any statutory instrument revok ing or re-enacting that Order with or without 

modification).  
 
Reason: To safeguard against the loss of employment land in accordance with saved Policy E5 of the City 

of Salford Unitary Development Plan and to ensure the efficient operation of the highway network in 
accordance with saved Policy A8 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 

 

5. A Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted. It should also include 
comprehensive Traffic Management strategy where appropriate to ensure no increase in risk  to 

pedestrians and road users during the construction Period. 
 
The Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) should include but not necessarily be exclusive 

to the following:- 

Page 60



  

i) The times of construction activities on site which, unless agreed otherwise as part of the approved 
Statement, shall be limited to between 8am-6pm Monday to Friday and 9am-2pm Saturday only (no 

working on Sundays or Bank Holidays). Quieter activities which are carried out inside buildings such as 
electrical works, plumbing and plastering may take place outside of agreed working times so long as they 
do not result in significant disturbance to neighbouring occupiers;  

ii) The spaces for and management of the parking of site operatives and visitors - Provide a plan showing 
parking arrangements; 
iii) The storage and management of plant and materials (including loading and unloading activities) 

- Provide a plan showing the storage location; 
iv) The erection and maintenance of security hoardings including decorative displays and facilities    
for public viewing, where appropriate - Provide a plan showing appropriate details and location of the 

security hoarding; 
v) Measures to prevent the deposition of dirt on the public highway; 
vi) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during demolition/construction;  

vii) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition/construction works;  
viii) Measures to minimise disturbance to any neighbouring occupiers from noise and vibration, 
including from any construction vehicles and construction work;  

ix) Measures to prevent the pollution of watercourses; 
x) A community engagement strategy which explains how local neighbours will be kept updated on the 
construction process, key milestones, and how they can report to the site manager or other appropriate 

representative of the developer, instances of un-neighbourly behaviour from construction operatives.  The 
statement shall also detail the steps that will be taken when un-neighbourly behaviour has been reported. 
A log of all reported instances shall be kept on record and made available for inspection by the local a 

planning authority upon request. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbours in accordance with policies DES7 and EN17 of the 

Salford Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF 
 
Reason for pre-commencement condition:  Any works on site could harm the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers if not properly managed so details of the matters set out above must be submitted and agreed 
in advance of works starting. 

 

6. No development shall take place until a scheme for surface water drainage for the site using sustainable 
drainage methods and which includes details of how water quality will be improved, and how existing 
surface water discharge rates reduced, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to first occupation or use of the 
development hereby approved unless alternative timescales have been agreed in writing as part of the 
strategy.   

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory method of surface water disposal to reduce the risk of flooding 
elsewhere in accordance with policy EN19 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and seeks to 

provide betterment in terms of water quality and surface water discharge rates and meets requirements 
set out in the following documents;  
o NPPF,  

o Water Framework Directive and the NW River Basin Management Plan 
o The national Planning Practice Guidance and the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (March 2015) 

o Manchester, Salford, Trafford Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) (2011) and associated technical 
guidance 
o Environment Agency Pollution Prevention Guidelines (now withdrawn) 

o Flood Risk Assessment/SuDS Requirements for new developments (Salford's SuDS Checklist) 
 
Reason for pre-commencement condition: The solution for surface water disposal must be understood 

prior to works commencing on site as it could affect how underground works are planned and carried out.  
 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 6, the rate of discharge of surface water from the 

development shall be restricted to 50% of the existing discharge rate (or to green-field runoff, whichever 

Page 61



  

is greater), as per Salford City Council's strategic flood risk  assessment, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal of surface water 
from the site, in accordance with policy EN19 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
8. Prior to commencement of development, a scheme for the protection of retained trees on site, or trees 

adjacent to the site, during construction works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such a scheme will comply with the provisions of BS5837 ("Trees in relation to 
construction - 1990") and BS 3998 ("Recommendations for tree works - 1989"). The scheme shall include 

a site plan identifying: the existing trees over 75mm in diameter measured at 1.5m above ground level 
which are within and/or adjacent to the site; details of temporary protective fencing or temporary ground 
measures; and details of the construction site compound in conjunction with Condition 5. The scheme 

shall be implemented prior to commencement of development and retained throughout the construction 
period in accordance with the agreed scheme. 
 

Reason: To safeguard important trees on the site and to ensure that adequate provision is made for their 
protection whilst the development is carried out. 
 

Reason for pre-commencement condition: Without the details being agreed prior to commencement of 
development, on-going works and deliveries could detrimentally impact the trees.  

 

9. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above ground construction works shall 
take place until a strategy for the incorporation of features to enhance the biodiversity value of the 
proposed development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The strategy shall be implemented in accordance with a timetable submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with 
Policy DES1 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the requirements of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 
10. a) Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall not 

be occupied until full details of both hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the formation of any banks, 
terraces or other earthworks, hard surfaced areas and materials,  boundary treatments, external lighting, 
planting plans, specifications and schedules (including planting size, species and numbers/densities), 

existing plants / trees to be retained and a scheme for the timing / phasing of implementation works.  
 
(b) The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme for timing / 

phasing of implementation or within 18 months of first occupation of the development hereby permitted, 
whichever is the later. 
 

(c) Any trees or shrubs planted or retained in accordance with this condition which are removed, 
uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely damaged or become seriously diseased within 5 years of 
planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to 

those originally required to be planted. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its location and the nature of 

the proposed development and in accordance with Policies DES1 and DES9 of the City of Salford Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 

11. Notwithstanding the details on the approved plans, prior to first occupation of the development hereby 
approved, a scheme for bicycle park ing within the curtilage of the site shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The park ing provision shall be secure, with front and back 

wheel support, and covered unless justification and details of alternative provision are submitted to and 

Page 62



  

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to 
first use of the development hereby approved. 

 
Reason: to ensure that adequate facilities for secure cycle parking are provided and encourage 
sustainable transport modes 

 
12. a)Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, the applicant shall submit to and have 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, a Travel Information Pack and details of the Travel 

Plan Co-ordinator. This pack shall detail all modes of sustainable transport available to the site including 
cycleways, footways, public transport and any other local options as well as full incentives available to 
staff. The agreed pack shall be issued to all staff on appointment to work /occupation of building at the 

development hereby permitted. 
 
b) Within 6 months of occupation/ trading of the development hereby approved (or alternative timeframe 

which has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority), a Full Travel Plan (FTP) shall  be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The FTP should include results of travel surveys, targets for 
modal shift, an action plan, TP budget details and real incentives and measures to encourage use of non-

car modes of travel. 
 
Reason: To encourage uptake of sustainable transport modes and ensure that there is no unacceptable 

impacts on the highway network in accordance with Chapter 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and saved Policy A8 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 

 

13. Prior to first occupation of the development the applicant shall submit to and agree in writing with the local 
planning authority a scheme of electric vehicle charging for the development. The scheme shall include 
either 1 Rapid or 2 Fast type electric vehicle charging units for commercial use.  The agreed scheme shall 

be implemented prior to first occupation of the development and maintained in perpetuity.  
 
Reason: In accordance with paragraphs 112 of the National Planning Policy Framework  

 
 
14. The vehicle park ing, servicing and other vehicular access arrangements shown on the approved plans to 

serve the development hereby permitted shall be made available for use prior to the development being 
brought into use (or in accordance with a phasing plan which shall first be agreed in writing with the local 
planning authority) and shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose.  

 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety and the free flow of traffic and in accordance with policies A2, 
A8 and A10 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
15. Prior to any use for open storage of any part of the site to the west and/or south of the building hereby 

approved, full details of open storage within the confines of the application site, if proposed, shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Submitted details should include the 
area proposed, proposed types of materials and/or equipment to be stored, means of enclosure / 
screening and maximum heights of external storage. The approved details shall be implemented in full 

and retained thereafter. There shall be no other external storage except within the hereby approved 
storage area(s). 

  

Reason: To safeguard the visual appearance and character of the area in accordance with Policy DES1 
of the City of Salford unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework 

 

16. Prior to the first use of the building hereby approved, a noise management plan shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall identify any noise sources likely t o have 
a significant impact on nearby noise sensitive premises throughout all operations, and suitable control 

measures to minimise any off-site impact. Agreed measures shall be installed prior to first use or in 
accordance with a timetable agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Activities and operations 
within the site shall take place in full accordance with the agreed plan.  

 

Page 63



  

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbours in accordance with policy EN17 of the adopted City of 
Salford UDP. 

 
17. Any externally mounted plant and equipment (with the exception of plant required for emergency 

situations such as standby generators, smoke extract equipment etc.) associated with the development 

shall be designed so as not to exceed the following free-field noise rating levels: 
 
Manchester Road West (N) - 53 (Rating Level (dB LAr,Tr) Daytime (07:00 - 23:00)) - 41 (Rating Level (dB 

LAr,Tr) Night-Time (23:00 - 07:00)) 
Cloudstock Avenue - 48 (Rating Level (dB LAr,Tr) Daytime (07:00 - 23:00)) - 40 (Rating Level (dB 
LAr,Tr) Night-Time (23:00 - 07:00)) 

 
Determined 1m from the nearest noise sensitive premises (in each location), in accordance with 
BS4142:2014+A1:2019 with corrections applied for any plant emitting noise of a tonal or irregular quality. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbours in accordance with policy EN17 of the adopted City of 
Salford UDP. 

 
18. All doors facing Hazel Avenue on the eastern elevation of the building hereby approved shall be kept 

closed at all times except for access/egress. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbours in accordance with policy EN17 of the adopted City of 
Salford UDP. 

 
 
19. During the period of construction, should contamination be found on site that has not been previously 

identified, no further works shall be undertaken in the affected area. Prior to further works being carried 
out in the affected area, the contamination shall be reported to the Local Planning Authority within a 
maximum of 5 days from the discovery, a contaminated land assessment shall be carried out, appropriate 

mitigation identified and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the agreed mitigation scheme. 
 

Reason:  To prevent pollution of the water environment and to ensure the safe development of the site in 
the interests of the amenity of future occupiers in accordance with Policy EN17 of the City of Salford 
Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
Statement of conformity with Article 35 of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify various solutions 
during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised sustainable development and would 

improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development 
plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the NPPF.  

 
Notes to Applicant 
 

1. The applicant is advised that they have a duty to adhere to the regulations of Part 2A of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990, the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the current Building Control 
Regulations with regards to contaminated land. The responsibility to ensure the safe development of land 

affected by contamination rests primarily with the developer.  
 
2. The developer and contractor should ensure they are observant during groundwork for any visual or 

olfactory sources of ground contamination.  This may take the form of (for example); locally discoloured 
soils, an oily sheen on water standing in puddles / trenches / footings, petroleum, hydrocarbon or chemical 
type odours.  Should such evidence be detected the Local Authority Contaminated Land Officer should 

be contacted for specialist advice. 

Page 64



  

3. The granting of planning permission does not convey any exemption from or compliance with other 
legislation such as the Environmental Protection Act (Statutory Nuisance), Licencing Act or the 

Environmental Permitting Regulations. 
 
4. Attention is drawn to the recommendations within Section 3.3 of the Crime Impact Assessment submitted 

with the application. 
 
5. All nesting birds are protected (Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981). No removal of any vegetation or the 

demolition or conversion of buildings shall take place between 1st March and 31st August in any year, 
unless a detailed survey has been carried out to check for nesting birds. Where nests are found in any 
building, hedgerow, tree, scrub, undergrowth or other habitat to be removed (or converted or demolished 

in the case of buildings), a 4m exclusion zone shall be left around the nest until breeding is complete. 
Completion of nesting shall be confirmed by a suitably qualified person before any further works within 
the exclusion zone taking place. 

 
6. Bats and their roots - even when unoccupied - are protected at all times even when disturbance occurs 

as the result of an otherwise lawful activity such as a planning permission. If bats are found or s uspected 

at any time work should cease until advice has been sought and implemented from the licensed ecologist.   

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 
APPLICATION No: 22/79155/REM 

APPLICANT: Mr Daniel Andrews 

LOCATION: Plots G1  and G2, Logistics North, Bolton, BL5 1DB,  

PROPOSAL: Cross Boundary Reserved Matters Planning Application between Salford City 

Council and Bolton Council for approval of access, appearance, landscaping 

and scale for the erection of a Regional Distribution Centre (Use Class B8 with 

ancillary offices) with access, car parking, servicing, landscaping and other 

associated works. 

WARD: Little Hulton (Part thereof) 

 

 

REASON FOR            The application includes development (other than Residential  
PANEL DECISION:      development) with a gross external floorspace of more than 2,500  

                                            square metres. 
 
Description of Site and Surrounding Area  
 

The plot is located within the Logistics North employment development site. Plot G1 is located to the eastern side 
of Logistics North and to the south of the main spine road (Bridgewater Way). Logistics North spans the boundary 
between Bolton and Salford, with Plots G1 and G2 being partially located within Salford, adjacent to Wharton Lane.  

 
The majority (77%) of the application site falls within the jurisdiction of Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 
(BMBC), whilst the remaining 23% is within the administrative boundary of Salford City Council (SCC).  

 
The site is accessed via the Logistics North spine road, which provides a direct connection to Manchester 
Road/Salford Road (A6) and Junction 4 of the M61 motorway. 

 
Plots G1 and G2 are currently undeveloped but exist as a ‘development platform’ with preparatory earthworks 
having already been undertaken as part of the Logistics North infrastructure works. The plot has no existing 

vegetation or other natural features. 
 
The Site is bordered to the west by the realigned Cutacre Brook and to the south by a newly created country park  

(delivered as part of the wider Logistics North masterplan). Wharton Presbyterian Church cemetery is situated to 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5d



 

 
the east of the Site, with industrial units located beyond this . Units F1 and F2 of Logistics North are present to the 
north of the Site, with Unit H1 currently under construction. 

 
Description of Proposal  
 

Background 
 
Since approval of the outline permission for the employment development in 2014 (Ref. 13/63740/EIAHYB) 

delivery of the scheme has progressed quickly and successfully, with Logistics North having become established 
as a high-quality strategic employment site in the north-west. The adjacent country park has become a valued local 
amenity. 

 
To date approximately 230,000m2+ of modern employment floorspace has been constructed at Logistics North.  
 

   Application Site 

Logistics North Wider Masterplan 
 
Following on from Lidl’s first reserved matters application at Plot G1, it was decided by the Company that the 

scheme – the subject of the March 2018 reserved matters approval – did not reflect the requirements of the 
business. A second application for a revised scheme was pursued by Lidl and this sought reserved matters 
approval for the erection of a 59,389 sqm Regional Distribution Centre (with ancillary offices) in a slightly different 

position on Plot G1 with outbuildings and other works (BMBC reference: 04904/18). BMBC approved the 
application in July 2019.  
 

This application now seeks reserved matters approval for the development of a Regional Distribution Centre (Use 
Class B8 with ancillary offices) and outbuildings with access, car parking, landscaping and other associated works 
at Plots G1 and G2, Logistics North. 

 
Pursuant to outline planning permission 90539/13, granted by Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council in April 2014, 
and outline planning permission 13/63740/EIAHYB, granted by Salford City Council in April 2014, the matters for 

which the application seeks approval are access, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping. 
  
Following a review of its distribution network, and to assist the Company’s expansion plans, Lidl intend to construct 

a new Regional Distribution Centre (RDC) at Logistics North. 
 

Page 68



 

 
The RDC will be delivered in two phases. The first phase will comprise of the construction and operation of an RDC 
measuring 89,494 sqm GIA (89,905 sqm GEA) with associated outbuildings, staff and visitor car parking, HGV 

parking, circulation routes, vehicular access points and landscaping.  
 
First Phase 

 
The RDC will be sited nearest to the southwest corner of the site. The ground floor will comprise a large warehouse 
area and a chiller / freezer warehouse. The first floor will include offices (2,766 sqm GIA), staff welfare facilities 

including changing rooms and shower facilities, and a plant room. 
 
Separate to the RDC building, various outbuildings (collectively measuring 1,745 sqm GIA) and structures will be 

provided across the site, including two sprinkler tanks, a pump house, generator, smoking shelters, drivers lounge 
and haulier cabins. 
 

The unit has been configured to meet design standards for industrial distribution buildings and the site has  been 
designed to provide end-user flexibility. The height and massing of the proposed building is in keeping with the 
Cutacre Masterplan proposals as it falls below the maximum 30m height secured under Condition 4 of the outline 

planning permission the eastern parcel. The building scale is proportionate to the adjoining units, having a parapet 
line of 21m above finished floor level. 
 

The building is of typical warehouse design with the principal external material identified as horizontally built -up wall 
cladding.  

 
 

A circulation route for vehicles will extend around the perimeter of the RDC building. HGV’s will access the route 
via a two-way internal access road from the eastern end of Lomax Way. 
 

This will allow HGVs to access the 218 loading docks along the northern and southern sides of the RDC and the 
HGV parking areas across the northern part of the site. The HGV parking areas will be capable of accommodating 
185 HGVs. 

 
A 573-space car park will be provided on the northwest portion of the site, to the south of Lomax Way. This will be 
accessed from Lomax Way and will provide 11 disabled bays and 20 spaces for electric vehicle charging. A total of 

160 cycle spaces will be sited in a covered and secured cycle shelter within the car park.  
 
The RDC will be accessible on foot through the car park by an entrance tower and a raised walkway across the 

circulation route around the building. The walkway will connect to the building and will ensure the safe movement of 
staff and visitors between the car park and the RDC. 
 

Second Phase 
 
The second phase of the development will result in the RDC building, as proposed, being extended to the east by 

an additional 18,846 sqm GIA (18,886 sqm GEA). 
 
The applicant has stated that, as the Company’s portfolio of food stores continues to expand in the region, there 

will eventually be a point where Lidl need to increase the amount of floorspace at the RDC to facilitate its 
operations. The Phase 2 works will not therefore commence until such time that it is necessary for Lidl to expand 
its logistics operations from the site. 

 
Following the completion of Phase 2, the RDC building will extend to 108,340 sqm GIA (108,790 sqm GEA).  
No further staff car parking will be provided, though an additional 16 HGV spaces will be provided alongside haulier 

cabins and a washdown area. The RDC, in its extended and final form, will be served by 573 car parking spaces 
and 201 HGV spaces. 

Page 69



 

 
 
The final landscaping scheme will comprise a format that will be suitably in-keeping with the surrounding area. 

Grassed areas and areas of planting will surround the inside perimeter of all four site boundaries. 
 
Publicity 

 
Site Notice: Non HH Article 15  
Reason: Wider Publicity 

 
Press Advert: Manchester Weekly News Salford Edition Date Published: 10 February 2022 
Reason: Article 15 Standard Press Notice 

 
Representations  
 

No letters of representation have been received in response to the application publicity.  
 
Relevant Site History 

 
13/63740/EIAHYB - Part A: Outline application (access details only) for phased employment development scheme 
comprising up to 102 ha of storage and distribution use (class B8), industrial use (class B2), associated/ancillary 

uses including business (class B1), hotel (class C1), shop, services and food and drink (class A1-A5) with 
associated access, utilities, ground works and sustainable drainage system.  
Part B: Full application for access and drainage infrastructure to serve initial phase(s) of development - Approve - 5 

December 2013. 
 
 

17/70415/NMA - Non-material amendment to vary relative proportions of industrial (Classes B1C/B2) and logistics 
(Class B8) floorspace within overall floorspace allowed; redesignate 'standalone' office floorspace as ancillary office 
floorspace; and to include 'light industrial (Class B1C)' within the definition of industrial use. – Approved 24.08.18 

 
 
20/75125/REM - Details of Reserved Matters planning application  pursuant to outline planning permission 

13/63740/EIAHYB for access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale for industrial/warehouse building with 
yard, parking and associated supporting infrastructure. – Approved 03.07.2020 
 

 
Consultations 
 

Highways - This is a Cross Boundary Reserved Matters Planning Application between Salford City Council and 
Bolton Council for approval of access, appearance, landscaping and scale for the erection of a Regional 
Distribution Centre (Use Class B8 with ancillary offices) with access, car parking, servicing, landscaping and other 

associated works.   

The Local Highway Authority has raised no concerns with above Cross Boundary Reserved Matters Planning 
Application as all traffic assessment has been undertaken and accepted during the outline application stage and 

therefore. 
 
Environmental –  

Air Quality 

The proposed development is not within the Greater Manchester Air Quality Management Area.  The scale and 
nature of the development is not likely to have a significant impact on traffic.  As such there are no objections to the 
development on Air Quality Grounds. 

Noise 
 

The application site is located within the administrative area of Bolton MBC.  The nearest noise sensitive receptor 
within the Salford area is on Wharton Lane, approximately 400m away. 

Page 70



 

 
A noise impact assessment has been submitted with the application to assess the impact of noise from external 
plant and HGV movements on neighbouring properties.  Due to the distance between the proposed development 

and residential properties, together with screening from other existing buildings, the predicted impact from noise is 
not considered to be significant. 

There are no objections on the grounds of noise. 

Land Contamination 

As this is a reserved matters application I have no objections on the grounds of land contamination. 

GMEU – The updated Ecology surveys and assessments have been undertaken by suitably qualified ecologists, 
and no further surveys need to be undertaken prior to deciding the application.  No objections. 
 

Planning Policy 
 
Development Plan Policy 

 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy ST1 Sustainable Urban Neighbourhoods 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy ST3 Employment Supply 

Unitary Development Plan - Policy EN9 Wildlife Corridors 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy E5 Development within Established Employment Areas 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy DES1 Respecting Context 

Unitary Development Plan - Policy DES2 Circulation and Movement 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy DES7 Amenity of Users and Neighbours 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy DES9 Landscaping 

Unitary Development Plan - Policy DES10 Design and Crime 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy A2 Cyclists, Pedestrians and the Disabled 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy A8 Impact of Development on Highway Network 

Unitary Development Plan - Policy A10 Provision of Car, Cycle and Motorcycle Parking in New Developments  
Unitary Development Plan - Policy ST13 Natural Environmental Assets 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy EN17 Pollution Control 

Unitary Development Plan - Policy EN19 Flood Risk and Surface Water 
Unitary Development Plan - Policy EN22 Resource Conservation 
 

Other Material Planning Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy 

  
National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Policy Guidance 

 
Local Planning Policy 
 

Supplementary Planning Document Sustainable Design and Construction 
Supplementary Planning Document Design (Shaping Salford) 
Supplementary Planning Document Design and Crime 

Supplementary Planning Document Established Employment Areas 
Supplementary Planning Document Nature Conservation and Biodiversity 
Planning Guidance - Flood Risk and Development 

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) paragraph 48 establishes that local planning authorities may give 
weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:  

(a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater the weight 
that may be given); 

(b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant the unresolved 

objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
(c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the NPPF (the closer the policies 

in the emerging plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given).  

There are currently two emerging plans to consider. 

Page 71



 

 
First, Places for Everyone Publication Plan, the joint Development Plan Document for nine districts in Greater 
Manchester, which was published for consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 on 9 August 2021. Representations were invited until 3 October 2021; the 
plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 14 February 2022 and examination hearings are 
due to commence in Summer 2022. The emerging policies which are relevant to this application are discussed 

where applicable in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF paragraph 48.  
 
Second, the Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management Policies  and Designations (SLP:DMP), 

which was published on 27 January 2020 and comments were invited until 20 March 2020.   An Addendum was 
published on 5 February 2021 and comments were invited on this until 19 March 2021.  The Publication SMP:DMP 
and the Addendum were submitted to the Secretary of State for examination on 30 June 2021 and the examination 

hearings took place over 7 days in December 2021. The plan has been subject to a significant amount of public 
consultation in previous stages of its production and the city council has considered the comments made to 
determine the extent to which there are unresolved objections to its policies. Those policies (i.e. the Publication 

SLP:DMP policies as modified through the Addendum) which are relevant to this application are discussed where 
appropriate in this report with appropriate weight being afforded in accordance with NPPF paragraph 48. It is 
expected that the SLP:DMP will be adopted in Summer 2022.  

 
In addition, NPPF paragraph 219 establishes that existing policies (such as Salford’s UDP) are not out -of-date 
simply because they were adopted or made prior to the publication of NPPF.   Due weight should be given to them, 

according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, and the closer the policies in the UDP to the policies in the 
NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given. In terms of this application it is considered that the relevant 
policies of the UDP can be afforded due weight for the purposes of decision making as the relevant criteria within 

the UDP policies applicable to the proposed development are consistent with the policies contained in the NPPF.  
 
Appraisal  

 
Principle 
 

The principle of erecting industrial floor-space within the wider application site was established as part of the 
approval granted for hybrid application 13/63740/EIAHYB. As such this assessment shall only consider the impacts 
associated with the detailed means of access onto and around Plots G1 & G2; the layout, scale and design of the 

proposed warehouse building; and the arrangement of landscaping within the plot. The development proposed 
conforms to all relevant parameters and conditions of that outline permission.  
 

Design 
 
i) Layout 

 
The layout comprises of a single building positioned on the south-western part of the plot, thereby allowing access 
from the spine road ahead of the building. The orientation of the building is consistent with the existing and 

approved buildings in this area of the Logistics North site.  
 
The loading areas are located to both the north and south sides of the building and HGV parking is located 

adjacent to the north elevation of the building and car parking to the north of that. The position and orientation of 
the building ensures that yard activity and the loading via the main doors generally faces inwards to the Logistics 
North site (rather than the Country Park). 

 
The ancillary office space within the building is located to its north elevation, thereby located in the most accessible 
position to the plot access and car park. A plant area is located the west of the building which will accommodate 

two sprinkler tanks, a generator, and pump house. 
 
There would also be a hauliers located within the HGV lorry parking area. This will be followed (when phase 2 is 

implemented) by 6 x haulier cabins and a washdown area.  
 
Access into the site was previously approved (by BMBC) and constructed, along with 2 bell -mouths into plots G1 & 

G2. This has allowed the design to utilise these, giving immediate access to private car parking upon entering the 
site, as previously designed. This is a design feature that is common with the previously approved layout. 
 

Page 72



 

 
HGVs can circulate all sides of the RDC in a two-way direction, allowing full use of loading docks and HGV parking 
as required. However, the second bell mouth has allowed for a separate access/egress for HGVs. This not only 

promotes increased security levels of the site, but also safety for those on foot/bicycles.  
 
The layout is considered to represent the optimum configuration of development within the plot to meet occupier 

requirements, whilst preserving the amenity of users of the adjacent land and footpaths.  
 
ii) Scale, Massing and Design 

 
Application 13/63740/EIAHYB was accompanied by a scale parameters plan that divided the site up into ‘west’ and 
‘east’ parcels. Plots G1 and G2 fall within the eastern portion of the site, meaning that buildings should be no 

higher than 30m above the finished floor-level. The building scale is proportionate to the adjoining units, having a 
ridge line (finished height) of approx. 21.0m above finished floor level and is therefore well below the scale 
parameters set out in application 13/63740/EIAHYB. The total floorspace of Phase 1 and Phase 2 will be circa. 

108,340 sqm GIA (108,790 sqm GEA), which is intended to meet occupier requirements whilst making efficient use 
of the land available. 
 

The design of the proposed warehouse is typical of its use and is similar to the other buildings. An acceptable level 
of visual interest would be achieved on the elevation fronting the highway through the application of different 
materials / colour and the introduction of a glazed foyer and office windows. 

The image below shows the proposed building, with a precedent image of unit F2/G (Multiply Phase) 

 

 

 

In addition to the main building, it is proposed to erect seven outbuilding types, which vary in form, scale and use. 

These outbuildings include the following:- 

 Driver’s Lounge, 

 Cycle Store, 

 Pallet Store, 

 Smoking shelters (x7), 

 Haulier Cabins, 

 Generator,  

 Sprinkler Tanks Pump House. 

Page 73



 

 
The design, scale and siting of these buildings is considered to be acceptable in this industrial context. 

The landscaping works will be discussed in further detail later in the report.  

The proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy DES1 of the UDP.  

Access, Highways and Parking Provision 

The access to the proposed development plot is consistent with the access strategy across Logistics North. Two 

points of access to the development plot, from the Logistics North spine road, are proposed for all users.  

Access on foot or by cycle is also possible via the Logistics North spine road footpath/cycleway (with connection to 
the path network within the country park) and the Wharton Lane track via a new link. Cycle parking provision is 

included in a bespoke structure to the front of the building, adjacent to the car park area.  

Application 17/70415/NMA approved amendments to the agreed trip generation for the wider Masterplan 
development, to reflect the actual land-uses that have been implemented to date as opposed to those that were 

predicted at the time of the initial Hybrid application (ref: 13/64740/EIAHYB).  

The Regional Distribution Centre (RDC) will be delivered in two phases. The first phase will see the construction 
and operation of an RDC measuring 89,494 sqm GIA (89,905 sqm GEA).  

The HGV parking areas will be capable of accommodating 185 HGVs.  A circulation route for vehicles will ext end 
around the perimeter of the RDC building. HGV’s will access the route via a two-way internal access road from the 
eastern end of Lomax Way. This will allow HGVs to access the 218 loading docks along the northern and southern 

sides of the RDC and the HGV parking areas across the northern part of the site.  

A 573-space car park will be provided on the northwest portion of the site, to the south of Lomax Way. This will be 
accessed from Lomax Way and will provide 11 disabled bays and 20 spaces for electric vehicle charging. A total of 

160 cycle spaces will be sited in a covered and secured cycle shelter within the car park.  In respect of the disabled 
parking provision, the adopted UDP would require 17 disabled bays to be provided. (Over 200 bays 6 bays plus 2% 
of total capacity). As such a condition will be attached to ensure that that 17 disabled bays are provided.   

Phase 2 of the development will result in the RDC building, as proposed, being extended to the east by an 
additional 18,846 sqm GIA (18,886 sqm GEA).  No further staff car parking will be provided, though an additional 
16 HGV spaces will be provided alongside haulier cabins and a washdown area. The RDC, in its extended and 

final form, will be served by 573 car parking spaces and 201 HGV spaces.  The Councils highway Engineer has 
been consulted and is satisfied that the total amount of car parking and HGV parking being provided at the site 
would be acceptable upon the build out and occupation of Phase 2 of the development.  

Pedestrians can enter the plot via the footpath on the existing estate road. The unit will have a main pedestrian 
entrance to the building. Secondary and emergency access will also be on other elevations of the building.  

Cyclists arriving at the site would enter the plot via the access road, or via the pedestrian accesses if they 

dismount. Cyclists can also access the site, as well as the country park, via the restricted byway along the gas 
easement, and Wharton Lane to the east. Based on a B8 building of the size proposed, a minimum of 127 cycle 
spaces would be required (1 per 850m2). In this case a total of 160 cycle spaces will be sited in a covered and 

secured cycle shelter within the car park. This is considered acceptable.  

To this and the proposed development complies with policies A2, A8 and A10 of the UDP.  

Amenity 

This current application is for reserved matters and therefore the principle of the proposal in this location has 
already been established by way application 13/64740/EIAHYB and the potential impacts on residential amenity 
already considered. Notwithstanding this the nearest residential dwellings  within Salford are located approximately 

400m to the northeast on Wharton Lane. As such the proposed building would not generate adverse visual impacts 
on Salford residents. 

Flood Risk & Drainage 

Page 74



 

 
An overall strategy for flood risk and drainage across the wider Logistics North site was developed as part of the 
outline planning permission. 

A detailed drainage strategy has been submitted with this application, which demonstrates how the plot will connect 
in with the wider, approved strategy for Logistics North Phase 3. The sustainable drainage system which serves 
this parcel of the Logistics North development was designed and modified with the intent to receive surface water 

from this development plot via the existing network. The surface water drainage networks constructed as part of the 
Logistics North-eastern Phase have been designed to accommodate an unrestricted discharge rate from the 
individual development plots. 

This system has the capacity to accommodate surface water from Plots G1 and G2 in all applicable scenarios with 
the necessary adjustment for climate change. The proposed development is considered to be in accordance with 
Policy EN19 of the City of Salford UDP and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Ecology & Biodiversity 

Part of the eastern section of the application site is allocated as a Wildlife Corridor. The application site is part of 
the wider Logistics North Business Park and is one of the last development platforms to be brought forward. The 

site has been prepared for development under previous approved applications and as a result now comprises of 
mostly bare ground, with limited ecological interest. Most of the required ecological mitigation for the plot has  
already been implemented as part of holistic plans for the wider site, including the Habitats and Biodiversity 

Management Plan for Logistics North (first prepared in 2014). This application will have regard to this existing Plan. 

Notwithstanding this, the applicant has submitted updated Ecology surveys and assessments in support of the 
application which have been undertaken by suitably qualified ecologists, and no further surveys need to be 

undertaken prior to deciding the application. 

The site has previously been cleared and prepared for development, but several years have passed since this 
clearance was undertaken and the site is starting to develop minor ecological interest. 

 
Great Crested newts 
 

The site was cleared of great crested newts some time ago under a License issued by Natural England, but the 
newt exclusion fences around the development platform have evidently not been kept in a good state of repair and 
newts have been able to re-colonise ponds on the site and breed. A new newt trapping and exclusion exercise will 

now be needed to ensure that great crested newts are not harmed by the development, and it is likely that a new or 
updated protected species License for the site will need to be obtained to allow this to happen. Extensive 
compensatory habitats for newts were provided as part of the original permissions granted for the wider site, 

particularly within the new Country Park, and therefore no compensatory habitats will be required for the loss of the 
ephemeral ponds now present on the application site.  
 

Given the above a condition has been attached to ensure that no further groundworks or site clearance works shall 
commence unless the local planning authority has been provided with either:  
 

a) a licence issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 55 of The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations (Amendments) (EU Exit) 2019.  authorizing the specified activity/development to 
go ahead; or 

 
b) a statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not consider that the 

specified activity/development will require a licence. 

 
 
Habitat Losses and Biodiversity Net Gain 

 
Compensation for the semi-natural habitats which were present on the site before it was cleared and prepared for 
development was provided in the new, extensive, Cutacre Country Park to the south. The habitats within the 

Country Park will also provide an acceptable level of biodiversity net gain for the development.   
 
Nesting Birds 

 

Page 75



 

 
The site is suiatble for use by ground nesting birds. All nesting birds, their eggs and young are specially protected 
under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). An informative has been attached to 

remind the developer of their responsibilities to any potential nesting birds.   
 
Landscaping 

A hard and soft landscaping scheme has been submitted with the application. The proposed landscaping is 
designed to facilitate access throughout the site as well as softening the built form. 

The strengthening of the green corridor along the southern boundary adjacent to the Cutacre Country Park is a key 

element of the proposals and a native hedgerow along the northwest site boundary, as well as thicket planting to 
the east and west boundaries, will provide additional habitat and screening. 

The newly designed landscaping aims to enhance the biodiversity of the site, complementing and integrating into 

the wider environment that surrounds the proposed distribution centre. 

The landscape design strategy is intended to create a functional site that is easy to manage due to its large scale 
and use as a distribution centre, however the landscape plant selection has been ecologically driven to also reflect 

its opportunity to provide a positive function as a wildlife space. It is also designed to protect and enhance local 
species through the creation of appropriate habitat.  

A large proportion of the site associated with the distribution centre is intended to be a rougher, more nature-

focused space that humans will be discouraged from interacting with. These areas contain blocks of thicket and 
scrubland planting, and most of the grass will be planted as wildflower meadows. The area around the entrance to 
the site will be more intensively used by both vehicles and people; as such this space is more functional, and will 

be more consistently managed.  
 
The proposed planting species mix also provides a desirable mixture of textures, colour and year-round visual 

interest whilst allowing for a relative ease of maintenance, promoting aesthetic interest and supporting ecological 
gain. All the proposed hedgerows and trees have been selected to complement existing native species found within 
the site, and the local area, with seed mixes bringing an even greater benefit to the site having regard to the 

existing ecology. 
 
Given the above the proposed landscaping is considered to be acceptable. A condition will be attached to ensure 

that the landscaping is managed in accordance with the submitted landscape management plan. The proposal is 
considered to be in accordance with policy DES9 of the adopted UDP. 
 

Environmental 
 
Air Quality 

 
Air quality has been considered as part of application 13/63740/EIAHYB and therefore the Local Planning 
Authority has no further observations to make in respect of this application.  

 
Noise 

The application site is principally located within the administrative area of Bolton MBC.  The nearest noise sensitive 

receptor within the Salford area is 400m to the northeast on Wharton Lane.  

A noise impact assessment has been submitted with the application to assess the impact of noise from external 
plant and HGV movements on neighbouring properties.  Due to the distance between the proposed development 

and residential properties, together with screening from other existing buildings, the predicted impact from noise is 
not considered to be significant. 

The LPA agrees with the conclusions of the report, and has no objections on the grounds of noise.  

 
Land Contamination 
 

The Council’s Environmental Officer has been consulted and has advised that there are no objections to the 
proposal in respect of land contamination. 
 

Given the above, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with policy EN17 of the adopted UDP.  

Page 76



 

 
 
Recommendation 

 
Approve 
 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 

plans: 

  
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061216 - SPRINKLER TANKS and PUMP HOUSE_REV-P3(A1) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051614 - ELEVATIONS (1 of 2)_REV-P9(A0) 

 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051610 - SITE PLAN_REV-P9_(A0) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051613 - ROOF PLAN_REV-P9(A1) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051618 - SECTIONS_REV-P4(A0) 

 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051619 - SITE SECTION_REV-P2_(A0) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051615 - ELEVATIONS (2 of 2)_REV-P9(A0) 
 217043-IMA-ST-ZZ-DR-A-051501 - EXISTING SITE PLAN_REV-P2_(A0) 

 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061211 - PROPOSED SURFACES FINISHES PLAN_REV-P6(A0) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061215 - HAULIER CABINS_REV-P3(A1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061217 - CYCLE STORE_REV-P3(A1) 

 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061218 - DRIVERS LOUNGE_REV-P4(A1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061214 - SMOKING SHELTER_REV-P3(A1) 
 217043-IMA-WH-00-DR-A-051601 - GROUND PLAN_REV-P3(A1) 

 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051603 - ROOF PLAN_REV-P9(A1) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051608 - SECTIONS_REV-P2(A0) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051611 - GROUND FLOOR PLAN_REV-P3(A1) 

 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051604 - ELEVATIONS (1 of 2)_REV-P8(A0) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051612 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN_REV-P4(A1) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051605 - ELEVATIONS (2 of 2)_REV-P8(A0) 

 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061213 - GENERATOR_REV-P1(A1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061201 - PROPOSED SURFACES FINISHES PLAN_REV-P6(A0)(1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-051600 -PROPOSED SITE PLAN_REV-P9(A0)(1) 

 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061212 - PALLET STORE_REV-P3(A1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061200 - SITE BOUNDARY TREATMENT PLAN_REV-P6(A0)(1) 
 217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-061210 - SITE BOUNDARY TREATMENT PLAN_REV-P6(A0) 

 217043-IMA-OF-01-DR-A-051602 - FIRST FLOOR PLAN_REV-P5(A1)(2) 
 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051500 - SITE LOCATION PLAN_REV-P2_(A0) 
 SOFT LANDSCAPING SHEET LAYOUT 

 SOFT LANDSCAPE PLANTING SHEET 1 
 SOFT LANDSCAPE PLANTING SHEET 2 
 SOFT LANDSCAPE PLANTING SHEET 3 

 SOFT LANDSCAPE PLANTING SHEET 4 
 SOFT LANDSCAPE PLANTING SHEET 5 
 Detailed cross sections sheet 1 

 Detailed cross sections sheet 2 
 Detailed cross sections sheet 3 
  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.  
  
  

2. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed entirely of the materials, details of which are 
shown on the approved plan 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051604 - ELEVATIONS (1 of 2)_REV-P8(A0) & 
217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-051605 - ELEVATIONS (2 of 2)_REV-P8(A0). 

  
 Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of visual amenity in accordance 

with Policy DES1 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the requirements of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
3. a) Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall 

not be occupied until full details of both hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the formation of 

Page 77



 

 
any banks, terraces or other earthworks, hard surfaced areas and materials, boundary treatments, 
external lighting, planting plans, specifications and schedules (including planting size, species and 

numbers/densities), existing plants / trees to be retained and a scheme for the timing / phasing of 
implementation works. 

  

 (b) The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme for timing / 
phasing of implementation or within 18 months of first occupation of the development hereby 
permitted, whichever is the later. 

  
 (c) Any trees or shrubs planted or retained in accordance with this condition which are removed, 

uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely damaged or become seriously diseased within 5 years 

of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees or shrubs of similar size and 
species to those originally required to be planted. 

  

 Reason:  To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to its location and the 
nature of the proposed development and in accordance with Policies DES1 and DES9 of the City of 
Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
4. Prior to use of any part of the site for open storage of the development hereby approved full details 

of open storage within the confines of the application site, if proposed, shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Submitted details should include the area 
proposed, proposed types of materials and/or equipment to be stored, means of enclosure / 
screening and maximum heights of external storage. The approved details shall be implemented in 

full and retained thereafter. There shall be no other external storage except within the hereby 
approved storage area(s). 

  

 Reason: To safeguard the visual appearance and character of the area in accordance with Policy 
DES1 of the City of Salford unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

5. The vehicle parking, servicing and other vehicular access arrangements shown on the approved 
plans to serve the development hereby permitted shall be made available for use prior to the 
development being brought into use and shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose. 

  
 Reason: In the interest of highway safety and the free flow of traffic and in accordance with policies 

A2, A8 and A10 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 
 
6. Notwithstanding the details shown on the drawings hereby approved,  the development shall not be 

brought into first use or occupation until details of seventeen (17) disabled parking bays have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved disabled 
parking bays shall be implemented and made available for their intended use prior to the first 

occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be retained thereafter.  
  
 Reason: To encourage more sustainable modes of travel in accordance with policies ST14, A2 and 

A10 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
7. The cycle parking shall be implemented in accordance with the details shown on approved drawings 

217043-IMA-ST-00-DR-A-051600 -PROPOSED SITE PLAN_REV-P9(A0)(1) & 217043-IMA-WH-ZZ-DR-A-
051610 - SITE PLAN_REV-P9_(A0) and shall be made available for its intended use prior to the first 
occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be retained thereafter. 

  
 Reason: To encourage more sustainable modes of travel in accordance with policies ST14, A2 and 

A10 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
8. Prior to the first use of the unit/building hereby approved, a detailed scheme shall be submitted to, 

and approved by, the Local Planning Authority showing the design and size of a facility to store 

refuse and waste materials. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full prior to first use of 
the development hereby approved and retained thereafter.  

  

Page 78



 

 
 Reason: To safeguard the visual appearance and character of the area and to ensure satisfactory 

provision is made for the storage of waste materials in accordance with Policy DES 1 and EN 17 of 

the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
9. The 11 electric vehicle charging points shall be implemented in accordance with the details shown 

on the approved drawings shall be made available for i ts intended use prior to the occupation of the 
development hereby approved and shall be retained thereafter.  

  

 Reason: To encourage more sustainable modes of travel in accordance with policies ST14, A2 and 
A10 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework 

 

10. No groundworks or site clearance works shall commence unless the local planning authority has 
been provided with either: 

 

 a) A licence issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 55 of The Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations (Amendments) (EU Exit) 2019.  authorizing the specified 
activity/development to go ahead; or 

 
 b) A statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not consider that 

the specified activity/development will require a licence. 

 
 Reason: To ensure protection to protected species and their habitats within the application site and 

the surroundings area in accordance with Policy EN9 of the City of Salford UDP and the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 Reason for Pre-commencement Condition: Great Crested Newts are a protected species and 

therefore the LPA need to ensure that no Great Crested Newts or their habitats will be affected by the 
development, having regard to Policy EN9 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan, the NPPF 
and the terms of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2010. 
 
Notes to Applicant 

 
 
1. INFORMATIVE NOTE 

  
 The proposed development lies within an area that has been defined by the Coal Authority as 

containing potential hazards arising from former coal mining activity at the surface or shallow 

depth.  These hazards can include: mine entries (shafts and adits); shallow coal workings; 
geological features (fissures and break lines); mine gas and  former surface mining sites.  Although 
such hazards are seldom readily visible, they can often be present and problems can occur in the 

future, particularly as a result of new development taking place.   
  
 It is recommended that information outlining how former mining activities may affect the proposed 

development, along with any mitigation measures required (for example the need for gas protection 
measures within the foundations), is submitted alongside any subsequent application for Building 
Regulations approval (if relevant).    

  
 Any form of development over or within the influencing distance of a mine entry can be dangerous 

and raises significant land stability and public safety risks.  As a general precautionary principle, 

the Coal Authority considers that the building over or within the influencing distance of a mine 
entry should be avoided.  In exceptional circumstance where this is unavoidable,  expert advice 
must be sought to ensure that a suitable engineering design which takes into account all the 

relevant safety and environmental risk factors, including mine gas and mine -water.  Your attention 
is drawn to the Coal Authority Policy in relation to new development and mine entries available at:  

 www.gov.uk/government/publications/building-on-or-within-the-influencing-distance-of-mine-

entries 
  
 Any intrusive activities which disturb or enter any coal seams, coal mine workings or coal mine 

entries (shafts and adits) requires a Coal Authority Permit.  Such activities could include site 
investigation boreholes, excavations for foundations, piling activities, other ground works and any 

Page 79



 

 
subsequent treatment of coal mine workings and coal mine entries for ground stability purposes.  
Failure to obtain a Coal Authority Permit for such activities is trespass, with the potential for court 

action.   
  
 If any coal mining features are unexpectedly encountered during development, this should be 

reported immediately to the Coal Authority on 0345 762 6848.  Further information is available on 
the Coal Authority website at: 

 www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority  

  
 Informative Note valid from 1st January 2021 until 31st December 2022 
2. All species of bats found in the UK receive a high level of legal protection under the terms of the 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.  
Bats roost in a variety of places and will use cracks, crevices and holes in trees. They are mobile in 
their habits and can turn up in the most unlikely places at any time of year.  Precautions should be 

taken throughout works, at any time of year, with the possible presence of bats borne in mind.  If 
bats are found at any time during works, then work should cease immediately and advice sought 
from Natural England or a suitably qualified bat worker.  

3. The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) makes it an offence (with certain limited 
exceptions and in the absence of a licence) to intentionally to kill, injure or take any wild bird, or 
intentionally to damage, take or destroy its nest whilst it is being built or is in use, or to take or 

destroy its eggs. Further, the Act affords additional protection to specific species of birds listed in 
Schedule 1 of the Act. In respect of these species it is unlawful to intentionally or recklessly to 
disturb such a bird whilst it is nest-building or is at or near a nest with eggs or young; or to disturb 

their dependent young.  You are therefore advised to seek the advice of a suitably qualified 
ecologist before commencing works on site. 

4. The applicant is advised that they have a duty to adhere to the regulations of Part 2A of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990, the National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the current 
Building Control Regulations with regards to contaminated land. The responsibility to ensure the 
safe development of land affected by contamination rests primarily with the developer.  

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Page 80



 

Part 1: Open to the Public 

 
 

REPORT OF The Strategic Director for Place 

 
 

TO The Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel 
ON 7th April 2022

 
 
TITLE: Planning Applications determined under Delegated Authority  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That the report be noted. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: To set out details of applications determined by the 
Strategic Director for Place in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
(Available for public inspection) Details of the applications are available on the 
Council’s Public Access Website 
http://publicaccess.salford.gov.uk/publicaccess/default.aspx 
If you would like to access this information in an alternative format, please contact 
the planning office on 0161-779 6195 or e-mail planning.contact@salford.gov.uk 

 
KEY DECISION: NO 

 
DETAILS: Please refer to the attached schedule. 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Performance Management 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A  

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Liz Taylor  TEL NO: 0161 779 4803 
 

Page 81

Agenda Item 6

http://publicaccess.salford.gov.uk/publicaccess/default.aspx


 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: As specified in the attached schedule. 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Recommendation 
 
PER    =  Approve  
AUTH    =  Consent  
REF    = Refuse  
NO OBJECTION  =  Allow the scheme as no objections have been received.  An 

example would be used in response to consultations from 
neighbouring authorities or in relation to prior approvals when 
no objections have been received  

DISCON   = Discharge of condition – an example would be that the 
submitted information is approved 

PDIS    =  Part discharge of conditions requested – an example of this 
would be that negotiations are still on-going with regard to some 
of the requested conditions or the condition is a multi- staged 
condition and part is acceptable  

NDIS    =  Not Discharging condition requested – an example would be 
the submitted information is not acceptable and the decision is to 
refuse  

 

Application Type 
 
FUL    =       Full application  
ADV    =      Advert Application  
OUT    =       Outline Application 
HH    =       Householder Application  
REM    =       Reserved Matters  
COU    =       Change of use  
LBC    =       Listed Building Consent  
CON    =       Conservation Area Consent  
DISCON   =     Formal Discharge of Condition  
NMA    =      Non-Material Amendment  
MMA    = Minor material Amendment  
DEMCON   = Demolition Consultation  
TPO    = Tree Application  
TEL56    = Telecommunication Notification  
ART16   = Art16 Notification 
PDE    = General Permitted Development Extension 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 82



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY DCM 
   

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78376/TREECA  DATE VALID: 08.02.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Chris Heywood 
 

LOCATION: Land To The Rear Of 67 Greenleach Lane 
Worsley 
M28 2RT 

 
PROPOSAL: Reduce crown to leave a height of 12m one ash (T1). Reduce to leave 
a height of 6ft one holly (T2). 

 
DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Boothstown 
And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78573/HH  DATE VALID: 08.11.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Dan Lonsdale 
 

LOCATION: 160 Vicars Hall Lane 
Worsley 
M28 1HY 

 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of an existing single storey detached front garage and 
single storey rear outrigger and erection of a single storey side/front, two storey rear 

extension and front canopy porch extension including external alterations  
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 24 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Boothstown 
And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78667/DISCON  DATE VALID: 29.10.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Steve Potter 

 
LOCATION: 8 Delaford Avenue 
Worsley 

M28 2QS 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 4 (Phase 2 Site 

Investigation report) and 9 (Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS)) attached to 
planning permission 21/76796/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 
And 

Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

Page 83



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78701/HH  DATE VALID: 06.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Vikas Gupta 
 
LOCATION: 20 Mallowdale 

Worsley 
M28 1ZW 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey side conservatory and erection of 
single storey rear, two storey side and single storey front porch extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78970/HH  DATE VALID: 04.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Reeves 
 
LOCATION: 2 Wardley Hall Lane 

Worsley 
M28 2RL 
 

PROPOSAL: Construction/alteration to an existing front boundary treatment 
including vehicular and pedestrian access gates 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78971/HH  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Albinson 
 
LOCATION: 4 Wardley Hall Lane 

Worsley 
M28 2RL 
 

PROPOSAL: Construction/alteration to an existing front boundary treatment 
including vehicular and pedestrian access gates 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

Page 84



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79025/HH  DATE VALID: 23.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Sue Caisley 
 
LOCATION: 12 Godmond Hall Drive 

Worsley 
M28 1YF 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension. 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79070/HH  DATE VALID: 07.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Peter Brogan 

 
LOCATION: 22 Bellpit Close 
Worsley 

M28 7XH 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension (resubmission of 

21/77250/HH) 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 28 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 
And 

Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79077/HH  DATE VALID: 08.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr L Manfield 

 
LOCATION: 43 Glen Avenue 
Worsley 

M28 2RP 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension and single storey rear 

extension including external alterations 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 
And 

Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

Page 85



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79078/HH  DATE VALID: 08.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr J Buckle 
 
LOCATION: 20 Alfred Avenue 

Worsley 
M28 2TX 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erect ion of a 
two storey rear extension including juilet balcony and single storey front porch 
extension 

 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79088/TPO  DATE VALID: 11.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Deborah Ivill 
 

LOCATION: 10 Crossfield Drive 
Worsley 
M28 1GP 

 
PROPOSAL: Crown thin by 20% one oak (T1). 
 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Boothstown 
And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79135/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 

LOCATION: Boothstown Community Centre 
Standfield Drive 
Worsley 

M28 1NB 
 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Boothstown 
And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

Page 86



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79178/PDE  DATE VALID: 24.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Neil _ Sarah Simpson 
 
LOCATION: 59 Wyre Drive 

Worsley 
M28 1HH 
 

PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79163/HH  DATE VALID: 20.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Kristian Icely 
 
LOCATION: 18 Standfield Drive 

Worsley 
M28 1NB 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey side and rear wrap round extension 
including a pitched roof above existing single storey element 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79165/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 20.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs Neil & Sarah Simpson 
 
LOCATION: 59 Wyre Drive 

Worsley 
M28 1HH 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a hip to gable with rear dormer including roof light in the 
front roof slope 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

Page 87



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79177/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr and Mrs Faulkner 
 
LOCATION: 51 Highclove Lane 

Worsley 
M28 1GZ 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension and conversion of garage 
including external alterations 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79200/HH  DATE VALID: 25.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Daniel Scott 
 
LOCATION: 69 Wyre Drive 

Worsley 
M28 1HH 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey side and rear wrap round extension 
including raised patio area 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79247/HH  DATE VALID: 04.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs Sherrard 
 
LOCATION: 120 Boothshall Way 

Worsley 
Salford 
M28 1UX 

 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of an existing rear conservatory and erection of a single 
storey rear extension including external alterations 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 24 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 
 

  

Page 88



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79364/NMA  DATE VALID: 22.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:McCaul 
 
LOCATION: The Spinney  

482 Walkden Road 
Worsley 
Salford 

M28 2WH 
 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following a grant of planning 

permission 20/75266/FUL for reduced number of roof lights, omitted brick plinth 
detail, and internal layout amendments. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Boothstown 

And 
Ellenbrook 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/77086/FUL  DATE VALID: 11.03.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Majid Maqbool 
 
LOCATION: Broughton Hub  

50 Rigby Street 
Salford 
M7 4BQ 

 
PROPOSAL: Installation of 8 air-source heat pumps (ASHPs) and re-siting of 4 air 
conditioning condenser units to the south-east roof, including an extension to the 

existing plant deck and screening enclosure, together with installation of 6 air 
conditioning condenser units to the north-east roof 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78054/DISCON  DATE VALID: 09.07.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr David Gratrix 
 
LOCATION: Site At Mocha Parade 

Lower Broughton Road 
Salford 
M7 1QE 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 23 (flood resilient 
construction) and 27 (emergency planning statement) attached to planning 

permission 20/76070/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 

 

  

Page 89



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78382/FUL  DATE VALID: 11.10.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Martin Katz 
 
LOCATION: Various Locations Within An Area Encompassed By 

Corner Of Great Cheetham Street West And Lower Broughton Road,  
Salford,  
M7 2HR 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of poles and TPK's, some with string connecting some 
standalone, at strategic points to extend existing Eruv 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78894/DISCON  DATE VALID: 27.11.2021 

 
APPLICANT:. 
 

LOCATION: Mocha Parade 
Salford 
M7 1QE 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 11 
(Landscaping), 12 (Landscape Management Plan), 17 (Phase 2 Site Investigation 

Report), 19 (Tree Replacement Scheme), 20 (Landscape and Habitat Creation 
Scheme) and 28 (Highway Improvement Works) attached to planning permission 
21/76964/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 7 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Broughton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79020/DISCON  DATE VALID: 22.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:. 

 
LOCATION: Mocha Parade 
Salford 

M7 1QE 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 4 (Construction 

Method Statement), 7 (cycle parking storage), 8 (secure external plant area), 9 
(external lighting) and 10 (waste management and servicing strategy) attached to 
planning permission 21/76964/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined            
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 7 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 
 

  

Page 90



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79120/COU  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Harry Pettener 
 
LOCATION: 2 The Avenue 

Salford 
M7 2LD 
 

PROPOSAL: Change of Use from 3 bed dwelling (C3) to a 3 Bed HMO (C4) 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79128/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:InPost UK 

 
LOCATION: Broughton Leisure Centre 
Great Cheetham Street West 

Salford 
M7 2DN 
 

PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 24 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79369/DISCON  DATE VALID: 23.02.2022 
 
APPLICANT:n/a 

 
LOCATION: Mocha Parade 
Salford 

M7 1QE 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 3 (Materials), 13 

(EV charging), 18 (verification report), 26 (travel information pack) and 29 (public 
realm) attached to planning permission 21/76964/FUL. Request for confirmation of 
partial compliance of condition 27 (full travel plan (FTP)) attached to planning 

permission 21/76964/FUL. 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined            

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 7 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 

 

  

Page 91



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79551/DISCON  DATE VALID: 28.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Rubyn Campbell 
 
LOCATION: 212 Great Clowes Street 

Salford 
M7 2ZS 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance with conditions attached to 
planning permission 16/68998/FUL 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Broughton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78473/HYBEIA  DATE VALID: 15.09.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Renaker Build Ltd 
 
LOCATION: Land Bound By Greengate, Collier Street, Queen And King Street And 

Gravel Lane  
M3 7BN 
 

PROPOSAL: Application pursuant to s.73 of the Act for variations to conditions 4 
(Approved Plans), 5 (Quantum of Development) and 6 (Phasing) of hybrid planning 
permission ref. 19/74465/HYBEIA, in order to reflect changes to the phasing of 

phases 2 and 3 of the development, a correction to the quantum of commercial 
floorspace at Plot C, amendments to the phasing boundaries to accommodate 
provision of a surface water attenuation tank, and amendments to reduce the height 

parameters to the podium of Plot C from 2-3 storeys to 1-3 storeys (Application 
accompanied by Environmental Statement addenda and technical notes).  
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Blackfriars 

And Trinity 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78806/NMA  DATE VALID: 12.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT: 
 
LOCATION: Land Bound By Greengate, Collier Street, Queen And King Street And 

Gravel Lane  
M3 7BN 
 

PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 21/78473/HYBEIA for amendments to Plot HJ, Phase 1 
 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Blackfriars 

And Trinity 

 

 
 

  

Page 92



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78884/OUT  DATE VALID: 24.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Mark Heavey 
 
LOCATION: Unit 5  

East Philip Street 
Salford 
M3 7LE 

 
PROPOSAL: Outline planning application with all matters reserved except for scale 
and layout for the partial demolition of existing industrial premises and conversion to 

four one bedroom houses Re-submission of 21/76875/OUT 
 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Blackfriars 

And Trinity 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79156/NMA  DATE VALID: 19.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Keane 

 
LOCATION: Land Bound By  
Hulme Street, Gaythorn Street And  

Upper Wharf Street  
Salford 
M5 4PX 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 18/71512/FUL for minor variation of condition 2 (approved plans) and the 

addition of condition 29 (generator testing times). 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Blackfriars 
And Trinity 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79167/DISCON  DATE VALID: 20.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr James Tosh 

 
LOCATION: Chapel Street 
Salford 

M3 7NH 
 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 3 (Construction 
Method Statement), 4 (Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) Archaeology) and 5 
(Phase 2 Site Investigation report) attached to planning permission 20/76134/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Blackfriars 
And Trinity 

 

 
 

  

Page 93



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78995/HH  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Karl Hallworth 
 
LOCATION: 36 Schofield Road 

Eccles 
M30 7LT 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side and single storey side/rear extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79036/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 24.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Ken Winder 

 
LOCATION: 29 Finstock Close 
Eccles 

M30 7NP 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing rear extension and front porch and erection of a 

single storey rear and side porch extension including conversion of an existing 
single storey detached garage into a living area 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 
Winton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79086/DISCON  DATE VALID: 01.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Kenny Davies 
 
LOCATION: 23 Clifford Street 

Eccles 
M30 7HR 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 5 (materials), 7 
(Construction Method Statement), 10 (Biodiversity Enhancement Measures) and 11 
(Phase 2 Site Investigation report) attached to planning permission 21/77251/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 
 

  

Page 94



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79087/DISCON  DATE VALID: 11.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:mr Ibrahim Janneh 
 
LOCATION: 71 Barton Road 

Eccles 
M30 7AE 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 3 (sample panel 
of the materials), 10 (noise mitigation measures) and 11 (ventilation strategy) 
attached to planning permission 19/74046/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 7 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79108/PDE  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr M Crilly 

 
LOCATION: 3 Kearsley Street 
Eccles 

M30 8NU 
 
PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 

single storey rear extension 
 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 
Winton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79103/TPO  DATE VALID: 13.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Michael Barton 

 
LOCATION: 1 Montonmill Gardens 
Eccles 

M30 8BQ 
 
PROPOSAL: Crown reduce to leave a height of 17m and spread of 12m one london 

plane (T1). 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 
Winton 

 

 
 

  

Page 95



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79115/DISCON  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Lynette Kellman 
 
LOCATION: St Josephs Hostel  

1 Millers Street 
Eccles 
M30 8PF 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 13 (noise 
assessment from the plant and equipment) attached to planning permission 

21/77201/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79141/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Winton Library 

203 Old Parrin Lane 
Eccles 
M30 8BY 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79142/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Alexandra House Day Centre 

395 Liverpool Road 
Eccles 
M30 7GB 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 

 

  

Page 96



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79217/DISCON  DATE VALID: 28.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mangrove Estates Ltd / ForViva 
 
LOCATION: Junction Of Barton Lane / Boardman Street  

Eccles  
M30 0FR  
 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 14 (verification 
report) attached to planning permission 19/73082/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 

Winton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79321/NMA  DATE VALID: 19.02.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Ibrahim Janneh 

 
LOCATION: 71 Barton Road 
Eccles 

M30 7AE 
 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 

permission 19/74046/FUL for change of material to side of front balcony from 
cladding to brick. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Barton And 
Winton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78070/HH  DATE VALID: 11.07.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs Emma Smallwood 
 
LOCATION: 5 Brackley Avenue 

Cadishead 
Irlam 
M44 5JG 

 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing two storey rear extension and erection of a part 
two, part single storey side/rear and two storey rear extension 

 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

 

 
 

  

Page 97



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78821/HH  DATE VALID: 19.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs Heywood 
 
LOCATION: 25 Worcester Road 

Salford 
M6 8PN 
 

PROPOSAL: Two storey front extension replacing existing front porch 
 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Claremont 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78887/HH  DATE VALID: 03.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mrs Sarah Bethell 

 
LOCATION: 51 Sunningdale Drive 
Salford 

M6 7PH 
 
PROPOSAL: Proposed two storey rear extension with steps and raised decking 

area to rear 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 28 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Claremont 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78961/HH  DATE VALID: 20.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Daniel Oneill 

 
LOCATION: 2 Ormonde Avenue 
Salford 

M6 8LP 
 
PROPOSAL: Erection of two storey side extension (resubmission 21/77683/HH) 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Claremont 

 

 
 

  

Page 98



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79057/FUL  DATE VALID: 05.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr. Imran Ghani 
 
LOCATION: 229-231  

Bolton Road 
Salford 
M6 7HP 

 
PROPOSAL: Conversion of ground floor shop into 3 shops (Class E(a)) with first 
floor side extension. Conversion of first floor and loft from 1no. two-bed flat to 3no. 

two-bed flats with rear facing dormer. Erection of external staircase to the rear to 
provide access to the residential units on the first floor (Resubmission of application 
21/78279/FUL). 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Claremont 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79072/ADV  DATE VALID: 07.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Gordon Collins 
 

LOCATION: Advertising Right Signways Site 5467 Gable Rear Of 11  
Claremont Road 
Salford 

M6 7NW 
 
PROPOSAL: Replacement of existing advertisement hoarding with 1 x 48 sheet 

gable mounted digital advertising display unit with pressed metal frame and sealed 
LED screen. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Claremont 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79149/TPO  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Robert Walsh 
 
LOCATION: Oaklands Hospital  

19 Lancaster Road 
Salford 
M6 8AQ 

 
PROPOSAL: Crown raise to 5m from ground level and removal of annual epicormic 
growth at ground level. Sever ivy at the base of tree stems using hand tools only 

three lime trees (T1, T2 and T4) and one sycamore tree (T3). 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Claremont 

 

 
 

  

Page 99



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79010/FUL  DATE VALID: 21.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Mark Edwards 
 
LOCATION: The Land To The West Of Milton Avenue 

Irlam 
Salford 
M44 5BW 

 
 
PROPOSAL: The development of 8no. new build residential walk-up apartments and 

1no. detached house for affordable rent. 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79018/HH  DATE VALID: 22.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Miss Rachel Lowe 

 
LOCATION: 204 Fir Street 
Cadishead 

Irlam 
M44 5YG 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey front porch including canopy extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 
And Lower 

Irlam 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79024/FUL  DATE VALID: 27.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Chintan Dave 

 
LOCATION: 5 The Vista 
Cadishead 

Irlam 
M44 5ER 
 

PROPOSAL: Change of use from vacant land to private garden area with boundary 
fencing 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 
And Lower 

Irlam 

 

 

 

  

Page 100



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79152/PDE  DATE VALID: 19.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Malcolm Masset 
 
LOCATION: 25 Townsgate Way 

Irlam 
M44 6RL 
 

PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79153/PDE  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Tricia _ Kevin Shaw 
 
LOCATION: 15 Rose Avenue 

Irlam 
M44 6AQ 
 

PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79130/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Irlam And Cadishead Leisure Centre  

Liverpool Road 
Irlam 
M44 6BR 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 

 

  

Page 101



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79258/PDE  DATE VALID: 01.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Steven Breen 
 
LOCATION: Brackley Farm 

Moss Road 
Cadishead 
Manchester 

Manchester 
M44 5JU 
 

PROPOSAL: Application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79250/HH  DATE VALID: 05.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Matthew Allen 
 
LOCATION: 22 Rixtonleys Drive 

Irlam 
Salford 
M44 6RP 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a first floor side/rear extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Cadishead 

And Lower 
Irlam 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 20/76189/COU  DATE VALID: 20.10.2020 
 

APPLICANT:Rahman 
 
LOCATION: 200 Church Street 

Eccles 
M30 0LZ 
 

PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 2 (opening hours) attached to planning 
permission 07/55602/COU, to extend the hours of opening to between 8am to 10pm 
Monday to Thursday, 8am to 11pm on Friday and Saturday and 10am to 8pm on 

Sunday and Bank Holidays  
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

Page 102



 

APPLICATION No: 21/77196/DISCON  DATE VALID: 11.03.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Dan Borza 
 
LOCATION: Vintage Ambiance  

188 Monton Road 
Eccles 
M30 9PY 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance with Condition 7 (Noise 
Management Plan) attached to planning permission 20/75613/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78650/HH  DATE VALID: 15.10.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Roy Fisher 

 
LOCATION: 1 Portland Road 
Eccles 

M30 9DP 
 
PROPOSAL: Conversion of an existing detached garage/store in the rear garden to 

form a self-contained annexe including external alterations 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78699/FUL  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Diocese of Manchester 

 
LOCATION: Christ Church  
Church Of England Primary School  

Nelson Street 
Eccles 
M30 0GZ 

 
PROPOSAL: Application to replace the existing modular building with new modular 
building 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

Page 103



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78886/HH  DATE VALID: 26.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs S Ferris 
 
LOCATION: 31 Westminster Road 

Eccles 
M30 9EA 
 

PROPOSAL: Removal of chimney. Proposed single storey front extension, single 
storey side extension, garage conversion and raising roof to create habitable space 
in loft. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78895/HH  DATE VALID: 08.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mrs Perryman 
 

LOCATION: 6 Rugby Road 
Salford 
M6 8FY 

 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey garage to the side elevation. 
Proposed part single storey part two storey side extension 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78927/HH  DATE VALID: 11.12.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Mrs Ghana Mahyoub 
 

LOCATION: 6 Devonshire Road 
Eccles 
M30 0WX 

 
PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with rear dormer 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 

 

  

Page 104



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78933/HH  DATE VALID: 05.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr David Banks 
 
LOCATION: 1 Snowdon Road 

Eccles 
M30 9AS 
 

PROPOSAL: Removal of existing single storey front porch and side extension. 
Proposed two storey front/ side extension and part two storey part single storey rear 
extension with cladding to first floor level. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78987/DISCON  DATE VALID: 15.12.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Director James Hall 
 

LOCATION: J Fletcher Engineering 
Lansdowne Road 
Eccles 

M30 9PD 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 5 (Traffic 

Management Scheme), 6 (Access Details) and 7 (Redundant Accesses) attached to 
planning permission 18/71247/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78990/TPO  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Rose 
 

LOCATION: Cavendish House -26 
And 28 Ellesmere Road 
Eccles 

M30 9RR 
 
PROPOSAL: 15% crown thin two sycamore trees (T1 and T2). Reduce lateral 

overhang by up to 3m from branch tips and crown lift up to 5m (in accordance with 
the submitted photograph) two sycamore trees within group G2. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 

 

  

Page 105



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79042/DISCON  DATE VALID: 25.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mrs. Singh & Mr. Ssidhu 
 
LOCATION: 4A Stafford Road 

Eccles 
M30 9HW 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 13 (tree 
replacement scheme) attached to planning permission 19/73898/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79063/HH  DATE VALID: 06.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Komolafe 
 

LOCATION: 1 Bledlow Close 
Eccles 
M30 9LP 

 
PROPOSAL: Proposed first floor side extension over existing garage 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79097/HH  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Ashton 
 
LOCATION: 7 Greenwood Place 

Eccles 
M30 9EX 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

Page 106



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79102/TPO  DATE VALID: 13.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Michael Barton 
 
LOCATION: 37A Ellesmere Road 

Eccles 
M30 9JH 
 

PROPOSAL: Reduce to leave a height of 15m and a width spread of 12m one 
sycamore (T1). Reduce to leave a height of 15m and a spread of 12m one sycamore 
(T2). Reduce to leave a height of 10m and a width spread of 6m one lime (T3). 

Reduce to leave a height of 23m and a width spread of 16m and remove one beech 
(T4). Reduce to leave a height of 8m and a width spread of 6m one sycamore (T5). 
Reduce to leave a height of 19m and a width spread of 6m one silver birch (T6). 

Reduce to leave a height of 10m and a width spread of 6m one sycamore (T7). 
 
DECISION: Split decision            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79201/TPO  DATE VALID: 25.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Michael Barton 

 
LOCATION: 10 Portland Road 
Eccles 

M30 9DP 
 
PROPOSAL: Crown reduce from 14m to 12m and width spread from 14.6m to 11m 

one beech (T1). 
Crown reduce from 15m to 12m and width spread from 12.5m to 9m one Silver birch 
(T2). 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 8 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79204/TPO  DATE VALID: 25.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Michael Barton 
 

LOCATION: 12 Cavendish Grove 
Eccles 
M30 9HR 

 
PROPOSAL: Crown reduction of height from 17m to 15m and spread from 9.5 to 
7.5m, crown lift to provide a 4m clearance from the ground level one horse chestnut 

(T1). 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 8 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Eccles 

 

 
 

  

Page 107



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79215/HH  DATE VALID: 28.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Daniel Ludlam 
 
LOCATION: 48 Cassidy Way 

Eccles 
M30 8EQ 
 

PROPOSAL: Proposed single storey front/side extension and single storey rear 
extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79232/DISCON  DATE VALID: 03.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Darren Ryder 
 
LOCATION: 9 Crawley Avenue 

Eccles 
Salford 
M30 0DW 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 3 (materials) 
attached to planning permission 21/78460/HH 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Eccles 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79055/SCO  DATE VALID: 21.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Laura Miller 

 
LOCATION: Land At Port Salford 
Eccles 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for scoping opinion for land at Port Salford 
 

DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Higher 
Irlam And 

Peel Green 

 

 

 

  

Page 108



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79151/PDE  DATE VALID: 14.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr David Elms 
 
LOCATION: 63 Boat Lane 

Irlam 
M44 6FJ 
 

PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Higher 

Irlam And 
Peel Green 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79138/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Irlam Library  

Hurst Fold 
Irlam 
M44 6FD 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Higher 

Irlam And 
Peel Green 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79212/DISCON  DATE VALID: 27.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:The Directors 
 
LOCATION: Eccles Archery Club  

Peel Green Road 
Eccles 
M30 7DR 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 4 (verification 
report) attached to planning permission 20/75220/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Higher 

Irlam And 
Peel Green 

 

 
 

  

Page 109



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79234/HH  DATE VALID: 03.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Natalie Crawford 
 
LOCATION: 8 Windsor Avenue 

Irlam 
Salford 
M44 6HP 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Higher 

Irlam And 
Peel Green 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78379/HH  DATE VALID: 28.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr and Mrs Goodall 
 
LOCATION: 93 Singleton Road 

Salford 
M7 4LX 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension and extending current loft conversion with 
rear dormer. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78384/HH  DATE VALID: 14.09.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr B Gluck 
 
LOCATION: 3 Norman Road 

Salford 
M7 4DJ 
 

PROPOSAL: Flat roofed dormer loft conversion to front and rear 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

Page 110



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78707/HH  DATE VALID: 26.10.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Neumann 
 
LOCATION: 21 Broom Lane 

Salford 
M7 4EQ 
 

PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78734/FUL  DATE VALID: 09.11.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Ian Fraser 

 
LOCATION: 71 Singleton Road 
Salford 

M7 4LX 
 
PROPOSAL: To convert an existing HMO dwelling into 3 self-contained units. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 
Broughton 

Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78914/FUL  DATE VALID: 04.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr C Englard 
 

LOCATION: 53 Broom Lane 
Salford 
M7 4FF 

 
PROPOSAL: Conversion of single house into two apartments together with a ground 
and first floor side extension. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Kersal And 
Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

Page 111



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78930/HH  DATE VALID: 09.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Steinberg 
 
LOCATION: 103 Leicester Road 

Salford 
M7 4GL 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey side, single storey rear extension and loft conversion 
with rear dormers 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78998/FUL  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr and Mrs Kaye 
 
LOCATION: 87 Singleton Road 

Salford 
M7 4LX 
 

PROPOSAL: Application for variation of a condition 2 (approved plans) following 
grant of planning permission 20/74607/FUL to accommodate a material change to 
drawings - small enlargement of first floor study. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79150/PDE  DATE VALID: 14.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Steinberg 
 

LOCATION: 9 Legh Street 
Salford 
M7 4EF 

 
PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 

 
DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Kersal And 
Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

Page 112



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79116/HH  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Gerber 
 
LOCATION: 7 Castlefield Avenue 

Salford 
M7 4GQ 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a first floor rear extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79147/HH  DATE VALID: 26.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Alexander Steinhaus 

 
LOCATION: 2 Roston Road 
Salford 

M7 4HH 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey side/ rear extension. Proposed 

single storey front porch, two storey side, single storey rear extension and loft 
conversion with front and rear dormers. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 
Broughton 

Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79222/PDE  DATE VALID: 26.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr L Tager 
 
LOCATION: 92 Rigby Street 

Salford 
M7 4BQ 
 

PROPOSAL: An application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 8 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 

 

  

Page 113



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79220/HH  DATE VALID: 28.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Hochhauser 
 
LOCATION: 21 Marston Road 

Salford 
M7 4ER 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing detached garage. Erection of part single part two 
storey side extension and single-storey side/rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 24 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79299/NMA  DATE VALID: 16.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Sally Goulden 
 
LOCATION: 11 Stubbs Close 

Salford 
M7 3BD 
 

PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 20/76375/HH to reduce the size of the proposed extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Kersal And 

Broughton 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/76976/DISCON  DATE VALID: 12.02.2021 
 

APPLICANT:- 
 
LOCATION: Land And Property Bounded By Broad Street, Cross Street, M602, 

Langworthy Road, Liverpool Street, Fitzwarren Street, Heywood Way, Hankinson 
Way, Nursery Street And Eccles Old Road, Pendleton, Salford 
 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 22 (surface water 
drainage scheme), 23 (sewerage system), 25 (drainage design), 28 (affordable 

housing), 30 (materials), 32 (landscaping and public realm), 37 (residential travel 
plan framework) and 38 (residential travel plan) attached to planning permission 
16/68008/HYBRID 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Langworthy 

 

 
 

  

Page 114



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78919/HH  DATE VALID: 05.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Brian Moran 
 
LOCATION: 12 Mortlake Close 

Worsley 
M28 0LH 
 

PROPOSAL: Part single storey, part two storey side and rear extension.  
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Little Hulton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79139/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:InPost UK 

 
LOCATION: Little Hulton Library  
Longshaw Drive 

Worsley 
M28 0AZ 
 

PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Little Hulton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79426/LPACON  DATE VALID: 21.02.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Bethany Brown - Major Planning Projects Officer 

 
LOCATION: Unit C8 - C12, Barton Square 
Phoenix Way 

Trafford Park 
Manchester 
M17 8AS 

 
PROPOSAL: Consultation from Trafford Council for Application for variation of 
conditions 2 and 3 on planning permission 95596/FUL/18 (Construction of new retail 

(Use Classes A1, A3 and A5) and leisure (Use Class D2) floorspace, reconfiguration 
of existing retail (Use Class A1) and leisure (Use Class D2) floorspace, enclosure of 
mall and provision of additional parking.). To allow for the creation of further 

mezzanine space at first floor level -  Application ref 106897/VAR22 
 
DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Not Within 
Salford 

 

 
 

  

Page 115



 

APPLICATION No: 21/76727/DISCON  DATE VALID: 09.01.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Paul Hawkins 
 
LOCATION: 28 King Street And 49-51 Queen Street 

Blackfriars 
Salford 
M3 7DG 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 6 (Verification 
Report) and 11 (Refuse Management Scheme (RMS)) attached to planning 

permission 18/72242/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/76738/DISCON  DATE VALID: 12.01.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Paul Hawkins 
 
LOCATION: 55 Queen Street 

Blackfriars 
Salford 
M3 7DQ 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 9 (Refuse and 
Recycling Management Scheme (RRMS)) and 20 (bicycle storage) attached to 

planning permission 20/74637/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78127/DISCON  DATE VALID: 21.07.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Anchorage Gateway (CW) Ltd 
 
LOCATION: Gateway Building  

5 Anchorage Quay 
Salford 
M50 3XE 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 16 (bicycle parking 
facilities) attached to planning permission 19/74069/OUT 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

Page 116



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78825/ADV  DATE VALID: 14.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Richard Wilson 
 
LOCATION: Trafford Road 

Near Jennings Avenue  
Salford  
Ordsall  

M5 3JR  
 
 

PROPOSAL: Free-standing Advertising Unit (FSU) containing one Digital display 
and one internally illuminated 6-sheet advertising panel on reverse side. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78988/DISCON  DATE VALID: 15.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Joanne Waller 
 
LOCATION: Land Bound By Regent Road, Oldfield Road And  

Duncan Street 
Salford 
M5 3GY 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 8 (materials), 14 
(travel Plan), 16 (cycle parking scheme), 17 (site access) and 18 (off site highway 

works) attached to planning permission 16/68723/FUL. Request for confirmation of 
partial compliance of condition 11 (ventilation measures) attached to planning 
permission 16/68723/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79110/DISCON  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:. . . 

 
LOCATION: 311 - 313 Chapel Street 
Salford 

M3 5JY 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 4 (Construction 

Method Statement), 10 (contaminated land remediation strategy), 18 (surface water 
drainage) and 19 (car park drainage) attached to planning permission 21/78164/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

Page 117



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79117/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Bennison 
 
LOCATION: 15 Fire Station Square 

Salford 
M5 4NZ 
 

PROPOSAL: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed change of use from C3(a) 
residential single family dwelling changing to C3(b) residential dwelling providing an 
element of care. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79146/ADV  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:MG Motor UK Limited 
 

LOCATION: 1 Brunel Avenue 
Salford 
M5 4BE 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for consent to display 1no. internally illuminated totem sign 
and 9no. internally illuminated fascia signs 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79276/PDE  DATE VALID: 10.02.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mrs Jane Wells 
 

LOCATION: 10 Isaac Close 
Salford 
M5 4GL 

 
PROPOSAL: Application to determine if prior approval is required for a proposed 
single storey rear extension 

 
DECISION: No Objections            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Ordsall 

 

 
 

  

Page 118



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79438/NMA  DATE VALID: 07.03.2022 
 

APPLICANT:. 
 
LOCATION: Middlewood Locks  

Land North Of Middlewood Street 
And East Of Oldfield Road 
Salford 

M5 4GU 
 
 

PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 16/67987/OUTEIA for an amendment to condition 9 (part b) 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Ordsall 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/77191/FUL  DATE VALID: 19.08.2021 
 

APPLICANT:EASY GREEN HOMES LTD 
 
LOCATION: Royal Oak 

536 Bolton Road 
Pendlebury 
Swinton 

M27 4DL 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing outbuilding and conversion of a pub and erection 

of a part first floor rear extension to accommodate eight dwelling units associated 
with 9 car parking spaces, cycle storage and bin store 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 28 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78347/FUL  DATE VALID: 25.08.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Salford City Council 
 
LOCATION: Clifton Youth Club  

The Green 
Swinton 
M27 8QL 

 
PROPOSAL: Redevelopment of the former Clifton Youth Centre to accommodate a 
new PRU School (Class F.1) including the alterations and refurbishment of the 

existing single-storey building and the erection of two-storey extension with the 
provision of additional car parking, associated landscaping and servicing works.  
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 

 

  

Page 119



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79044/HH  DATE VALID: 28.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr and Mrs Gaynor and Colin Mills 
 
LOCATION: 19 Solway Close 

Swinton 
M27 6PR 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension for garage with canopy over 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79058/HH  DATE VALID: 05.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Heather Mallard 

 
LOCATION: 223 Bolton Road 
Swinton 

M27 8SY 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing single storey brick side porch. Proposed erection 

of single storey rear extension and part single storey side extension, with new flat 
roof and rooflights 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 
And Clifton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79091/HH  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr A Cheadle 
 
LOCATION: 10 Birch Drive 

Swinton 
M27 4HD 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing side carport and rear conservatory. Proposed 
single storey rear extension and 'hip to gable' flat roof dormer loft conversion. 
Alterations to existing fenestration and removal of existing render finish to expose 

original brickwork. 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 
 

  

Page 120



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79145/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Shaun Thornton 
 
LOCATION: 23 Kenilworth Avenue 

Swinton 
M27 8JA 
 

PROPOSAL: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed velux window loft conversion 
and single storey rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79300/NMA  DATE VALID: 16.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr And Mrs Kirkley 
 
LOCATION: 9 Redmoss Row 

Swinton 
Salford 
M27 8AR 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 21/77677/HH for rear elevation aperture changes 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendlebury 

And Clifton 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78221/HH  DATE VALID: 06.10.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Caroline Robinson 
 

LOCATION: 10 Clementine Close 
Salford 
M6 5UF 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of a part two storey/part single storey side extension.  
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Pendleton 
And 
Charlestow

n 

 

 

 

  

Page 121



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78947/CLUD  DATE VALID: 05.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Dr Mervyn Sherlock 
 
LOCATION: 76 Blandford Road 

Salford 
M6 6BE 
 

PROPOSAL: Application for a lawful development certificate for existing use of the 
entire house as an HMO 
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 

And 
Charlestow
n 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78992/FUL  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Karim Rasull 
 
LOCATION: Car Park 

Sutton Way 
Salford 
 

 
PROPOSAL: Change of use of 2 car parking spaces to site a catering trailer used as 
hot food take away and an associated generator 

 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 

And 
Charlestow
n 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79113/DISCON  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:_ 
 

LOCATION: Advert Site Off Trenam Place And  
Albion Way 
Salford 

M5 4BF 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 5 (light spillage) 

attached to planning permission 21/77089/ADV 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Pendleton 
And 
Charlestow

n 

 

 

 

  

Page 122



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79129/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Clarendon Leisure Centre 

Liverpool Street 
Salford 
M5 4HU 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 

And 
Charlestow
n 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79235/DISCON  DATE VALID: 03.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Agecroft Trading Estate 
 
LOCATION: Units 5,6 And 7 Agecroft Trading Estate  

Langley Road 
Swinton 
M6 6JD 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 3 (materials), 8 
(contaminated land remediation strategy) and 13 (land stability) attached to planning 

permission 21/77661/FUL. Request for partial confirmation of compliance of 
condition 6 (method statement for removing Japanese knotweed and Himalayan 
balsam) attached to planning permission 21/77661/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 

And 
Charlestow
n 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79336/NMA  DATE VALID: 22.02.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Seddon Construction 

 
LOCATION: Former Irwell Valley Campus  
Off Blandford Road 

Blandford Road 
Salford 
M6 6BD 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 21/77655/FUL for amendments to elevations, storey heights 

and roof pitches 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 
And 

Charlestow
n 

 

 
 

  

Page 123



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79390/DISCON  DATE VALID: 26.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Ms Harriet Harper 
 
LOCATION: Land Located South Of The River Irwell And West Of Littleton Road 

Centred On Whit Lane  
Charlestown 
M6 6HP 

 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 4 (method 

statement to protect the River Irwell) attached to planning permission 18/72857/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Pendleton 

And 
Charlestow
n 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78533/DISCON  DATE VALID: 28.09.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Bex Hetherington 
 
LOCATION: Erie Basin 

Salford Quays 
 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 12 (Travel Plan) 
attached to planning permission 16/69216/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78977/FUL  DATE VALID: 11.12.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Paul Mitchel 
 

LOCATION: The Alchemist Bar 
The Quays 
Salford 

M50 3AB 
 
PROPOSAL: Application for an external bin enclosure to the rear 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Quays 

 

 
 

  

Page 124



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79053/ADV  DATE VALID: 31.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Les Lang 
 
LOCATION: Land North Of Junction Of Colgate Lane 

Trafford Road 
Salford 
 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for the retention of 2 no. freestanding marketing boards  
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79081/NMA  DATE VALID: 08.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Smith 
 
LOCATION: Gateway Building 

Anchorage Quay 
Salford 
M50 3XE 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 20/75123/REM for the amendment of Condition 1 (approved plans) and 

the removal of Condition 4 (cellular containment system). 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79106/PRI  DATE VALID: 10.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Majid Maqbool 

 
LOCATION: Ordsall Leisure Centre 
Craven Drive 

Salford 
M5 3DJ 
 

PROPOSAL: Application to determine whether prior approval is required for the 
proposed installation of solar PV panels to the building roof 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 2 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 

 

  

Page 125



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79096/DISCON  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Ged Carter 
 
LOCATION: Land At  

Worrall Street 
Salford 
M5 4TH 

 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 5 (soil 

contamination) attached to planning permission 18/71363/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79131/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Ordsall Leisure Centre  

Craven Drive 
Salford 
M5 3DJ 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79179/PRI  DATE VALID: 19.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Picton 
 
LOCATION: Metro 

33 Trafford Road 
Salford 
M5 3NN 

 
PROPOSAL: Installation of solar photovoltaic panels and associated equipment on 
flat roof of existing office building. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 11 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 
 

  

Page 126



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79173/FUL  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr David Shovlin 
 
LOCATION: Building 8 - Ninth Floor  

8 Exchange Quay 
Salford 
M5 3EJ 

 
PROPOSAL: Proposed roof terrace 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 17 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79210/DISCON  DATE VALID: 27.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Martin Wallis 
 
LOCATION: King William Street 

Salford 
M50 3ZP 
 

PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 11 (surface water 
drainage) attached to planning permission 19/74245/FUL 
 

DECISION: Condition Request determined             
 
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 16 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79370/NMA  DATE VALID: 23.02.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Justin Dodds 

 
LOCATION: 5 Houston Park 
Salford 

M50 2RP 
 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 

planning permission 19/73083/FUL removal of bollards, retaining wall along new 
pathway and section of fence along adjoined boundary with next door, moving of 
gate posts forward, widening and relocation of gates. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Quays 

 

 
 

  

Page 127



 

APPLICATION No: 21/79045/HH  DATE VALID: 28.12.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Tom Monaghan 
 
LOCATION: 19 Anson Road 

Swinton 
M27 5GZ 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey front with bay window, side and rear wrap around 
extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79124/HH  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Paul Burgess 
 
LOCATION: 62 Kingsway 

Swinton 
M27 4JW 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing rear conservatory and single storey rear 
extension. Proposed single storey side and rear wrap around extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79125/HH  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mrs M Coulter 
 
LOCATION: 11 Hawthorn Drive 

Swinton 
M27 4HR 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing rear conservatory. Proposed erection of single 
storey rear extension 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

Park 

 

 

 

  

Page 128



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79202/TPO  DATE VALID: 25.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Andrew Cartwright 
 
LOCATION: 2-4  

Barton Road 
Swinton 
M27 5LJ 

 
PROPOSAL: Holly Tree (T1) - Cut branches back to the boundary. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78743/DISCON  DATE VALID: 02.11.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Jonathan Penrose 
 
LOCATION: Former Hope High School 

Eccles Old Road 
Salford 
M6 8GG 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 11 (emergency 
access off Prestwood Road) attached to planning permission 16/69279/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 

And 
Seedley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79027/FUL  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Mish Liyanage 

 
LOCATION: 39 Alpha Street 
Salford 

M6 5JY 
 
PROPOSAL: Change of Use from C3 dwelling to 4 bed, 4 person HMO C4, single 

storey rear extension and alterations to rear elevations 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 
And 

Seedley 

 

 
 

  

Page 129



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79082/COU  DATE VALID: 10.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Mohammed Altayar 
 
LOCATION: 120 Fitzwarren Street 

Salford 
M6 5RS 
 

PROPOSAL: Change of use from C3 (dwelling) to a C4 HMO (4 residents) 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 

And 
Seedley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79119/COU  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 
APPLICANT:Mr Harry Pettener 

 
LOCATION: 1 Glendore 
Salford 

M5 5EY 
 
PROPOSAL: Change of Use from 3 bed dwelling (C3) to a 3 Bed HMO (C4) 

 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 
And 

Seedley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79121/COU  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Harry Pettener 
 

LOCATION: 31 Barff Road 
Salford 
M5 5ES 

 
PROPOSAL: Change of Use from 3 bed dwelling (C3) to a 3 Bed HMO (C4) 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 10 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Weaste 
And 
Seedley 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79174/HH  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Christopher Ambrose 
 
LOCATION: 6 Weaste Drive 

Salford 
M5 5LU 
 

PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 18 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 

And 
Seedley 

 

 
 

  

Page 130



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79183/COU  DATE VALID: 22.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Kohn 
 
LOCATION: 126 Weaste Lane 

Salford 
M5 5JJ 
 

PROPOSAL: Conversion of the existing 6 bedroom (6 occupants) HMO (Class C4) 
to a 8 bedroom (10 occupants) HMO (Class Sui Generis) and erection of a rear 
dormer. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 

And 
Seedley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79231/FUL  DATE VALID: 03.02.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Z Ali 
 

LOCATION: 5A Tootal Road 
Salford 
M5 5HJ 

 
PROPOSAL: Proposed conversion of existing two bed Flat at first and second floor 
levels to four bed HMO (resubmission 21/78833/FUL) 

 
DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Weaste 
And 
Seedley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79261/DISCON  DATE VALID: 08.02.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mrs Elaine Patton 
 

LOCATION: Willow Tree Primary School  
2 Greenland Street 
Salford 

M6 5TJ 
 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of condition 2 (surface water 

drainage scheme) attached to planning permission 21/77783/FUL 
 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             

DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Weaste 
And 
Seedley 

 

 

 

  

Page 131



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79337/NMA  DATE VALID: 22.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Seddon Construction 
 
LOCATION: Former St Lukes Church Of England Primary School 

Eccles New Road 
Salford 
M5 5NX 

 
PROPOSAL: Application for a non-material amendment following the grant of 
planning permission 21/78267/FUL to reduce the storey heights and roof pitches, 

enclosure of roof terraces to the Type B dwellings and amendment to the window 
positions and materials to the 3 storey apartment block. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 24 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Weaste 

And 
Seedley 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79154/PRI  DATE VALID: 21.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Simon Ruocco 
 
LOCATION: 417 Chorley Road 

Swinton 
M27 9UQ 
 

PROPOSAL: Application to determine if prior approval is required for proposed 
change of use from commercial, business and service (use class E) to 
dwellinghouse (use class C3) The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015, (as amended) Schedule 2, Part 3, Class MA 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

And 
Wardley 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/79049/HH  DATE VALID: 30.12.2021 
 
APPLICANT:David Black 

 
LOCATION: 18 Claude Avenue 
Swinton 

M27 9PF 
 
PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 
And 

Wardley 

 

 
 

  

Page 132



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79079/HH  DATE VALID: 08.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr A Dawkins 
 
LOCATION: 23 Chelford Drive 

Swinton 
M27 9HJ 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of single storey rear conservatory. Proposed erection of a 
single storey front extension and part single storey side extension.  
 

DECISION: Refuse            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 4 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

And 
Wardley 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79134/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost 
 
LOCATION: Swinton And Pendlebury Leisure Centre  

Cromwell Road 
Swinton 
M27 9SZ 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 15 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

And 
Wardley 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79140/FUL  DATE VALID: 18.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:InPost UK 
 
LOCATION: Swinton Library 

100 Chorley Road 
Swinton 
M27 6BP 

 
PROPOSAL: Retention application for the citing of an InPost Parcel Locker 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 14 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Swinton 

And 
Wardley 

 

 

 

  

Page 133



 

APPLICATION No: 21/77154/HH  DATE VALID: 05.03.2021 
 

APPLICANT:Mrs Victoria Rose-Pitfield 
 
LOCATION: 44 Lentworth Drive 

Worsley 
M28 3EX 
 

PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with raised ridge, including dormers to front and rear 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Walkden 

North 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/77219/HH  DATE VALID: 28.07.2021 
 
APPLICANT:Mr S Walker 

 
LOCATION: 32A Egerton Road 
Worsley 

M28 3JY 
 
PROPOSAL: Single storey side and single storey rear extension 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Walkden 
North 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78996/HH  DATE VALID: 21.12.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Jason Cartwright 
 

LOCATION: 79 Broadway 
Worsley 
M28 7FA 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 21 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Walkden 
South 

 

 

 

  

Page 134



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79095/HH  DATE VALID: 12.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Becky Pratt 
 
LOCATION: 11 Parrfold Avenue 

Worsley 
M28 7HD 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolish of existing rear conservatory. Proposed single storey rear 
extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 February 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Walkden 

South 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79127/HH  DATE VALID: 17.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Annabelle Horrocks 
 
LOCATION: 5 Kirkstone Avenue 

Worsley 
M28 7JL 
 

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey side extension, single storey rear extension, 
construction of front porch and replacement of existing front window to bay window. 
(resubmission 20/76465/HH) 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Walkden 

South 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78795/HH  DATE VALID: 17.11.2021 

 
APPLICANT:Christopher Webster 
 

LOCATION: 6 Thornlea Avenue 
Swinton 
M27 0BG 

 
PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 8 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Worsley 
And 
Westwood 

Park 

 

 

 

  

Page 135



 

APPLICATION No: 21/78980/HH  DATE VALID: 07.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr William Doyle 
 
LOCATION: 19 The Crescent  

Worsley Road 
Worsley 
M28 2WY 

 
PROPOSAL: New door openings to rear elevation/alterations to elevations.  
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 9 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Worsley 

And 
Westwood 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 21/78981/LBC  DATE VALID: 07.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr William Doyle 
 
LOCATION: 19 The Crescent  

Worsley Road 
Worsley 
M28 2WY 

 
PROPOSAL: Listed building consent for new door openings to rear 
elevation/alterations to elevations. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 8 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Worsley 

And 
Westwood 
Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79105/PRI  DATE VALID: 24.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Majid Maqbool 
 

LOCATION: Alder Grove Primary Partnership Unit 
Walnut Road 
Eccles 

M30 8LD 
 
PROPOSAL: Application to determine whether prior approval is required for the 

proposed installation of solar PV panels to the building roof 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 7 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Worsley 
And 
Westwood 

Park 

 

 
 

  

Page 136



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79100/CLUDP  DATE VALID: 13.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr Chris Wood 
 
LOCATION: 14 Hazelhurst Fold 

Worsley 
M28 2JU 
 

PROPOSAL: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed dormer extension to the rear 
elevation of the existing roof. 
 

DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 1 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Worsley 

And 
Westwood 
Park 

 

 

 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79184/HH  DATE VALID: 24.01.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr & Mrs T Taylor 
 
LOCATION: 16 Woodgarth Lane 

Worsley 
M28 2PS 
 

PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing side garage and rear conservatory.  Erection of 
a single storey rear extension and a part single storey part two storey side 
extension. 

 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 22 March 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Worsley 

And 
Westwood 
Park 

 

 
 

  

APPLICATION No: 22/79214/DISCON  DATE VALID: 28.01.2022 

 
APPLICANT:Mr Steve Price 
 

LOCATION: 173 Worsley Road 
Worsley 
M28 2SJ 

 
PROPOSAL: Request for confirmation of compliance of conditions 3 (materials), 5 
(Construction Method Statement), 8 (tree replacement scheme), 9 (cellular 

confinement system T8), 10 (landscaping), 16 (invasive species), 18 (ecological 
status of sindsley brook), 19 (new site access points) and 21 (surface water 
drainage) attached to planning permission 17/69623/FUL 

 
DECISION: Condition Request determined             
DATE DECISION ISSUED: 25 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 

Worsley 
And 
Westwood 

Park 

 

 
 

  

Page 137



 

APPLICATION No: 22/79229/HH  DATE VALID: 02.02.2022 
 

APPLICANT:Mr J. Davies 
 
LOCATION: 16 Partington Street 

Worsley 
M28 2SY 
 

PROPOSAL: Proposed single storey rear extension (resubmission 21/78663/HH) 
 
DECISION: Approve            DATE DECISION ISSUED: 23 March 2022 

___________________________________________________________________ 

WARD: 
Worsley 

And 
Westwood 
Park 

 

 
 

  

 

Page 138



1 

Part 1: Open to the Public 

 
 

REPORT OF The Strategic Director for Place 

 
 

TO The Planning & Transportation Regulatory Panel 
ON 7th April 2022

 
 
TITLE: Planning Appeals 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That the report be noted. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: To set out details of appeals determined and received. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
(Available for public inspection) Details of the applications are available on the 
Council’s Public Access Website 
http://publicaccess.salford.gov.uk/publicaccess/default.aspx 
If you would like to access this information in an alternative format, please contact the 
planning office on 0161-779 6195 or e-mail planning.contact@salford.gov.uk 

 
KEY DECISION: NO 

 
DETAILS: Please refer to the attached schedule. 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Performance Management 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: N/A 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A  

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A  

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Liz Taylor  TEL NO: 0161 779 4803 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: As specified in the attached schedule. 

  

 
 

Page 139

Agenda Item 7

http://publicaccess.salford.gov.uk/publicaccess/default.aspx


2 

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL 
 

REPORT ON PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT APPEALS DECIDED 

 
 
 
APPLICATION No: 21/77750/ADV 

 
APPELLANT: Clear Channel UK 

 
APPEAL SITE: 180 Liverpool Road Eccles M30 0PF     

 
PROPOSAL: Upgrade of existing 48 sheet advert to digital LED (D Poster 

sign) 

 
WARD: Barton 
 

 
APPLICATION  
DECISION LEVEL: Delegated to planning officer 

 
OFFICER  
RECOMMENDATION: Refuse 

 
APPEAL DECISION: Appeal dismissed 

 
DECIDED ON: 11 March 2022 

 

 

 

Page 140



 3 

 
Location and Details of the Proposal 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 141



 4 

 
 

 
 
  

 
 
 

Page 142



 5 

 
  
 

Page 143



 6 

Planning Authority Decision 

 

Refuse consent for the following reason: 
 

1. The proposed digital advertisement hoarding, by reason of its size, scale, 
height, prominent location and the proposed use of digital technology and 
illumination, would be unduly obtrusive, discordant and over dominant in the 

streetscene, resulting in a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the 
streetscene and the character of the surrounding area and would give rise to 

undue visual intrusion, resulting in harm to the amenity that the occupiers of 
the adjacent residential apartments/properties  Milton Court could reasonably 
expect to enjoy. The proposed advertisement would therefore be contrary to 

policy DEV2 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan and the advice of 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



 7 

   

  
  

  

 

Appeal Decision   

Site visit made on 15 February 2022  by Hannah Ellison BSc 

(Hons) MSc MRTPI  

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State   

Decision date: 11 March 2022  

 

  

Appeal Ref: APP/U4230/Z/21/3281752 180 Liverpool Road, Eccles, 
Manchester M30 0PF  
• The appeal is made under Regulation 17 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of 

Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 against a refusal to grant express consent.  
• The appeal is made by Clear Channel UK against the decision of Salford City Council.  
• The application Ref 21/77750/ADV, dated 18 May 2021, was refused by notice dated  15 July 

2021.  
• The advertisement proposed is the upgrading of existing paper and paste advertisement board to 

digital LED poster sign (D-Poster).  

 

Decision  

1. The appeal is dismissed.  

Preliminary Matter  
2. The Council has drawn my attention to Policy DEV2 of the City of Salford 

Unitary Development Plan 2004-2016 (June 2006) (the UDP) which it considers 

to be relevant to this appeal and I have taken it into account where relevant. 

However, powers under the Regulations1 to control advertisements may be 

exercised only in the interest of amenity and public safety, taking account of any 

material factors. The National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and 

the Planning Practice Guidance reiterates this approach. Therefore, the 

Council’s policy has not, by itself been decisive.  

Main Issue  

                                                 
1 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 (as amended) 

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate  

Page 145

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


 8 

3. The effect of the proposal on the amenity of the area.  

Reasons  
4. The proposal seeks to replace an existing non-illuminated poster advertisement, 

occupying an elevated position on the gable end of 180  

Liverpool Road, with a digital advertisement. The immediate stretch of Liverpool 

Road has a commercial character, with a range of shops and services 
occupying the ground floor units. However, the streets off the main thoroughfare, 

including Milton Street in which the proposal would be experienced, are 
predominantly residential.  

5. The scale and positioning of the proposal would be similar to the existing poster 

advertisement which I note may be long-established at the appeal site. It would 

nevertheless vary considerably as the images would be digitalised, therefore 

appearing significantly sharper and brighter than the existing, and they would be 
capable of changing on a sequential rotation. These factors  

  
Appeal Decision APP/U4230/Z/21/3281752 

  

would significantly distinguish it from the existing and cause it to be a more 

apparent and overly dominant feature in the street scene for passers-by and 
neighbouring residents, particularly at Milton Court opposite.  

6. I note that there are a number of advertisements along the immediate stretch of 

Liverpool Road and this route appears to be well-lit. However, none are of a 

large digital format and they also tend to be of a limited size and positioned no 

higher than fascia height. Moreover, the appeal proposal would be sited off the 

main thoroughfare on a predominantly residential side street and would directly 

face residential properties. Even if light sensors would vary the brightness of the 

advertisement during the day, particularly when ambient lighting conditions are 

less bright, the proposal would nevertheless remain prominent and those in the 

area would be well aware of it due to its method of display and multichanging 
nature.   

7. The appellant has suggested alternative maximum luminance levels during night 

time hours and has also offered to switch off the display between the hours of 

midnight to 05:00. Although these matters could be controlled via conditions 

and, even if the maximum levels meet the recommended guidance, the proposal 

would nevertheless remain overly dominant during the daytime. Therefore, the 

measures to reduce illumination would not negate the harm I have identified.  

8. Accordingly, this proposal would result in unacceptable harm to the amenity of 

the area, and would be contrary to Policy DEV2 of the UDP and the Framework 

which together, although not decisive, seek to ensure that advertisements 

respect the sensitivity of the location.  

Page 146



 9 

Conclusion  
9. For the reasons given above, I find that the proposed advertisement would 
significantly harm amenity and therefore the appeal should be dismissed.  

H Ellison  
INSPECTOR  

  
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


 10 

PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION REGULATORY PANEL  

  

REPORT OF NEW PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT APPEALS RECEIVED   

  

  

  

APPLICATION No:   

  

APPLICATION   

21/78461/HH  

DECISION LEVEL:  

  

Delegated to Officer  

OFFICER   

RECOMMEND’N:  

  

Refuse  

APPEAL SITE:   

  

267 Rivington Crescent Swinton M27 8TQ      

PROPOSAL:    

  

Erection of single storey rear extension with roof 

terrace.  

WARD:   

  

Pendlebury And Clifton  

APPELLANT:   

  

Mr Steve Grech  

DATE RECEIVED:  23 March 2022  

  

Appeal received against refusal of planning permission.  
  

Reason(s) for refusal are as follows;  
  

The proposed development by reason of its siting design and close proximity of the 
development to the common boundary with the neighbouring properties at nos. 265 

and 269 Rivington Crescent, would result in direct overlooking and a resultant loss of 
privacy to neighbouring garden spaces and rear facing habitable rooms at first floor 

level through perceived overlooking from the development. The development is 
therefore contrary to UDP policy DES7 and policy HE2 of the Salford House 
Extensions SPD.  

  

The proposed development by reason of its siting design and close proximity of the 
development to the common boundary with the neighbouring properties at nos. 265 

and 269 Rivington Crescent, would result in direct overlooking and a resultant loss of 
privacy to neighbouring garden spaces and rear facing habitable rooms at first floor 
level through perceived overlooking from the development. The development is 

therefore contrary to UDP policy DES7 and policy HE2 of the Salford House 
Extensions SPD.  

  

  

                         

   

  

Page 148



 11 

APPLICATION No:   

  

APPLICATION   

21/77650/PDE  

DECISION LEVEL:  

  

Delegated to Officer  

OFFICER   

RECOMMEND’N:  

  

Refuse  

APPEAL SITE:   

  

53 Shaftesbury Road Swinton M27 5TA      

PROPOSAL:    

  

Erection of a single storey rear 

extension  

WARD:   

  

Swinton Park  

APPELLANT:   

  

Mr S. M. Umair Rasheed  

DATE RECEIVED:  22 February 2022  

  

  

Appeal received against refusal of planning permission.  

  

Reason(s) for refusal are as follows;  
  

The proposed single storey rear extension would project 4m further than the rear 
elevation of the dwelling and extend up to the adjoining boundary.  It is considered 

that the extension would result in an unacceptable loss of light and appear 
overbearing for the neighbouring residents No.55 Shaftesbury Road contrary to 

Policy HE5 of the House Extensions Supplementary Planning Document and 
Retained Policy DES7 of the Salford UDP.  
  

  

      

  

                      

APPLICATION No:   

  

APPLICATION   

21/78238/FUL  

DECISION LEVEL:  

  

Delegated to Officer  

OFFICER   

RECOMMEND’N:  

  

Refuse  

APPEAL SITE:   

  

200 Weaste Lane Salford M5 5JL      

PROPOSAL:    

  

Change of use of vacant dwellinghouse (C3 use) to an 8 bed 

HMO (sui generis), together with a single storey rear extension.  

Page 149



 12 

WARD:   

  

Weaste And Seedley  

APPELLANT:   

  

Mr Cheung  

DATE RECEIVED:  9 March 2022  

  

Appeal received against refusal of planning permission.  

  

Reason(s) for refusal are as follows;  

  

The proposal, when considered cumulatively with other similar uses that exist 
nearby, would unacceptably harm the positive residential character of the 
surrounding neighbourhood, due to an overconcentration of houses in multiple 

occupation along the western side of Weaste Lane. The proposal would contribute to 
an unbalance in the mix of dwellings in the area and would likely result in issues 

regarding noise and disturbance and high population turnover levels that risk 
reducing community stability and social cohesion. The proposal would be contrary to 
paragraphs 8, 92 and 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework, draft Policy 

H10 of the emerging Publication Salford Local Plan: Development Management 
Policies and Designations and saved Policies ST1 and H1 of the City of Salford 

Unitary Development Plan.  
  

The proposal would result in an unacceptable loss of amenity to occupiers of the 
adjoining neighbour, No.198 Weaste Lane, through the introduction of a single storey 

rear extension which would result in a loss of light, have an overbearing impact and 
create a tunneling effect. The proposal is contrary to paragraph 130 of the NPPF, 
draft policy D5 of the emerging Publication Salford Local Plan: Development 

Management Policies and, saved policy DES7 of the City of Salford Unitary 
Development Plan and Policy HE5 of the Salford City Council house extensions 

supplementary planning document.  
The proposal would provide a low quality of accommodation to future occupiers of 
Bedroom 8 due to the limited space afforded to these occupiers. The proposal does 

not comply with paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
saved Policies H1 and DES7 of the City of Salford Unitary Development Plan.  

  

The proposal would not improve the economic, social and environmental conditions 
of the area nor does it comply with the development plan and therefore does not 
comprise sustainable development. There were no amendments to the scheme, or 

conditions which could reasonably have been imposed, which could have made the 
development acceptable and it was therefore not possible to approve the application. 

The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the NPPF.  
  

  

      

  

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 150



 13 

APPLICATION No:   

  

APPLICATION   

20/75126/OUT  

DECISION LEVEL:  

  

Delegated to Officer  

OFFICER   

RECOMMEND’N:  

  

Refuse  

APPEAL SITE:   

  

Vacant Land Bounded By  Glen Avenue And Mulgrave Road  Roe 

Green  Worsley  M28 2RP    

PROPOSAL:    

  

  

Outline planning permission for erection of 4 storey block 

comprising 16 apartments with matters of access, layout and scale 

sought for approval at the outline stage  

WARD:   

  

Worsley  

APPELLANT:   

  

Ms A Faiz  

DATE RECEIVED:  9 March 2022  

  

Appeal received against refusal of planning permission.  

  

Reason(s) for refusal are as follows;  

  

UDP policy H1 criterion D relates to special character of the area that is 
worthy of protection. The justification to policy HOU1 at paragraph 4.5 of the 
Housing Guidance makes clear cross reference to criterion D and its 

application to schemes in places such as Worsley and states that:  
  

The UDP recognises that West Salford has some of Greater Manchester's most 

popular and successful residential neighbourhoods. The popularity and success of 
these residential areas is partly based on their mainly suburban character, with 
predominantly low-rise development. This special character is considered to be 

worthy of protection, in accordance with criterion D of UDP Policy H1, and it is 
important that new development does not alter this character in such a way as to 

reduce the attractiveness of these residential neighbourhoods. However, the 
character of many of those areas is coming under pressure from the introduction of 
high-density apartment developments, not just on vacant sites, but also within the 

curtilage of existing properties and through the redevelopment of larger houses.  
  

The site is not particularly accessible to jobs and facilities as required by 
criterion E of UDP policy H1; with regards to this paragraph 4.2 of the housing 

planning guidance states that in order to achieve a balance of new property 
types across the city, it will be important to focus higher-density development, 

which is invariably in the form of apartments, within the most accessible 
locations.  
  

Page 151



 14 

The proposed development would provide a 100% provision of apartments 
with a mix of one and two bedroom units and would therefore be contrary to 

UDP policy H1 (in particular criteria D and E) and housing planning guidance 
policy HOU1.  

  

Policy HOU2 of the housing planning guidance requires that where 

apartments are proposed they should provide a broad mix of dwelling sizes, 
both in terms of the number of bedrooms and the net residential floorspace. 

Small dwellings (i.e., studios and 1 bed apartments) should not predominate, 
and a significant proportion of 3 bedroom apartments should be provided 
wherever practicable. Paragraph 4.31 of the reasoned justification clarifies that 

the majority of apartments should have two or three bedrooms, with a 
floorspace typically 57 square metres or above.   

  

Of the 16 apartments proposed in the scheme 8 (50%) are 1 bedroom and 8 

(50%) are two bedroom.  The reasoned justification is clear that the majority of 
apartments should normally have two or more bedrooms. No three bed 

apartments are provided and no justification has been provided to justify a 
deviation from policy HOU2.   
  

The development is therefore contrary to policy HOU2 of the adopted Housing 

Planning Guidance.  
The proposal for 16 apartments contained within a four storey block is deemed 

inappropriate in this context by reason of its size & scale and siting. In 
addition, the proposed development would result in the loss of a large number 
of trees which contribute significantly to the suburban character of the area 

and which also provide a welcome natural buffer from the residential 
properties on Mulgrave Road and Glen Avenue to the M60 motorway.  The 

loss of trees would be harmful to the setting and character of the area contrary 
to policies DES1 and DES9 of the adopted UDP and the National Planning 
Policy Framework.  

  

Insufficient information has been provided to evidence that the site can be 
adequately serviced by a long truck (i.e. fire or refuse) without detriment to the 
free flow of traffic and highway safety, contrary to City of Salford Unitary 

Development Plan policy A8 and the National Planning Policy Framework.  
  

The proposed development would provide 16 car parking spaces (including 2 
disabled bays) which is considered insufficient for a development of 16 residential 

units (8x1 bed and 8 x 2  bed) in this location and would lead to additional demand 
for on street parking on Glen Avenue and Mulgrave Road. The proposal is 

therefore contrary to policies A10 and A8 of the adopted UDP.  
  

The proposal would not improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area nor does it comply with the development plan and 

therefore does not comprise sustainable development. There were no 
amendments to the scheme, or conditions which could reasonably have been 
imposed, which could have made the development acceptable and it was 

therefore not possible to approve the application. The Local Planning Authority 
has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the NPPF. 

Page 152


	Agenda
	 Guidance for members of the public regarding attendance at face to face council meetings
	4 To approve as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2022.
	5 Planning applications and related development control issues.
	5a 21/78597/PRI - Park Lea Court, Upper Park Road, Salford.
	5b 20/76377/FUL - Botany Bay Wood, Grange Road, Eccles.
	5c 21/78637/FUL - Towngate Business Centre, Worsley Trading Estate, Lester Road, Little Hulton M38 0PT
	5d 22/79155/REM - Plot G1 _ G2, Logistics North, Bolton BL5 1DB
	6 Planning applications determined under delegated authority.
	7 Planning appeals.

